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In addition to historical information, this annuegport on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statamts within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and @=@1E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.& kegements include, among other things,
statements concerning our expectations regardiegettpected impact our new products and product ecgraents will have on doctor
utilization and our market share, our expectatioagarding product mix and product adoption, our esjations regarding the existence and
impact of seasonality, our expectations regardimg elocation of several customer facing organiagi from our Santa Clara, California
facility to our facility in Costa Rica, includindpé¢ timing of such relocation, our expectation that utilization rate will improve over time, ol
expectations regarding our average selling priced gross profits in 2009, the expected timing efdbmpletion of our transition from our
reliance on a shelter service provider in Juareexito to a direct manufacturer of our product, @xpectations regarding the continued
growth of our international markets, our expectasaegarding the impact of increased consumer nengggprograms in Europe, ot
expectations that the decline in general economilitions in 2009 may result in a decline in ouoguct volumes and revenues compared to
2008, the anticipated level of our operating exgsnsnd other factors beyond our control, as welbther statements regarding our future
operations, financial condition and prospects andihess strategies. These statements may contadls \woch as "expects,” "anticipates,”
“intends,” "plans," "believes," "estimates," or ethwords indicating future results. These forw#dking statements are subject to certain
and uncertainties that could cause actual resultdiffer materially from those reflected in thevi@rd-looking statements. Factors that could
cause or contribute to such differences includé doa not limited to, those discussed in Item 7 filsigement's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, angbarticular, the risks discussed below in Partém 1A "Risk Factors". We undertake
obligation to revise or update these forward-loakstatements. Given these risks and uncertaingeslers are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on such forward-looking statements.

PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Our Company

Align Technology, Inc. designs, manufacsuaad markets the Invisalign system, a propriataethod for treating malocclusion, or the
misalignment of teeth. Invisalign corrects malos@dn using a series of clear, nearly invisible, ogable appliances that gently move teeth to a
desired final position. Because it does not relytenuse of metal or ceramic brackets and wiregsdtign significantly reduces the aesthetic
and other limitations associated with metal arclesvand brackets, commonly referred to as braces:edéived the United States Food and
Drug Administration ("FDA") clearance to market Isalign in 1998. The Invisalign system is regulabgdhe FDA as a Class Il medical
device.

We distribute the vast majority of our puots directly to our customers: the orthodontist #re general practitioner dentist, or GP.
Orthodontists and GPs must complete an Invisaliginihg course in order to provide the Invisaliggatment solution to their patients. The
Invisalign system is sold in North America, Europsija Pacific, Latin America and Japan. We uses&ibutor model for the sale of our
products in parts of the Asia Pacific and Latin Ait&n region.

We were incorporated in Delaware in Ap8BY. Our headquarters are located at 881 MartimAgeSanta Clara, California 95050, and
our telephone number is 408-470-1000.
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Industry Background
Malocclusion

Malocclusion, or the misalignment of teéshone of the most prevalent clinical dental ctinds, affecting over 195 million individuals,
approximately 65% of the U.S. population. Approxieia 2.1 million people annually elect treatmentdsthodontists in the U.S. While most
individuals seek orthodontic treatment to impradveitt appearance, malocclusion may also be resgerfsibdental problems such as tooth
decay, tooth loss, gum disease, jaw joint painfeatiaches. Because of the compromised aesthésicsirdort and other drawbacks associ
with traditional orthodontic treatments, only aatélely small proportion of people with malocclusiseek treatment.

Traditional Orthodontic Treatment

In the U.S., dental professionals treatawellision primarily with metal arch wires and bratsk commonly referred to as braces.
Occasionally, dental professionals attempt to impriveatment aesthetics by using ceramic, tootbredlbrackets or bond brackets on the
inside, or lingual surfaces, of the patient's teBntal professionals also augment braces wittiela metal bands, headgear and other
ancillary devices.

The average treatment takes approximatelp P4 months to complete and requires severatshafidirect dental professional
involvement, or chair time. To initiate treatmeatlental professional will diagnose a patient'sdi@é@n and create an appropriate treatment
plan. In a subsequent visit, the dental profess$iaiibbond brackets to the patient's teeth witlmest and attach an arch wire to the brackets.
Thereafter, by tightening or otherwise adjusting ltinaces approximately every six weeks, the dgmtdéssional is able to exert sufficient fo
on the patient's teeth to achieve desired toothemant. Because of the length of time between yisiesdental professional must tighten the
braces to a degree sufficient to achieve sustdiomtt movement during the interval. In a final yithe dental professional removes each
bracket and residual cement from the patient'$itégpon completion of the treatment, the dentafgesional may, at his or her discretion, h
the patient use a retainer.

Fees for traditional orthodontic treatmipically range between U.S. $3,500 to $7,000 withedian fee of approximately $5,000;
generally only a portion of the fee is reimbursgdrsurance. In addition, dental professionals camiyncharge a premium for lingual or
ceramic alternatives. Fees are based on the diffiofithe particular case and on the dental pitesl's estimate of chair time, and are
generally negotiated in advance. A treatment thateds the dental professional's estimate of timaér generally results in decreased fees per
hour of chair time, and reduced profitability foetdental professional.

Limitations of Traditional Orthodontic Treatment

Although braces are generally effectivednrecting a wide range of malocclusions, theysatgiect to many limitations and disadvanta
Traditional orthodontic treatment is associatedwit

. Unattractive appearance Braces call attention to the patient's condiiod treatment. In addition, braces trap food, wicih
further compromise appearance. Braces can alsti iregermanent discoloration of teeth. Many adaksociate braces with
adolescence. As a result of these and other liimitst relatively few adults with malocclusion elgetditional orthodontic
treatment annually.

. Oral discomfort. Braces are sharp and bulky and can abrade ataddrthe interior surfaces of the mouth. The &glitig or
adjustment of braces results in root and gum seeeard discomfort, especially in the few days imiatety following an
orthodontic visit.
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. Poor oral hygiene. Braces compromise oral hygiene by making it naffecult to brush and floss. These problems casultein
tooth decay and periodontal damage. Additionalig,lionding of brackets to teeth can cause permamaings on the teeth.

. Inability to project treatment. Historically, dental professionals have not hadesans to model the movement of teeth over a
course of treatment. Accordingly, dental profesalemust rely on intuition and judgment to plan anoiect treatment. As a
result, they cannot be precise about the diredfatistance of expected tooth movement betweeematisits. This lack of
predictability may result in unwanted tooth moveitseand can limit the dental professional's abtlitestimate the duration of
treatment. Because most orthodontic treatmentriieed on a fixed price basis, extended treatrderdtion reduces
profitability for the dental professional.

. Physical demands on dental professiondlhe manipulation of wires and brackets requitetaned manual dexterity and vis
acuity, and may place other physical burdens orémal professional.

. Root resorption The sustained high levels of force associatel tréditional treatment can result in root resanptiwhich is &
shortening of tooth roots. This shortening can hauestantial adverse periodontal consequencekdqpatient.

. Emergencies. At times, braces need to be repaired or replaceah emergency basis. Such emergencies causfcsigni
inconvenience to both the patient and the dentfepsional.

Due to the poor aesthetics, discomfort @ther limitations of braces, relatively few peopligh malocclusion elect traditional orthodontic
treatment. Accordingly, we believe there is a lagenet need for an orthodontic system that addsebsse patient concerns. We also believe
there is an unmet need among dental professiooiatstfeatment system that increases the predityedoid efficiency of treatment and
enhances practice profitability.

The Align Solution

Invisalign is a proprietary system for tieg malocclusion. The Invisalign system is comgdi®f several phases, the principal steps of
which are the creation of digital treatment plasmg proprietary software known as ClinCheck, drarhanufacturing of customized Invisal
aligners.

Orthodontic diagnosis and transmissionretment data to us. In an initial patient visit, the dental professl determines whether
Invisalign is an appropriate treatment. The deptafessional then prepares a treatment data paceidaigl consists of a polyvinyl-siloxane, or
PVS impression of the relevant dental arches, s-tdyhe patient's dentition, photographs of thiepg a bite impression depicting the
relationship between the patient's upper and lalgetal arches and an Invisalign treatment planfong, or prescription. The impression is a
critical component of the Invisalign system asdpitts the three-dimensional geometry of the psi¢eeth and hence forms the basis for our
computer models and subsequent molds and aligherisnpression requires the patient to bite intdstous material. This material hardens,
capturing the shape of the patient's teeth. Thecpipgion is also a critical component of the Ilign system, describing the desired positions
and movement of the patient's teeth. The dentdépsmnal sends the treatment data to our fadilitjuarez, Mexico. Manufacturing services
are currently provided by International ManufaatgrSolutions Operaciones, S.R.L., or IMS, a thidyshelter services provider in Juarez,
Mexico. On December 22, 2008, we notified IMS of miention to terminate this shelter services ragement effective April 2009. At that
time, we will become a direct manufacturer of ol@ac aligners at the facility in Juarez, Mexico.

Preparation of three-dimensional computedels of the patient's initial malocclusion.Upon receipt, we use the treatment data to
construct digital models of the patient's dentitidsing computed
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tomography, known as CT scanning, we scan the B\ff8eission to develop a digital, thréenensional computer model of the patient's cur
dentition. We then transmit this initial computeodel together with the dental professional's pipson and supplemental materials
electronically to our facilities in San Jose, Cditea.

Preparation of computer-simulated treatmamd viewing of treatment using ClinCheckln Costa Rica, we transform this initial digjita
model into a proposed customized, three-dimensimeatment plan that simulates appropriate toothem®nt in a series of two-week
increments. This simulated treatment plan, callBdCheck, is an internally developed and proprigtaymputer modeling program that allows
dental professionals to diagnose and plan treasrfentheir patients. This ClinCheck simulatiorntien reviewed for adherence to prescribed
clinical treatment and quality standards. Upon cletign of the review, the patient's ClinCheck isrirmade available to the prescribing dental
professional via Virtual Invisalign Practice (VIR)r proprietary customer interfacing software glpnvhich is available on our websites
located atvww.invisalign.comandwww.aligntech.com The dental professional then reviews the Clin®red can either accept the proposed
treatment or request modifications and adjustmenti satisfied with the treatment plan. ClinChedlows the dental professional to view this
threedimensional simulation with a high degree of maigation and from any angle. Accordingly, ClinChemiables the dental professione
project tooth movement with a level of accuracy pratviously possible with metal arch wires and kess. By reviewing and amending the
treatment simulation, the dental professional nstaontrol over the treatment plan and, thus ppéies in the customized design of the
aligners. At this point, the dental professionalymabso invite the patient to view the ClinCheclatraent plan, allowing the patient to see the
projected course of treatment. The dental profess®final approval of the proposed ClinChecktireent engages us to manufacture the
corresponding molds and aligners.

Construction of molds corresponding to eatdp of treatment. Upon the dental professional's approval ofGlirCheck simulation, we
use the data underlying the simulation, in conjiamctvith stereolithography technology, to constraceries of molds depicting the future
position of the patient's teeth. Each mold is dicef the patient's teeth at each two-week stddbe simulated course of treatment. IMS
currently manufactures the molds and then useg timedds to fabricate the patient's aligners. Agedtabove, in April 2009, we will become a
direct manufacturer of our clear aligners at thalifs in Juarez, Mexico.

Manufacture of aligners and shipment todkatal professional. From these molds, aligners are fabricated bgsure-forming
polymeric sheets over each mold. Aligners are enstanufactured, thin, clear plastic, removable dlegyppliances that are manufactured in a
series to correspond to each two-week stage dflih€heck simulation. Aligners are customized tof@en the treatment prescribed for an
individual patient by dental professionals usingiCheck. Each aligner covers a patient's teethisndarly invisible when worn. Aligners are
commonly worn in pairs, over the upper and lowertdearches. Aligners are generally worn for consige two-week periods which
correspond to the approved ClinCheck treatmentlsitiom. After two weeks of use, the patient reptatteem with the next pair in the series,
advancing the teeth movement with each aligneestalis process is repeated until the final aligreee used and treatment is complete. When
treating with Invisalign Full, Invisalign Expresadlinvisalign Teen, aligners are manufactured aed telivered to the dental professionals in
a single shipment. For Invisalign Assist, alignanrs manufactured in batches based on a progressigaeature integrated into Invisalign
Assist. When the progress tracking feature is sete@ligners are shipped to the dental profeskafter every nine stages. In certain cases,
dental professionals may use Invisalign in conjiomctvith tooth-colored attachments bonded to théepds teeth. These attachments are used
to increase the force applied to a tooth or teettircumstances where the aligners alone may hiffieutty in effecting the desired movement.
In certain cases, we provide an aliglike-template to the dental professionals to agpgtacement of bonding attachments to the patitzeth
Also, in cases where interproximal reduction, dr /%
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requested by the dental professional, we providéBntreatment form, quantifying the amount of spicbe created through enamel reduc
location, and timing of IPR.

Retention. Upon completion of the treatment, the patieay e prescribed our single clear retainer produour Vivera retainer
product. New Vivera retainers are shipped evergahmonths over the one year period.

Our Products
Our revenues are generated from the saleedbllowing product offerings.

Invisalign Full. Commercial sales of Invisalign Full commenaethie U.S. in July 1999. Our traditional, Invisaligull is intended to t
used as a complete treatment for a broad rangealmiceiusions. Each treatment plan is unique tarttividual patient and will consist of as
many aligners as indicated by ClinCheck in ordeadbieve the doctor's treatment goals. For In\gsdhull, aligners are manufactured and then
delivered to the dental professionals in a singlpraent. In fiscal 2008, approximately 85% of oet revenues were generated by the sale of
Invisalign Full.

Invisalign Express. In the third quarter of 2005, we launched Ialign Express, a lowesest solution for less complex orthodontic ce
Invisalign Express is a dual arch orthodontic tresit for cases that meet certain predeterminedtalinriteria and consist of up to ten sets of
aligners. Invisalign Express is intended to help@ader range of patients elect orthodontic treatrbg providing a lower-cost option for adult
relapse cases, for minor crowding and spacings @r pre-cursor to restorative or cosmetic treatmgmth as veneers. For Invisalign Express,
aligners are manufactured and then delivered taémeal professionals in a single shipment.

Retention. In addition to our traditional single retain@oduct, in January 2008, we launched Vivera retainwhere we deliver a new
replacement retainer to orthodontic patients etterye months for one year. Vivera retainers arelywed using the same proprietary
technology and material as the Invisalign alignars] offer an effective, aesthetic retention sotlufor both Invisalign and non-Invisalign
patients.

Invisalign Teen. In July 2008, we launched Invisalign Teen teetrtbe specific needs of the non-adult comprehensiveen treatment
market. Invisalign Teen includes features suchnaaligner wear indicator to help gauge patient diampe and specially engineered aligner
features to address lingual root control issuesthachatural eruption of key teeth common in teatiepts. Predominantly marketed to
orthodontists who treat the vast majority of malosion in teen patients, these features are intttmleneet the treatment needs of those
younger patients. As part of Invisalign Teen, welide up to six free individual replacement alignéuring active treatment to cover poten
aligner loss. For Invisalign Teen, aligners (otthem the replacement aligners) are manufacturedreerddelivered to the dental professionals
in a single shipment.

Invisalign Assist. In October 2008, we launched Invisalign Asdistisalign Assist is designed specifically for GMso want an
integrated approach to selecting, monitoring anifiing Invisalign cases. Intended to help newdjred and low volume GPs accelerate the
adoption and frequency of use of Invisalign inteithpractice, Invisalign Assist is intended to métkeasier for GPs to select appropriate cases
for their experience level or treatment approaabnst cases more efficiently and manage appointsneith suggested tasks. In addition, new
progress tracking features allow GPs to submit mepressions every nine stages. When the prograskitig feature is selected, aligners are
shipped to the dental professional after every stages. We believe Invisalign Assist will help GiRgease their confidence in prescribing
Invisalign treatment.
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Proprietary software mentioned in this AahReport on Form 10-K such as ClinCheck and VIRt(al Invisalign Practice) are included
as part of the Invisalign system and are not sefragately nor do they contribute as individual geshrevenue.

Ancillary and Other. The remaining net revenues are generated yrigefees and sales of ancillary products, suctieasning material
and adjusting tools used by dental professionalmduhe course of treatment.

Benefits of Invisalign

We believe that Invisalign provides bergefi dental professionals and patients that hawv@dltential to establish Invisalign as the
preferred alternative to traditional braces.

Benefits to the dental professional

. Ability to visualize treatment and likely outcomeSlinCheck enables dental professionals to predesurse of treatment and
the likely outcome of treatment in an interactikieee-dimensional computer model. ClinCheck alloestdl professionals to
analyze multiple treatment alternatives beforeciilg the course of action they feel is most appabe for the patient.

. Begin using Invisalign with minimal additional trang. The biomechanical principles that underlie tresttrwith the
Invisalign system are consistent with those ofitiaclal orthodontics. Dental professionals can clatgour initial training in
one day. We provide additional clinical supportdeling the initial training and encourage dentaifpssionals to attend
continuing education classes, seminars and worlsshop

. Expanded patient bas We believe that Invisalign has the potentialremsform the practice of orthodontics. Currer
approximately 2.1 million people annually elecatraent by orthodontists in the U.S. As of Decen8ier2008, our share of the
2.1 million case starts is approximately 3 percénir market research indicates that the vast ntgjofipeople with
malocclusion who desire treatment do not eleciticadhl treatment because of its many limitationg believe that since
Invisalign addresses the primary limitations ofdas adults, who are particularly sensitive tolast limitations of traditional
treatment, will be more likely to seek treatment Werefore believe that Invisalign will allow dehprofessionals to attract
patients who would not otherwise seek orthodoméatment. In addition, as the primary care provi@H®s have access to a
greater number of patients than orthodontists arsdgss a unique opportunity to introduce Invisadigd expand their practice
and patient base.

. Practice productivity We believe that as dental professionals movehiglaer volume of Invisalign patients, they will able tc
better leverage their existing resources, includitadf time and office space resulting in an inseem daily patient appointments
and practice productivity.

Benefits to the Patient

. Excellent aesthetic: Aligners are nearly invisible when worn, signéfitly reducing the aesthetic concerns associattd
traditional braces.

. Comfort. By replacing the s-week adjustment cycle of traditional braces witl-week stages, aligners move teeth
gently. Also, aligners are thin, smooth and lovpiofile. As a result, aligners are more comfortadid less abrasive than
traditional braces.
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. Improved oral hygiene.Patients can remove aligners for tasks that iffieudt with traditional braces, such as eatingy$hing
and flossing. We believe this feature has the piatieto reduce tooth decay and periodontal damagig treatment, which may
result from traditional braces.

. Potentially reduced overall treatment timéligners control force by distributing it broadbyer the exposed surfaces of the
teeth. In addition, the ClinCheck simulation frorhieh aligners are produced is designed to redutgamded and unnecessary
tooth movements. Together, these factors may reoveell treatment time relative to traditional tea.

. Potentially reduced root resorptionWe believe that controlling force and shortentigtment time has the potential to reduce
the incidence of root resorption, which is the koeavn or destruction of root structure.

. Reduced incidence of emergenci€kypically, a lost or broken aligner is simply kaped with the next aligner in the treatment
series, minimizing inconvenience to both the patéerd the dental professional.

We believe that these benefits will protteagtive to people who currently do not seek treatt because of the limitations of traditional
braces.

Limitations of Invisalign

In some instances, the Invisalign systery heve certain limitations relative to traditiotiedatment. Aligners cost more to produce than
traditional braces, and we charge dental profeatsamore than they generally pay for the supplssgin traditional treatment. Depending on
the individual pricing policies of each dental psdional and the treatment selected, the coswiddiign treatment to the patient may be
greater than for traditional braces. Dental pratessls must also incorporate our manufacturingeyiches into their overall treatment plan.
Once a dental professional submits a case to e th generally a turn-around time of a month orenbefore the corresponding aligners are
delivered. Aligners may not be appropriate forcalles, such as severe malocclusion, which mayreegliginers to be used in combination v
traditional braces for optimal results. In additibecause aligners are removable, treatment usingalign depends on patients wearing their
aligners as recommended. Some patients may experéetemporary period of adjustment to wearingnalig that may mildly affect speech. In
some instances, patients have experienced scrabchedated gums, cheeks and lips and in some irstances allergic reactions have
occurred. We believe that these limitations areegally outweighed by the many benefits of Invisaltg both patients and dental professior

Our Target Market and Patient Base

Approximately 2.1 million people annuallge treatment by orthodontists in the U.S., ofethapproximately 1.2 million have mild to
moderate malocclusion and are applicable to Inigeal-our served market. Twenty-six percent of thestents, or approximately
300 thousand, have mature dentition (adults anera&kns), with fully-erupted second molars andstaurttially completed jaw growth. Seventy-
four percent, or approximately 850 thousand, haupteng dentition (non-adult comprehensive, or ygemteens), with partiallgrupted secor
molars, cuspid and second bicuspid teeth. As oEBer 31, 2008, our share of the 2.1 million céasdssis approximately 3% and
approximately 6% of the 1.2 million patients of @@rved market.

Our market research indicates that the ritgjof people with malocclusion who desire treatiforgo treatment rather than elect
traditional treatment due to its many limitatiokiée believe that since Invisalign addresses thegmirfimitations of braces, adults, who are
particularly sensitive to aesthetic limitationstigditional treatment, will be more likely to setegatment and therefore represent our most
immediate market expansion opportunity. With thenlgh of Invisalign Teen in July

9
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2008, we now offer a product designed to meet #ezls of the non-adult comprehensive, or younger, teeatment market. Even though we
have not previously marketed our product to treainger patients, approximately 18% of our totakcstarts since 2007 were with individuals
younger than 19. Launching Invisalign Teen makedmatment more applicable to an orthodontistteepibase, which we believe w

provide us the opportunity to increase our penietndhto and our share of the teen treatment market

Published market data for GPs providingtireent for malocclusion is limited, however, asphienary care provider, GPs have access to a
greater number of patients than orthodontists arsdgss a unique opportunity to introduce Invisadigd expand their practice and patient t
We believe GPs represent a significant market esiparopportunity.

As of December 31, 2008, approximately 888 patients worldwide have started treatment ukiagalign. The Invisalign system is sold
in North America, Europe, Asia Pacific, Latin Aneaiand Japan. International sales accounted for 27% and 16% of our net revenues in
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. A geographiakatewn of our net revenues is summarized in NoteéSEgments and Geographic
Information” in the Notes to our Consolidated FiciahStatements. We operate as one reportable segrtige design, development,
manufacturing and marketing of Invisalign, a prepary method for treating malocclusion, or the tigsement of teeth.

No single customer accounted for 10% oreajrour total net revenues in 2008, 2007 and 2006.
Business Strategy

Our goal is to establish Invisalign as skendard method for treating malocclusion ultimatkiving increased product adoption by dental
professionals by focusing on the following four lahjectives: driving product innovation, enhancihg customer experience, generating
consumer demand and expanding our internationdtetsar

Product innovation and enhancements tatiegigproducts. We believe that product performance and inriouds a cornerstone to our
future long-term goal to drive and sustain produdiption. Until 2008, the Invisalign system wasmgle offering used by our primary
channels—GPs and orthodontists—each with distindtsseparate needs. In 2008, we launched additwodlcts to better meet those distinct
needs. Specifically, orthodontists want a more sbiet of tools for greater predictability, widg@pécability and more flexibility in the use of
the Invisalign system. On the other hand, typicBs®@vant greater ease of use, more efficient anglgied diagnostic tools, guidance through
the case set-up process, minimal treatment intéioreand self-help tools designed to simplify treant of cases of mild to moderate
malocclusion. Based on this knowledge, in July 20@8announced the release of Invisalign Teen,qgméaantly marketed to the orthodontist.
In October 2008, we announced the release of lligisAssist, predominantly marketed to the GP.

With the introduction of Invisalign Teeryrdnvisalign product family now includes a proddetsigned to meet the specific needs of the
non-adult comprehensive or younger teen markeiséfign Teen features include an aligner wear iaihicto help gauge patient compliance
and specially engineered aligner features to addtesnatural eruption of key teeth and linguat mmmtrol. Predominantly marketed to
orthodontists who treat the vast majority of malosion in teen patients, these features make ieeasd more efficient for orthodontists to
treat those younger patients. The launch of a $pewific product makes the Invisalign system memieable to an orthodontist's patient base,
which we believe will increase our penetration iata@ our share of the teen treatment market owex. tiWe expect that orthodontists will adopt
Invisalign Teen slowly, after they experience npléisuccessful treatment outcomes. As a resulgitieipate that Invisalign Teen volume n
increase gradually and will not constitute a siigaifit portion of our total product mix in the nearm.
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Our most recently launched product, InvigalAssist, is intended to help newly-trained amd volume Invisalign GPs accelerate the
adoption and frequency of use of Invisalign inteithpractice. Invisalign Assist features are inthtb make it easier for doctors to select
appropriate cases for their experience level @ttnent approach. In addition, GPs can plan and guases efficiently, manage appointments
with suggested tasks, and receive batch shipmémigaers based on treatment progress. We beliexisalign Assist will help GPs increase
their confidence in prescribing Invisalign treatrhen

We believe continuing to introduce new prcts and product features as well as enhancinggéeexperience will keep us at the forefront
of the market and increase adoption of Invisaligme recent launch of Invisalign Teen and Invisakgssist and other future products will rely
on new features, tools and delivery options to mspetific clinical demands while providing a familfyend-toend solutions for our custome
Enhanced product performance and innovation shoartinue to drive the adoption and frequency of(uwdeat we call utilization). Although
we believe new product introduction to be a cortoers to our future long-term growth, we expect tdption of these new products will
increase gradually over a number of years.

Enhancing the customer experiencalVe are committed to enhancing the customerrequee by focusing on specific customer "touch
points", or areas where we interact directly witin oustomers. Specifically, we are focused on imipig our pre-selection process in order to
attract new doctors that are motivated to becomisdtign providers and committed to making Invigale key part of their practices and
strengthening our training programs in order taeéase the rate that these newly trained custornbraisinvisalign cases, as well as increase
the rate that they move up the adoption curvetimately become leading Invisalign providers, oraivtve call promoters.

. Improving Training Programs.Increasing the number of Invisalign trained deetnd ensuring that these doctors are confident
in using the Invisalign system is a key driver tosvaur ultimate goal of increasing product adoptdfe continuously update
our training programs to address the needs of astomers. For instance, we developed a pre-tratongse intended to
familiarize doctors with the Invisalign system prio attending the full training course. In additiave recently updated our
initial training program by focusing on Invisalidsssist, instead of Invisalign Full, since we bednvisalign Assist is the right
product for newly trained GPs. We anticipate thatibing Invisalign Assist, newly trained GPs wiitehis initial training
program with increased confidence in prescribingdalign treatment. We have also incorporated tivéshlign technique into
the curriculum of 38 university programs. By edirgdental students and orthodontic residents erbénefits of the Invisalign
technique, we believe they will be more likely &euthis technology in their future practices arfdrahvisalign as a treatment
option.

. Moving from Invisalign provider to a leading Invigm provider. Once a doctor is trained, our goal is to ashistdoctor tc
move up the adoption curve to ultimately becomeaaling Invisalign provider, or a promoter. In orttemcrease the number of
Invisalign promoters, we provide additional sergite help our customers increase their confidenesing the Invisalign
system through continuing education and clinicalpsut as well as improving their practice managerskifis. In early 2008,
we announced the introduction of the Aligntechitast program (vww.aligntechinstitute.cof which is an interactive website
that provides clinical education and practice deperlent training. These clinical education and praalevelopment training
opportunities include instructor-led training clessseminars and workshops, conference calls, \asbedwideos, case studies,
and other clinical resources. Many of these couasésresources are eligible for continuing educaf{oE) credits. Additionally,
our VIP portal (Virtual Invisalign Practice) prowd our trained doctors and their staff accessdostinds of Invisalign cases ¢
best practices as well as up-to-date support irdtion, programs and marketing materials for cortirsusupport and
information access. Lastly, as trained Invisalign
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providers grow their case starts with Invisaligmpgrams such as the Advantage Program providedtieeaefits including
volume rebates, dedicated clinical support anceanprm website position on the Invisalign Doctor atmr website to those
leading providers. By participating in these pragsaand the various events and educational offeringdelieve that our
customers will emerge with a better understandirth® product and its applicability, and with aaper aptitude for starting and
finishing Invisalign cases successfully.

Consumer demand generation for Invisalignviarketing to the consumer and creating demarmhe of our key strategic objectives to
driving long-term growth. Our market research iadis that the majority of people with malocclusidm desire treatment forgo treatment
rather than elect traditional treatment due tongy limitations, such as compromised aesthetidsoaal discomfort. By communicating the
benefits of Invisalign to both dental professioreisl consumers, we intend to increase the numhaat@nts who seek treatment using
Invisalign. Historically, our marketing programsviesbeen directed to an adult audience, howeveh, thé introduction of Invisalign Teen, we
will for the first time direct our communicationfefts directly to teens and their parents. Desjpigecontinuing challenges in the U.S. economy
and weak consumer spending, we believe that constdemeand creation is a key component to our longr-growth. As a result, we will
continue to invest in efforts to increase consuaveaireness of Invisalign through a variety of mexidets. We will continue to drive consun
demand among the adult population through ourtitadil TV advertising, as well as digital online diee In 2009, we will focus our efforts on
the introduction of a new public relations progriominvisalign Teen intended to access print, T\ anline media. We also have a teen
specific website and will increasingly leverage géts, social media and blogs to directly targetsee

Growth of international markets. We will continue to focus our efforts towardsiieasing adoption of Invisalign by dental profesais
in our key international markets, Europe and JapBanilar to the domestic market, our objective inggionally is to increase the number of
doctors that are motivated to becoming an Invisatippvider and committed to making Invisalign a leyt of their practices. Through
December 31, 2008, we have trained over 14,000danqgiredominantly orthodontists in core Europe,gimary international market. Prodi
line expansion is key to providing doctors a solutihat addresses a wider range of potential gatieeds with greater treatment flexibility. In
October 2008, we launched Invisalign Express iroperexpanding our international product offeringsEurope, the vast majority of
orthodontic case starts are children and teens$ W& introduction of Invisalign Teen in Europearmmed for mid-2009, we expect the
addressable market for our product to expand anmdately increase adoption. In addition, we wiltrgaon our efforts to increase brand
awareness and consumer demand in Europe by corgiour consumer advertising campaign that waslérsiched in March 2007.
Additionally, although the vast majority of our@nhational revenues are from direct sales, apprabdiy 9% of our international sales are
through distributors covering smaller internatiomedrkets, specifically Asia Pacific and Latin Anoexi We will consider selling through
distributors in other smaller or less strategic kets as well as consider expanding directly intdithwhal countries on a case-by-case basis.
With these efforts, we expect our internationakrases to continue to increase in absolute dolladisaa a percentage of total net revenues |
foreseeable future. In 2008, our internationalsalereased from 17% of net revenues to 21% ofew@nues, an increase of approximately
34%.

Manufacturing

To produce our highly customized, highlggse, medical quality products in volume, we hd&eeloped a number of proprietary
processes and technologies. These technologieslancbmplex software solutions, CT scanning, stighegraphy and automated aligner
fabrication.

Manufacturing administration is locatedSanta Clara, California; however, our manufactufadilities are located outside of the U.S, in
San Jose, Costa Rica and Juarez, Mexico. As of
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December 31, 2008, our manufacturing and operasitaf§in the U.S. and Costa Rica consisted of g@aple. At our facility in Costa Rica,
technicians use a sophisticated, internally devedagpmputer-modeling program to prepare digitattreent plans. Upon acceptance of the
treatment plan by the dental professional, theaespére then transmitted electronically to Judvkxico. These digital files form the basis of
ClinCheck and are used to manufacture SLA (stetesgraphy) aligner molds. Our order acquisitionragiens, the manufacturing of aligner
molds and aligners, as well as the packaging ampar&mnt of aligners, are currently conducted byrmaéional Manufacturing Solutions
Operaciones, S.R.L., or IMS, a third party shedenwices provider in Juarez, Mexico. On DecembeRR8, we notified IMS of our intention
to terminate IMS' shelter services arrangementttfe April 2009. At that time, we will become aelit manufacturer of our clear aligners at
the facility in Juarez, Mexico. Upon the completmfrthis transition, we will directly employ apprioxately 500 people in Mexico, each of
whom is currently employed by IMS. Information regjag risks associated with our manufacturing psscend foreign operations may be
found in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 104Kder the heading "Risk Factors."

We rely on two vendors who are each the source of the polymer and resin used in our natuifing process. In the event that eithe
these vendors becomes unable for any reason tdysugpvith their respective products, we would eigrece a manufacturing disruption while
we qualify and obtain an alternate source.

Throughput Management

Because we manufacture each case on atbudter basis, we must conservatively build mantifring capacity for anticipated demand.
To increase throughput, we must improve the efficjeand increase the scale of our manufacturinggases.

In order to increase the efficiency of auanufacturing processes, we focus our efforts dmvaoe development and the improvement of
rate-limiting processes, or bottlenecks. We comtitouupgrade our proprietary, three-dimensionalttnent-planning software to enhance
computer analysis of treatment data and to redoeedpent on manual and judgmental tasks for eash, ¢hereby increasing the efficiency of
our technicians in Costa Rica. We are also comintiie development of automated systems for theécttion and packaging of aligners
manufactured in Juarez, Mexico. In order to scalenvanufacturing capacity, we expect that we walitinue to invest in capital equipment.

Quality Assurance

Align's quality system is in compliance lwiood & Drug Administration's Medical Device regtibns, 21CFR Part 820, and Health
Canada's Medical Device Regulations. We are ceditifdo EN 1SO 13485:2003, internationally recognigethdards for Medical Device
manufacturing and of the Council of Canada. We teaf@mal, documented quality system by which gualbjectives are defined, understood
and achieved. Systems, processes and procedurespeeented to ensure high levels of product ardise quality. We monitor the
effectiveness of the quality system based on iatetata and direct customer feedback and strieemdinually improve our systems and
processes, taking corrective action, as needed.

Since we custom manufacture aligners ouila{to-order basis, we do not offer refunds on our prasluBecause each ClinCheck and ¢
aligner is unique, we inspect the product at varipaints during the manufacturing process, to enthat the product meets our customers'
expectations. Aligners are subject to the Invigafjgoduct warranty, which covers defects in mate@dad workmanship. Our materials and
workmanship warranty is in force until the Invigglicase is completed. In the event aligners fahiwithe scope of the Invisalign product
warranty, we will replace the aligners at our exgeerOur warranty is contingent upon proper usé@fdigners for the
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purposes for which they are intended. If a patidrmtoses not to wear the aligners, and as a resgliests additional Invisalign treatment, the
dental professional pays the additional expensbeofeplacement aligners. Warranty treatment requtrat the dental professional submit new
impressions of the patient's dentition to us. Weethg impressions to create a new ClinCheck tregtpian for the dental professional to
approve, from which a successive series of aligndtde produced that will allow the patient tmih treatment.

The Invisalign product warranty does natvidle any assurances regarding the outcome ofriegdtusing Invisalign. Actual treatment
results may deviate significantly from the appro@uhCheck treatment plan. Deviations not coveredar warranty have typically been the
result of unpredictable biological factors, suctvasations in bone density or tooth topography abdormal jaw growth.

Sales and Marketing

We market Invisalign by communicating Iralign's benefits to dental professionals throught@ining programs, mail campaigns, trade
shows, trade journals and print media, and to amessi through a nationwide advertising campaigneBam our experience with advertising
and commercial sales, we believe that making coessigware of Invisalign as a new treatment alter@@enerates significant demand for
Invisalign. In order to serve anticipated demane,continue to train a broad base of dental projesss.

Professional Marketing

Our sales and support staff has been edgagearketing Invisalign to orthodontists sincéyJ1999. In 2001, we began marketing
Invisalign to GPs in our North American market. @&<December 31, 2008 our North American sales argdinn consisted of 161 people, of
which 134 were direct sales representatives antle2é sales administration and management. Intemelty, we had 41 people engaged in
sales and sales support as of December 31, 20080o¥ifimually evaluate cost effective ways to suppar customers in smaller markets. For
instance, during 2007, we transitioned the salesioproducts in part of the Asia Pacific and Latimerican regions to a distributor model."'
will consider selling through a distributor in ottemaller markets as well as consider expandirgctir into additional countries on a case-by-
case basis.

We provide training, marketing and clinisabport to orthodontists and GPs in the U.S. aab@a, which we consider our North
American market, and internationally. As of Decenib®, 2008, we had trained 55,510 dental profesdsomorldwide to use Invisalign. Of
those trained dental professionals, approximaté® are dental professionals in our North Americamkat. Within our North American
market, we have trained 8,670 orthodontists an@6E2GPs cumulatively through the end of 2008.

Invisalign relies on the same orthodontiagiples that apply to traditional treatment. Gafes and orthodontic teams conduct training
primarily in a workshop format. The key topics coeain training include Invisalign applicabilitynstructions on filling out the Invisalign
treatment form, clinical tips and techniques, gaimkon pricing and instructions on interacting vathr ClinCheck software and the many other
features of our website.

After doctors complete their training, satepresentatives may follow up with the dentafgssional to ensure that their staff is prepared
to handle Invisalign cases. These practice devedopactivities may include assisting the dentafggsional in taking dental impressions,
treatment planning processes and familiarizing titn our dental online portals and tools. Salgsesentatives may also provide practice-
building assistance, including helping the dentafgssional to market Invisalign to prospectiveigats through direct mail or other forms of
media. Many dental professionals have commencengtional activity in their local region with oursistance.
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Consumer Marketing

Our experience indicates that prospectatéepts seek information from six primary sources:

. an orthodontist;

. a GP;

. consumer marketing and advertisii

. our website, which can be accessed at eithvew.invisalign.conor www.aligntech.com;
. direct-to-consumer mail advertising and publictietss efforts; and

. other Invisalign patient:

In 2009, we expect higher marketing spegpdinEurope with a focus on consumer advertisingluiding television and print media to rs
the profile of Invisalign and drive more consumgrsur most experienced doctors. We will continuéntur additional costs related to
commercialization and launch of new products tokagin the United States and Europe.

Research and Development

Our research and development effort is $eduon extending the range of dental applicalilitinvisalign, enhancing the software used in
the manufacturing process and enhancing our Irgisalystem product lines, including the developnwrdistinct product platforms for
the GPs and orthodontists such as Invisalign Assidtinvisalign Teen. Our research and developmgmenses were $26.2 million for 2008,
$25.7 million for 2007, and $18.5 million for 2006.

In an effort to demonstrate Invisalign'sdu treatment capabilities, various clinical cdselies and articles have been published that
highlight the applicability of Invisalign to maldesion cases, including those of severe compleXitg.are also undertaking post-marketing
studies and making additional technological improgats to the product and manufacturing processnéstioned in our Business Strategy,
are making investments in the development of newdyets and enhancements of existing products ta theaeeds of our customers and
increase adoption and utilization of Invisalign.

Intellectual Property

We believe our intellectual property pasitrepresents a substantial business advantagd.Pecember 31, 2008, we had 118 issued
patents, 181 pending U.S. patent applications namgerous foreign issued patents, as well as peridieggn patent applicationSee Item 3
“Legal Proceedings" for a discussion on ReexamimeRroceedings pending with the United States Rated Trademark Office.

We continue to pursue further intellectoiaperty protection through U.S. and foreign patglications and non-disclosure agreements.
We also seek to protect our software, documentati@hother written materials under trade secretcapgright laws. We cannot be certain t
patents will be issued as a result of any pateplicgiion or that patents that have been issue tor that may be issued in the future will be
found to be valid and enforceable and sufficieinmect our technology or products. Our intelletfproperty rights may not be successfully
asserted in the future or may be invalidated, ameented or challenged. In addition, the laws ofoauss foreign countries where Invisalign is
distributed do not protect our intellectual propeights to the same extent as U.S. laws. Our litald protect our proprietary information
could harm our business. Information regardingsria@&sociated with failing to protect our proprigtichnology and our intellectual property
rights may be found in Item 1A of this Annual Refjpan Form 10-K under the heading "Risk Factors."
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Seasonal Fluctuations

Seasonal fluctuations in the number of diccin their offices and available to take appoiris have affected, and are likely to contint
affect, our business. Specifically, our customdtsrotake vacation or are on holiday during the simmonths and therefore tend to start fe
cases. These seasonal trends have caused anételylldontinue to cause, fluctuations in our qudyteesults, including fluctuations in
sequential revenue growth rates.

Backlog

Due to the nature of our business, we raainelatively low levels of backlog. The periodin which treatment data (or "a case”) is
received until the acceptance of the digital treattplan, or ClinCheck, is dependent on the dgte#essional's discretion to modify, accept or
cancel the treatment plan. Therefore, we consliecase a firm order to manufacture aligners omea@éntal professional has approved
ClinCheck. Our backlog consists of ClinChesgpproved cases, which are generally shipped witlshort period of time. As a result, we bell
that backlog is not a good indicator of future sabnd our quarterly revenues depend largely otirtting of ClinCheck approvals and the
impact on cases shipped in that quarter.

Competition

We compete for the attention of dental @ssfonals with manufacturers of traditional orthtitoappliances (or wires and brackets), wi
include 3M Company, Sybron Dental Specialties ardtBply International, Inc. We also compete disewatith established companies that
manufacture and distribute products that are sirmlase to Invisalign, including the products miawtured and distributed by Ormco
Orthodontics, a division of Sybron Dental Specdgat{a division of Danaher Corporation). $een 3 "Legal Proceedinggbr a summary of ot
litigation with Ormco. In the future, we may faaether competition from early stage and more matorapanies who enter our target markets
to manufacture and distribute products that arélairim use to Invisalign. Information regardinghks associated with increased competition
may be found in Item 1A of this Annual Report onriRdl0-K under the heading "Risk Factors."

We believe that in addition to price, thinpipal competitive factors in the market for atlontic appliances include the following:

. aesthetic appeal of the treatment method;
. effectiveness of treatment;

. customer suppor

. comfort associated with the treatment mett
. oral hygiene;

. ease of use; and

. dental professionals' chair tinr

We believe that Invisalign compares favratith our competitors' products with respect &xle of these factors.
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Government Regulation

FDA's Quality System Regulation for Medidalices. The Invisalign system is classified as a Clagsedical device. In 1998, we
received pre-market clearance from the FDA purstatite 510(k) pre-market notification procedulwing us to market the product in the
U.S. The Invisalign system was originally cleareddse by the FDA in patients with permanent tegtth contraindicated the device for
patients presenting with mixed dentition, severerbite, severe overjet, tooth malocclusion reqgisargical correction, adolescent patients
with a skeletally narrow jaw, and adult patientshwdental prosthetics/implants. In 2008, the FDéackéd new labeling for the Invisalign
system, by removing the permanent dentition liratafrom the indications for use. In addition, eémtconditions previously listed as
contraindications will now be listed as precaution® believe our Invisalign system is in compliaircall material respects with applicable
quality system regulations, record keeping and nt@pmprequirements in the production and distribatof the Invisalign system. Our aligners
are currently manufactured by IMS, a third partgltr services provider based in Juarez, Mexic@ iMregistered with the FDA as a medical
device manufacturer and is certified to ISO 134863under Align's quality management system. Wesladso ensured that our quality sys
procedures and processes have been implementg&ablcomply with the FDA's Quality Systems stamidatMS has dedicated an area in its
facilities and trained personnel in the manufacture distribution of Invisalign. We and IMS are fadb to routine inspections by the FDA and
state agencies to determine compliance with Qu8lstem requirements. We are registered with thee $if California as a medical device
manufacturer. On December 22, 2008, we notified BfISur intention to terminate IMS' shelter sergiegrangement effective April 2009. At
that time, we will become a direct manufactureowf clear aligners at the facility in Juarez, Mexic

If the FDA determines that we or IMS failiedcomply with the applicable FDA regulationsgdn institute a wide variety of enforcement
actions against us, ranging from a public Warniegtér to more severe sanctions, including butinated to financial penalties, withdrawal of
our right to market our products and criminal pmg®n.

Health Canada's Medical Device Regulationdn Canada, we are required to comply with He@lanada's Medical Device Regulations.
Our products are registered with Health Canadab®lieve we are in compliance with their regulatiansl have been granted clearance to
market our products in Canada.

European Union's MDD Requirements & ISO882003. In Europe, Invisalign is regulated as a custlavice and as such, we follow
the requirements of the Medical Device Directiwd® are 1ISO 13485:2003 certified, which facilitatesnmercialization of Invisalign outside
the United States and especially in Europe.

Health Insurance Portability and AccountépiAct of 1996. Under the Health Insurance Portability and Acgability Act of 1996, or
HIPAA, Congress mandated a package of interlockihginistrative simplification rules to establisaralards and requirements for electronic
transmission of certain health information. Confidality of patient records and the circumstancedar which these records may be released
are subject to substantial regulations under tHeAAl Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifie Health Information, referred to as the
Privacy Standard, and other state laws and reguktiThe Privacy Standard governs both the dismosnd the use of confidential patient
medical information. Although compliance is thepassibility of the hospital, physician or other hireare provider, we understand the
importance to our customers and their patientsaihtaining the confidentiality of patient informati. Accordingly, we have designed our
product and service offerings to be consistent withrequirements of the Privacy and Security stedglunder HIPAA and applicable
corresponding state laws and regulations. Mainmgisiystems that are consistent with these lawsegdations is costly and could require
complex changes in the way we do
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business or provide services to our patients. Aalthlly, our success may be dependent on the ssiofdgealthcare participants in dealing v
HIPAA requirements.

Other Federal and State Laws.As a participant in the health care industryase subject to extensive and frequently changigglation
under many other laws administered by governmemitities at the federal, state and local levels)esof which are, and others of which may
be, applicable to our business. We are a medicételenanufacturer subject to U.S. Food and Drug idstration regulations. These
regulations, among other things, require that wantai device and facilities registrations anditigs as well as promote our products as
permitted by our FDA clearances. Furthermore, @aith care service provider customers are alsesuty) a wide variety of laws and
regulations that could affect the nature and s@fkeir relationships with us. Laws regulating noatidevice manufacturers and health care
providers cover a broad array of subjects. For gtanthe confidentiality of patient medical infortizan and the circumstances under which
such information may be used by us, released fdusion in our databases, or released by us td farties, are subject to substantial
regulation by state governments. These state ladsegulations govern both the disclosure and sleeafi confidential patient medical
information and are evolving rapidly. In additigrpvisions under the federal anti-kickback staprhibit, among other things, paying or
offering to pay any remuneration in exchange ferrferral of patients to a person participatinginfor the order, purchase or
recommendation of items or services that are stbjeeimbursement by, Medicare, Medicaid and otfieilar federal or state health care
programs. Most states have also enacted illegalimenation laws that are similar to the federal laWgese laws, which are evolving at the
federal and state levels, are applicable to oanfinel relationships with, and any marketing oreotbromotional activities involving, our dental
professional customers. Violations of any of thiases or regulations could subject us to a varidtyidl and criminal sanctions.

Employees

As of December 31, 2008, we had 1,394 eygas, including 747 in manufacturing and operati@89 in sales and marketing, 137 in
research and development and 171 in general anthisthative functions. We had 503 employees in Nétinerica, 721 employees in Costa
Rica, 160 employees in Europe and 10 employeegpan]

Available Information

Our website is locatedwatvw.aligntech.comand our investor relations website is locateltigt//investor.aligntech.comThe
information on or accessible through our websieasat part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. @mnual Reports on Form 1K; Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8t ,proxy statement on Schedule 14A for our anstakholders' meeting and
amendments to such reports are available, frebarhe, on our investor relations website as sograsnably practicable after we
electronically file or furnish such material withet SEC. Further, a copy of this Annual Report om90-K is located at the SEC's Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, 20649. Information on the operation of the PuR&ference Room can be obtained by
calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maistaiminternet site that contains reports, proxyiafatmation statements and other
information regarding our filings atww.sec.gov
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth certain infation regarding our executive officers as of leaby 26, 2009:

Name Age Position

Thomas M. Presco 53 President and Chief Executive Offic

Kenneth B. Arole 53 Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Off

Dana Cambri 51 Vice President, Research & Development and InfoilonaEechnology

Dan S. Ellis 57 Vice President, North American Sa

Roger E. Georg 43 Vice President, Legal and Corporate Affairs Gen@alinsel and Corporate Secre
Len M. Hedge 51 Senior Vice President, Business Operati

Gil Laks 43 Vice President, Internation

Emory Wright 39 Vice President, Operatiol

Thomas M. Prescoltas served as our President and Chief Executivieddfind as a member of our Board of DirectorsesMarch 200z
Prior to joining us, Mr. Prescott was President @hikf Executive Officer of Cardiac Pathways, Irecpublicly-traded medical device
company, from May 1999 until its acquisition by Bws Scientific in August 2001. Mr. Prescott thenrkesl as a consultant for Boston
Scientific Corporation until January 2002. Priomtorking at Cardiac Pathways, Mr. Prescott heldotsr sales, general management and
executive roles at Nellcor Puritan Bennett, InonfrApril 1994 to May 1999. Mr. Prescott serves diractor of Interventional Rhythm
Management, Inc., a privately held company.

Kenneth B. Aroldas served as our Vice President of Finance anef Emancial Officer since December 2007. He joineds Vice
President of Finance and Corporate Controller igust 2005. Prior to joining us, Mr. Arola served fourteen years at Adaptec, Inc, an
electronic data storage equipment company, wheteltkevarious senior finance management positimast recently as Vice President of
Finance and Corporate Controller. His experiense aicludes positions of increasing responsibifityarious financial roles at Varian
Associates and Cooper Labs.

Dana C. Cambraur Vice President, Research & Development andiimétion Technology has been with Align since Jud@&2 Prior to
joining us, Mr. Cambra served as Senior Vice PeggidResearch and Development for Pharsight Cdiipara provider of simulation ar
modeling software for pharmaceutical and biotechgplcompanies from March 2007 to June 2008. Poidnig role at Pharsight, Mr. Cambra
was Vice President, Engineering at Stentor Inmgdical image and information management softwereiger from October 2002 to Febru
2006. Earlier roles included executive engineednd operations positions at Visto Corporation &aibe, Inc. Mr. Cambra also spent several
years in positions of increasing responsibilitpatison Corporation, now a Siemens Comp:

Dan S. Ellishas served as our Vice President, North AmericdesSance June 2005. Prior to joining us, Mr. BNis Vice President,
Sales for privately-held BARRx Medical, a medicaltte company, from September 2004 to June 20@%n Bune 1999 to May 2004,
Mr. Ellis was at Fusion Medical Technologies, aiglon of Baxter Healthcare, most recently as VioesRient, BioSurgery US. From January
1998 to June 1999, Mr. Ellis served as Vice Pregjdgales & Marketing for Cardiac Pathways, Inaliéain his career, Mr. Ellis held natior
sales positions of increasing scope and respoitgiatlFusion Medical Technologies and Eli Lilly NIGuidant Corporation.

Roger E. Georghas served as our Vice President, Legal and Campéiféairs, General Counsel and Corporate Secrefiange July 2002
Prior to joining us, Mr. George was the Chief FiciahOfficer, Vice President of Finance and Legé#fiaiks and General Counsel of SkyStream
Networks, &
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privately held broadband and broadcast networkmment company. Prior to SkyStream, Mr. George waartmer at Wilson Sonsini
Goodrich & Rosati, P.C. in Palo Alto, California.

Len M. Hedgéas served as our Senior Vice President, Businpssaflons since December 2007. He joined us a¥ioerPresident, of
Manufacturing in January 1999 and was our Vice iBegd, of Operations from March 2002 to Decembd¥72@rior to joining us, Mr. Hedge
served as Vice President of Operations for Plyediixpress Corporation, a rapid-prototyping andestéhography services supplier, from
December 1996 to December 1998. From October 1®8ktember 1996, Mr. Hedge worked at Beckman Ingnts Corporation as Manay
for Prototype Manufacturing and Process Development

Gil Lakshas served as our Vice President, Internationakseptember 2005, and served as our Vice Presamtpe since June 2001.
Prior to joining us, Mr. Laks was Vice PresidentisBiess Development for the diagnostic imagingsitivi of Singapore Technologies, from
November 1999 to May 2001. He also served as irexftinternational for ISIX, Ltd., an educatio@mputing services firm, from Octob
1996 to October 1999.

Emory M. Wrighthas served as our Vice President, Operations §ircember 2007. He has been with us since March,2000
predominantly in manufacturing and operations rdResviously, Mr. Wright served as Vice Presiddanufacturing and most recently was
General Manager of New Product Development. Pdgoining us, Mr. Wright was Senior Manufacturingaivager at Metrika, Inc. a medical
device manufacturer, from May 1999 to March 200@nfr July 1994 to May 1999, Mr. Wright served as liger of Manufacturing and
Process Development for Metra Biosystems Inc.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

We have only recently returned to profitability. If we fail to sustain or increase profitability or revenue growth in future periods, the
market price for our common stock may decline.

Although we maintained profitability in 280f we are to sustain or increase profitabilityfuture periods, we will need to continue to
increase our revenues, while controlling our expengVhile we generated positive operating cash filo2008, we cannot be certain that we
will be able to achieve positive cash flow from ogi@ns, from period to period, in the future. Besa our business is evolving, it is difficult to
predict our future operating results or levels mfvgth, and we have in the past not been and mé#yeifuture not be able to sustain our
historical growth rates. If we do not increase padility or revenue growth or otherwise meet tipectations of securities analysts or
investors, the market price of our common stock Wkiély decline.

Our financial results have fluctuated in the past ad may fluctuate in the future which may cause voltdity in our stock price.

Our operating results have fluctuated anplst and we expect our future quarterly and dropeaating results to fluctuate as we focus on
increasing doctor and consumer demand for our mtsdirhese fluctuations could cause our stock gdaiecline. Some of the factors that
could cause our operating results to fluctuateuite!

. limited visibility into and difficulty predictingtte level of activity in our customers' practicesnfrquarter to quarte
. weakness in consumer spending as a result ofalelsivn in the United States economy and global ecoes;
. changes in the timing of receipt of case produdéers during a given quarter which, given our cyictee and the delay between

case receipts and case shipments, could have attmp which quarter revenue can be recognized;
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. changes in product mix;

. seasonal fluctuations in the number of doctorfirtoffices and their availability to take appongnts;

. success of marketing programs from quarter to guart

. changes in the timing of when revenue is recognézed result of the introduction of new productshsas Invisalign Assist and
Invisalign Teen;

. changes to our effective tax ra

. unanticipated delays in production caused by ingefit capacity;

. any disruptions in the manufacturing process, iiclg unexpected turnover in the labor force orititieduction of new

production processes or natural or other disabi&ysnd our control,

. the development and marketing of directly compegifproducts by existing and new competitors;

. aggressive price competition from competitors;

. costs and expenditures in connection with litigat

. inaccurate forecasting of revenues, productionathdr operating costs; a

. investments in research and development to devedapproducts and enhancements to Invisalign.

To respond to these and other factors, &g meed to make business decisions that could selyeaffect our operating results such as
modifications to our pricing policy, business sture or operations. Most of our expenses, suchrgdoyee compensation and lease payment
obligations, are relatively fixed in the short tefdhoreover, our expense levels are based, in pardur expectations regarding future revenue
levels. As a result, if our revenues for a paracyderiod fall below our expectations, whether eausy changes in consumer spending,
consumer preferences, weakness in the U.S. orlgiabaomies, changes in customer behavior relatedvertising and prescribing our
product, or other factors, we may be unable tostdjpending quickly enough to offset any shorffallevenues. Due to these and other factors,
we believe that quarter-to-quarter comparisonsuofoperating results may not be meaningful. Yowshaot rely on our results for any one
quarter as an indication of our future performance.

We depend on the sale of the Invisalign system ftine vast majority of our revenues, and any declinen sales of Invisalign for any
reason, including as a result of a decline in genareconomic conditions, or a decline in average $iab prices would adversely affect
revenues, gross margin and net profits.

We expect that revenues from the sale@titisalign system will continue to account foe thast majority of our total revenues for the
foreseeable future. Continued and widespread madatptance of Invisalign by orthodontists, GPs@mrsumers is critical to our future
success. If orthodontists and GPs experience atiedun consumer demand for orthodontic servidasonsumers prove unwilling to adopt
Invisalign as rapidly as we anticipate or in théuwee that we anticipate, if orthodontists or GPsade to use a competitive product rather than
Invisalign or if the average selling price of ouoguct declines, our operating results would beneak. Factors that could cause adoption of
Invisalign at a lower rate than we expect, as aglthe risk related to declining average selliriggsrare described more fully below.
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Consumers may not adopt Invisalign as rapidly asanticipate due to a variety of factors including@ntinued decline in general
economic conditions.

Consumer spending habits are affectedtnpng other things, prevailing economic conditidasels of employment, salaries and wage
rates, gas prices, consumer confidence and conguenezption of economic conditions. A general slowd in the United States economy and
certain international economies or an uncertaimeonuc outlook would adversely affect consumer spemntiabits which may among other
things result in a decrease in the number of overtiodontic case starts or a reduction in the atghfor Invisalign generally either of which
would have a material adverse effect on our saldaerating results. In addition, Invisalign regmets a significant change from traditional
orthodontic treatment, and consumers may be relutdaaccept it or may not find it preferable taditional treatment We have generally
received positive feedback from both orthodonti&RBs and consumers regarding Invisalign as bo#itamative to braces and as a clinical
method for treatment of malocclusion, but a nundfetental professionals believe that Invisaligaggpropriate for only a limited percentage of
their patients. Market acceptance will depend it ppon the recommendations of dental professiomalsvell as other factors including
effectiveness, safety, ease of use, reliabilitgtteetics, greater comfort and hygiene comparedhttitional orthodontic products and price for
Invisalign compared to competing products.

Orthodontists and GPs may not adopt Invisalignuffisient numbers or as rapidly as we anticipate.

Our success depends upon increasing acmepéand frequency of use of the Invisalign systgrdémtal professionals (what we refer to as
utilization). Invisalign requires orthodontists, &&nd their staff to undergo special training agedn to interact with patients in new ways.
Increasing adoption and cumulative use by orthddtsndnd GPs will depend on factors such as thabilty, safety, efficacy, ease of use,
price, quality and reliability of our products, aaility to provide effective sales support, traimpiand service and the availability of competing
products, technologies and alternative treatmémizddition, unanticipated poor clinical performaraf Invisalign could result in significant
adverse publicity and, consequently, reduced aaoeptby dental professionals. Also increased cdtiggefrom direct competitors could cat
us to lose market share and reduce dental profedsiefforts and commitment to expand their Inligeapractice. If adoption and utilization
does not increase as we anticipate, our revenugdait@o grow as expected and our operating resulhy be harmed.

The frequency of use by orthodontists or GPs majnecease at the rate that we anticipate or at all

One of our key objectives is to continuénttrease utilization, or the adoption and freqyesfcuse, of the Invisalign system by new and
existing customers. If utilization of Invisalign loyr existing and newly trained orthodontists ors@Bes not occur or does not occur as qui
as we anticipate, our operating results could bmbd.

We may experience declines in average selling pra¢@ur products.

In response to challenges in our busirieskjding increased competition, we have in the paduced the list price of our products. In
addition, we provide volume based discount prograomaur doctors. If we are to introduce any prieductions or expand our discount
programs in the future or if participation in thggegrams increases, our revenues, gross marginetrofits (losses) may be adversely
affected. Furthermore, although the U.S. dollanisreporting currency, a portion of our revenuad profits are generated in foreign
currencies. Revenues and profits generated bydiakisis operating outside of the United Statedrareslated into U.S. dollars using exchange
rates effective during the respective period and @sult are affected by changes in exchange. rates result, negative movements in curre
exchange rates against the U.S. dollar will ad\e@siéect our average selling price and conseqyah# amount of revenues and profits in our
consolidated financial statements.
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We may experience unexpected problems and expensasociated with the phased-relocation of our custoen facing organizations to
Costa Rica.

In October 2008, we announced a restruggyplan to increase efficiencies across the orgaioiz and lower our overall cost structure. In
addition to headcount reduction, the restructuglam included the phased-relocation of our custoraeg, accounts receivable, credit and
collections and customer event registration orgetions currently located in Santa Clara, Califortdeour facility in Costa Rica. We expect
this relocation to be completed by the end of A099. This relocation is accompanied by a numbeisk$ and uncertainties that may affect
our results of operations and statement of castsflincluding:

. failure to successfully coordinate and phase thaeation of these customer facing organizations nayse our customers to
experience decrease in service levels;

. the relocation may absorb significant managemedtay employee attention and resources that wahleravise be availabl
for the ongoing business operations;

. failure to retain key employees who possess spdaifowledge or expertise and upon whom we are dkpgmpon for the
timely and successful transition to Costa Rica; and

. difficulties in hiring employees in Costa Rica witle necessary skills to perform these customénddanctions.
If any of these risks materialize in th&ufe, our operating results, statement of operataord cash flows may be adversely affected.
Our future success may depend on our ability to dealop, successfully introduce and achieve market aggtance of new products.

Our future success may depend on our walditdevelop, manufacture, market, and obtain @guy approval or clearance of new
products. We launched Invisalign Teen in July 2808 Invisalign Assist in October 2008. There cambassurance that we will be able to
successfully develop, sell and achieve market daoep of these and other new products and applitatind enhanced versions of our exis
product. The extent of, and rate at which, markeeptance and penetration are achieved by futwdupts is a function of many variables,
which include, among other things, our ability nalude functionality and features that addressotust requirements, the availability of third-
party reimbursement of procedures using our newlyots, the existence of competing products andrgeeeonomic conditions affecting
purchasing patterns. In addition, even if our neadpcts are successfully introduced, it is unlikiblgt they will rapidly gain market share and
acceptance primarily due to the relatively longgeof time it takes to successfully treat a pati&ince it takes approximately 12 to 24 mol
to treat a patient, our customers may be unwillongapidly adopt our new products until they susta@y complete at least one case or until
more historical clinical results are available.

Our ability to market and sell new produtizy also be subject to government regulationuitiolg approval or clearance by the United
States Food and Drug Administration ("FDA"), andefign government agencies. Any failure in our &piido successfully develop and
introduce or achieve market acceptance of our medytts or enhanced versions of existing produmttdchave a material adverse effect on
our operating results and could cause our reveloudscline.

A disruption in the operations of our primary freight carrier or higher shipping costs could cause ae&tline in our revenues or a
reduction in our earnings.

We are dependent on commercial freightieasrprimarily UPS, to deliver our products. letbperations of these carriers are disrupte
any reason, we may be unable to deliver our practoct

23




Table of Contents

our customers on a timely basis. If we cannot @elour products in an efficient and timely manmer, customers may reduce their orders f
us and our revenues and operating profits coul@madly decline. In a rising fuel cost environmenty freight costs will increase. If freight
costs materially increase and we are unable tothaséncrease along to our customers for any reasotherwise offset such increases in our
cost of revenues, our gross margin and financgllte could be adversely affected.

We are dependent on our international operations, hich exposes us to foreign operational, politicalral other risks that may harm our
business.

Our key production steps are performedperations located outside of the U.S. At our facilh Costa Rica, technicians use a
sophisticated, internally developed computer-magfirogram to prepare digital treatment plans, tiie then transmitted electronically to
the Juarez, Mexico. These digital files form thsip®f ClinCheck and are used to manufacture aligr@ds. Our order acquisition, aligner
fabrication and shipping operations are conduatetuarez, Mexico. In addition to the research angbpment efforts conducted in our Santa
Clara, California facility, we also carry out resgaand development at locations in San Jose, Qistaand Moscow, Russia. In October 2!
we announced the phased-consolidation of our ciestaare, accounts receivable, credit and collestand customer event registration
organizations, which are currently located in S&itaa, California, to our facility in Costa Rid&/e expect this relocation to be completed by
the end of July 2009. Our increasing reliance ¢erimational operations exposes us to risks andrtaioges that may affect our business or
results of operation, including:

. difficulties in hiring and retaining employees geadly, as well as difficulties in hiring and retaig employees with the
necessary skills to perform the more technical etspaf our operations;

. difficulties in managing international operatiol

. fluctuations in currency exchange rat

. import and export license requirements and regirist

. controlling production volume and quality of themaéacturing process;

. political, social and economic instability, incladias a result of increased levels of violenceuardz, Mexico
. acts of terrorism and acts of war;

. interruptions and limitations in telecommunicatiervices;

. product or material transportation delays or disoug

. burdens of complying with a wide variety of localuntry and regional law:
. trade restrictions and changes in tariffs; and

. potential adverse tax consequences.

If any of these risks materialize in theufe, we could experience production delays anddodelayed revenue.
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We currently are transitioning from reliance on a delter service arrangement to become a direct mana€turer of our products. If we
fail to successfully manage this transition, our bsiness may be harmed.

We currently rely on IMS, a third party #be services provider located in Juarez, Mexioo,drder acquisition, to fabricate aligner molds
as well as finished aligners and to ship the cotedlproduct to customers. On December 22, 200&nmeunced the termination of our shelter
services arrangement with IMS effective April 10201In addition to the risks related to internaiboperations described in the risk factor
above, any difficulties encountered by us with eggfo a transition from a third party shelter gggg arrangement to manufacture, including
difficulties hiring and retaining qualified persaiicould disrupt our ability to deliver our prodsiéh a timely manner which could harm our
business. In addition, any delay in completingtthasition could result in increased transitiontspahich could decrease the amount of
expected savings.

A key step in our manufacturing process relies onaphisticated computer technology that requires newechnicians to undergo a
relatively long training process. If we are unableo accurately predict our volume growth, and fail © hire a sufficient number of
technicians in advance of such demand, the delivetime of our products could be delayed which coulddversely affect our results of
operations.

Training technicians to use our sophiséidatomputer modeling program that produces thealigeatment plan that forms the basis of
ClinCheck takes approximately 90 to 120 days. Aessalt, if we are unable to accurately predictwalume growth, we may not have a
sufficient number of trained technicians to timefgate ClinCheck treatment plans within the tinmgsour customers expect. Any delay in
ClinCheck processing time could delay the ultimdgbvery of finished aligners to our customers. fsadelay could cause us to lose existing
customers or fail to attract new customers. Thiddcause a decline in our revenues and net piafitiscould adversely affect our results of
operations.

Our headquarters, ClinCheck setup and other manufaturing processes are all principally located in regns that are subject to
earthquakes and other natural disasters.

Our digital dental modeling is processedun facility located in San Jose, Costa Rica. dperations team in Costa Rica creates
ClinCheck treatment plans using sophisticated cdermoftware. We are also transitioning our custofaeing operations from Santa Clara,
California to Costa Rica. In addition, our aligmeolds and finished aligners are fabricated in Jydvkexico. Both Costa Rica and Mexico are
in earthquake zones and may be subject to otheralalisasters. If there is a major earthquakengraaher natural disaster in a region where
one of these facilities is located, our abilitycteate ClinCheck treatment plans or manufactureshiglour aligners could be compromised
which could result in our customers experiencirgigaificant delay in receiving their completed aligs. In addition, our headquarters facility
is located in the San Francisco Bay Area. An eaidkg or other natural disaster in this region coefullt in a disruption in our operations. #
such business interruption could materially andeasi®ly affect our business, financial condition eglilts of operations.

We experience competition from manufacturers of trditional braces and expect aggressive competitiondm these and other companie
that may introduce new technologies in the future.

Currently, our Invisalign product competid®ctly against products manufactured and disteiloy Ormco Orthodontics, a division of
Sybron Dental Specialties (a Danaher Corporatidisigiiary), and traditional braces manufactured lyCGompany and Dentsply International.
These manufacturers have substantially greatendinbresources and manufacturing and marketingmaipce than we do and may, in the
future, attempt to develop an orthodontic systemilar to ours or combine technologies that makepyaduct economically unattractive. Lal
consumer product companies may
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also enter the orthodontic supply market. Furtheenawe may face competition in the future from remmnpanies that may introduce new
technologies. We may be unable to compete withetbempetitors and one or more of these competitans render our technology obsolete or
economically unattractive. If we are unable to cetepeffectively with existing products or respofiigéetively to any products developed by
new or existing competitors, our business coultidrened. Increased competition has resulted indsegnd may in the future result in volume
discounting and price reductions, reduced grosgimarreduced profitability and loss of market ghany of which could have a material
adverse effect on our revenues, volume growthpradit (losses) and stock price. We cannot assatetlgat we will be able to compete
successfully against our current or future compegibr that competitive pressures will not haveatemal adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Our information technology systems are critical toour business. System integration and implementatioissues and system security rist
could disrupt our operations, which could have a migrial adverse impact on our business and operatingesults.

We rely on the efficient and uninterruptgzbration of complex information technology systeAlsinformation technology systems are
vulnerable to damage or interruption from a varigtgources. As our business has grown in sizecamplexity, the growth has placed, and
will continue to place, significant demands on mifiormation technology systems. To effectively mga#his growth, we will need to
continually upgrade and enhance our informatioresys. In addition, experienced computer programmaedshackers may be able to penel
our network security and misappropriate our comftidé information or that of third parties, createstem disruptions or cause shutdowns.
Furthermore, sophisticated hardware and operayisigs software and applications that we eitherinatidy develop or procure from third
parties may contain defects in desigh and manufactucluding "bugs” and other problems that naexpectedly interfere with the operatiol
the system. The costs to eliminate or alleviateisgcproblems, viruses and bugs could be significand the efforts to address these problems
could result in interruptions that may have a mat@dverse impact on our operations, revenueppdating results.

We are currently focused on adding moretionality into our business enterprise systemmooe efficiently integrate these systems with
our other system applications, such as customergamd manufacturing tools, and intend to contithie effort for the foreseeable future.
System upgrades and enhancements require sigtiiégpenditures and allocation of valuable emplagseurces. Delays in integration or
disruptions to our business from implementatiothese new or upgraded systems could have a madxiatse impact on our financial
condition and operating results. Furthermore, wainaously upgrade our customer facing softwardiegiions, specifically ClinCheck and
VIP. Software applications frequently contain esror defects, especially when they are first inficti or when new versions are released. The
discovery of a defect or error in a new upgradedive or the failure of our primary information sgss may result in the following
consequences, among others: loss of revenue or idetaarket acceptance, damage to our reputatiagmcoeased service costs, any of which
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrfggncial condition or results of operations.

Our success depends in part on our proprietary teamlogy, and if we are unable to successfully enfaecur intellectual property rights,
our competitive position may be harmed. Litigatingclaims of this type is costly and could distract oumanagement and cause a decline
in our results of operations and stock price.

Our success will depend in part on ourighib maintain existing intellectual property aredobtain and maintain further intellectual
property protection for our products, both in th&Uand in other countries. Our inability to docsalld harm our competitive position. As of
December 31, 2008, we had 118 issued U.S. pat8itgpending U.S. patent applications, and 47 isforeign patents, and 142 pending
foreign patent applications.
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We intend to rely on our portfolio of issli@nd pending patent applications in the U.S. arather countries to protect a large part of our
intellectual property and our competitive positiblawever, our currently pending or future patelidis may not result in the issuance of
patents. Additionally, any patents issued to us braghallenged, invalidated, held unenforceabtepaivented, or may not be sufficiently
broad to prevent third parties from producing cotimgeproducts similar in design to our productsribg fiscal 2005 and 2006, requests were
filed with the United States Patent and Trademdflc®©("USPTO") by a San Francisco, California lfimm, acting on behalf of an unnamed
party and in some instances acting on behalf did@tear, requesting re-examination of a numbemofpatents. In addition, any protection
afforded by foreign patents may be more limitechttieat provided under U.S. patents and intelleqioaperty laws. We also rely on protection
of our copyrights, trade secrets, know-how and petgry information. We generally enter into comfidiality agreements with our employees,
consultants and our collaborative partners uponngentement of a relationship with us. However, treggeements may not provide
meaningful protection against the unauthorizedassdisclosure of our trade secrets or other confideinformation, and adequate remedies
may not exist if unauthorized use or disclosureanteroccur. Our inability to maintain the proprigtaature of our technology through patents,
copyrights or trade secrets would impair our contigpetadvantages and could have a material adwdfeet on our operating results, financial
condition and future growth prospects. In particutafailure to protect our proprietary rights migilow competitors to copy our technology,
which could adversely affect our pricing and maitedre. In addition, in an effort to protect oueltectual property we have in the past been
and may in the future be involved in litigation.eThotential effects on our business operationdtiegdrom litigation that we may participate
in the future, whether or not ultimately determinedur favor or settled by us, are costly and dittee efforts and attention of our managen
and technical personnel from normal business ojpaatAny of these results from our litigation cdaldversely affect our results of operations
and stock price.

We are currently a party to various otlegyal proceedings and claims. Management does hievé¢hat the ultimate outcome of these
other legal proceedings and claims will have a natadverse effect on our financial position csuks of operations. In addition, litigation is
subject to inherent uncertainties and unfavoraltiegs could occur. An unfavorable ruling couldliue monetary damages or, in cases where
injunctive relief is sought, an injunction prohibig us from selling our products. Any of these Hessfrom our litigation could adversely affect
our results of operations and stock pri6ee Part |, Item 3 of this Annual Report on ForKlfdr a summary of our material pending legal
proceedings

While we believe we currently have adequate interdaontrol over financial reporting, we are required to assess our internal control
over financial reporting on an annual basis and anyuture adverse results from such assessment coulesult in a loss of investor
confidence in our financial reports and have an aderse effect on our stock price.

Pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 28@®the rules and regulations promulgated by the, SEe are required to furnish in our
Form 10-K an Annual Report by our management raggrhe effectiveness of our internal control ofieancial reporting. The report
includes, among other things, an assessment @ftbetiveness of our internal control over finahceporting as of the end of our fiscal year,
including a statement as to whether or not ourriivatiecontrol over financial reporting is effectiviehis assessment must include disclosure of
any material weaknesses in our internal controt fimancial reporting identified by management. Whie currently believe our internal
control over financial reporting is effective, teiectiveness of our internal controls to futureiges is subject to the risk that our controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditindsas a result, the degree of compliance ofreimal control over financial reporting
with the policies or procedures may deterioratevdfare unable to assert that our internal cowtvel financial reporting is effective in any
future period (or if our auditors are unable toreggs an
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opinion on the effectiveness of our internal colstar conclude that our internal controls are ieefifze), we could lose investor confidence in
the accuracy and completeness of our financialrtepehich could have an adverse effect on ourkspoice.

If we lose our key personnel or are unable to attret and retain key personnel, we may be unable to psue business opportunities or
develop our products.

We are highly dependent on the key empleye®ur clinical engineering, technology developimsales and marketing personnel and
management teams. The loss of the services probgdubse individuals may significantly delay oepent the achievement of our product
development and other business objectives and ¢wutd our business. Our future success will algedd on our ability to identify, recruit,
train and retain additional qualified personnetjuding orthodontists. Few orthodontists are aarsd to working in a manufacturing
environment since they are generally trained tokvitoiprivate practices, universities and other agsle institutions. Thus, we may be unable to
attract and retain personnel with the advancedfigelons necessary for the further developmerawfbusiness. Furthermore, we may not be
successful in retaining our key personnel or teeiwices. If we are unable to attract and retaindersonnel, our business could be materially
harmed.

If we infringe the patents or proprietary rights of other parties or are subject to a patent infringenent claim, our ability to grow our
business may be severely limited.

Extensive litigation over patents and otinégllectual property rights is common in the noadlidevice industry. We have been sued for
infringement of third party's patents in the pasd ae may be the subject of patent or other litigain the future. From time to time, we have
received and may in the future receive letters fthiml parties drawing our attention to their patéghts. While we do not believe that we
infringe upon any valid and enforceable rights theate been brought to our attention, there maytheronore pertinent rights of which we are
presently unaware. The defense and prosecutiantelfactual property suits, interference proceesliagd related legal and administrative
proceedings could result in substantial expensss @nd significant diversion of effort by our teitah and management personnel. An adverse
determination of any litigation or interference geeding to which we may become a party could stibg¢o significant liabilities. An adverse
determination of this nature could also put oueptt at risk of being invalidated or interpretedroaly or require us to seek licenses from
third parties. Licenses may not be available onroencially reasonable terms or at all, in which évenr business would be materially
adversely affected.

We maintain single supply relationships for certainof our key machines and materials technologies, drour business and operating
results could be harmed if supply is restricted oends or the price of raw materials used in our marfacturing process increases.

We are highly dependent on manufacturespetialized scanning equipment, rapid prototypivaghines, resin and other advanced
materials. We maintain single supply relationstiggamany of these machines and materials technedodi particular, our scanning and
stereolithography equipment are provided by a sisgpplier. We are also committed to purchasingfadlur resin and polymer, the primary
raw materials used in our manufacturing processnfa single-source. In addition, technology charmyesur vendors could disrupt access to
required manufacturing capacity or require expendime consuming development efforts to adaptiatedjrate new equipment or processes.
Our growth may exceed the capacity of one or mbthase manufacturers to produce the needed equipene materials in sufficient
guantities to support our growth. In the eventezhinology changes, delivery delays, or shortages micreases in price for these items, our
business and growth prospects may be harmed.
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We rely on our direct sales force to sell our prodets, and any failure to maintain our direct salesdrce could harm our business.

Our ability to sell our products and geter@venues depends upon our direct sales forbéwvatr North American and international
markets. As of December 31, 2008, our North Amerigales organization consisted of 161 people, aéwh34 were direct sales
representatives and 27 were sales administratidmeggional sales management. Internationally, we4iapeople engaged in sales and sales
support as of December 31, 2008. We do not havdaagyterm employment contracts with the membersusfdirect sales force. The loss of
the services provided by these key personnel may bar business. If we are unable to retain owralisales force personnel or replace them
with individuals of equivalent technical experta®sd qualifications, or if we are unable to sucagdsinstill such technical expertise or if we
fail to establish strong relationships with ourtomsers within a relatively short period of timer@avenues and our ability to maintain market
share could be materially harmed. In addition, wueur large and fragmented customer base, we mlyenable to provide all of our
customers with product support immediately uponldli@ch of a new product. As a result, adoptionef products by our customers may be
slower than anticipated and our ability to grow kershare and increase our revenues may be harmed.

Complying with regulations enforced by the FDA andother regulatory authorities is an expensive and the-consuming process, and any
failure to comply could result in substantial pendiies.

Our products are medical devices and drgestito extensive regulation in the U.S. and mégionally. FDA regulations are wide ranging
and govern, among other things:

. product design, development, manufacturing andéhtgst
. product labeling;

. product storage

. pre-market clearance or approval,

. advertising and promotion; and

. product sales and distributic

Our failure to comply with applicable regtdry requirements could result in enforcemeniactly the FDA or state agencies, which may
include any of the following sanctions:

. warning letters, fines, injunctions, consent desraed civil penalties;

. repair, replacement, refunds, recall or seizureunfproducts

. operating restrictions or partial suspension altshutdown of productior

. refusing our requests for 510(k) clearance or pagket approval of new products, new intended usesiodifications to

existing products;
. withdrawing clearance or f-market approvals that have already been grantet

. criminal prosecution.

If any of these events were to occur, tb@yld harm our business. We must comply with ficiegistration and product listing
requirements of the FDA and adhere to applicablali@uSystem regulations. The FDA enforces its Qua&ystem regulations through
periodic unannounced inspections. Our failure erfdilure of IMS to take satisfactory correctivéiac in response to an adverse inspection or
the failure to comply with applicable manufacturirgulations could result in enforcement actior e may be required to find alternative
manufacturers, which could be a long and costlggss.
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Before we can sell a new medical devicta&nU.S., or market a new use of or claim for aisterg product we must obtain FDA clearal
or approval, unless an exemption applies. Obtairegglatory clearances or approvals can be a lgragtt time-consuming process. Even
though the devices we market have obtained thessapg clearances from the FDA, we may be unahieaiotain such clearances in the fut
Furthermore, we may be unable to obtain the nepesksarances for new devices that we intend tdketan the future. Our inability to
maintain or obtain regulatory clearances or appgsosauld materially harm our business.

If the security of our customer and patient informaion is compromised, patient care could suffer, anave could be liable for related
damages, and our reputation could be impaired.

We retain confidential customer and patiefdrmation in our processing centers. Therefitris, critical that our facilities and
infrastructure remain secure and that our facdliied infrastructure are perceived by the markegpdend our customers to be secure. Despite
the implementation of security measures, our itfuasure may be vulnerable to physical break-iesnputer viruses, programming errors,
attacks by third parties or similar disruptive deobs. If we fail to meet our clients' expectatioegarding the security of healthcare
information, we could be liable for damages andreputation could be impaired. In addition, patiesute could suffer, and we could be liab
our systems fail to deliver correct informationaitimely manner. Our insurance may not protectams fthis risk.

If compliance with healthcare regulations becomesostly and difficult for our customers or for us, wemay not be able to grow our
business.

Participants in the healthcare industrysafgject to extensive and frequently changing &guis under numerous laws administered by
governmental entities at the federal, state anal lewvels, some of which are, and others of whicy ime, applicable to our business.
Furthermore, our healthcare provider customersis@subject to a wide variety of laws and regafaithat could affect the nature and scope
of their relationships with us.

The healthcare market itself is highly feg¢ed and subject to changing political, economid segulatory influences. Regulations
implemented pursuant to the Health Insurance Pitityaénd Accountability Act (HIPAA), including ragations affecting the security and
privacy of patient healthcare information held lBalthcare providers and their business associsggenuire us to make significant and
unplanned enhancements of software applicatiosgmices, result in delays or cancellations of tgder result in the revocation of
endorsement of our products and services by heatharticipants. The effect of HIPAA and newlyangd regulations on our business is
difficult to predict, and there can be no assurahaewe will adequately address the business dsated by HIPAA and its implementation or
that we will be able to take advantage of any tesymbusiness opportunities.

Extensive and changing government regulation of theealthcare industry may be expensive to comply witand exposes us to the risk of
substantial government penalties.

In addition to medical device laws and fafians, numerous state and federal healthcaréerblaws regulate our business, covering areas
such as:

. storage, transmission and disclosure of medicalinétion and healthcare recor

. prohibitions against the offer, payment or receiptemuneration to induce referrals to entitiesviilimg healthcare services or
goods or to induce the order, purchase or recomatemdof our products; and

. the marketing and advertising of our produ
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Complying with these laws and regulatioosld be expensive and time-consuming, and coulek@s= our operating costs or reduce or
eliminate certain of our sales and marketing atidigior our revenues.

We face risks related to our international salesnicluding the need to obtain necessary foreign regatiory clearance or approvals.

We currently sell our products in EuropsjaAPacific, Latin America and Japan and may expatadother countries from time to time.
We do not know whether orthodontists, GPs and aoessi outside our North American market will adaptisalign in sufficient numbers or as
rapidly as we anticipate. In addition, sales of praducts outside the U.S. are subject to foreggulatory requirements that vary widely from
country to country. The time required to obtairacénces or approvals required by other countrigsbiedonger than that required for FDA
clearance or approval, and requirements for suphoapls may differ from FDA requirements. We mayuo@ble to obtain regulatory
approvals in one or more of the other countrieshich we do business or in which we may do busiimesise future. We may also incur
significant costs in attempting to obtain and maimforeign regulatory approvals. If we experiededays in receipt of approvals to market our
products outside of the U.S., or if we fail to reeethese approvals, we may be unable to markepimgucts or enhancements in international
markets in a timely manner, if at all.

Our business exposes us to potential product lialitiy claims, and we may incur substantial expenseive are subject to product liability
claims or litigation.

Medical devices involve an inherent riskpodduct liability claims and associated adverdglipity. We may be held liable if any product
we develop or any product that uses or incorporatgsof our technologies causes injury or is othsgviound unsuitable. Although we intend
to continue to maintain product liability insuraneelequate insurance may not be available on adgeperms, if at all, and may not provide
adequate coverage against potential liabilitiepréduct liability claim, regardless of its merit@ventual outcome, could result in significant
legal defense costs. These costs would have thetelf increasing our expenses and diverting managés attention away from the operation
of our business, and could harm our business.

Historically, the market price for our common stockhas been volatile.

The market price of our common stock cdaddsubject to wide price fluctuations in respomsedrious factors, many of which are beyond
our control. The factors include:

. quarterly variations in our results of operationd &dquidity;

. changes in recommendations by the investment corntynomin their estimates of our revenues or opegatesults;
. speculation in the press or investment communithceming our business and results of operations;

. strategic actions by our competitors, such as pro@onouncements or acquisitio

. announcements of technological innovations or nemdyicts by us, our customers or competitors;

. general economic market conditions.

31




Table of Contents

In addition, the stock market in general] ghe market for technology and medical devicegames in particular, have experienced
extreme price and volume fluctuations that haverofieen unrelated to or disproportionate to theatipey performance of those companies.
These broad market and industry factors may sdyidism the market price of our common stock, rdigms of our operating performance. In
the past, class action litigation has often beeudint against the issuing company following periofigolatility in the market price of a
company's securities. If a securities class adionis filed against us in the future, we wouldunsubstantial legal fees, and our management'
attention and resources would be diverted from atpegy our business in order to respond to theatitan.

Future sales of significant amounts of our commontsck may depress our stock price.

A large percentage of our outstanding comstock is currently owned by a small number ofsigant stockholders. These stockholders
have sold in the past, and may sell in the futiarge amounts of common stock over relatively spertods of time. Sales of substantial
amounts of our common stock in the public markebbyexisting stockholders may adversely affectritaeket price of our common stock.
Such sales could create public perception of diffies or problems with our business and may depoes stock price.

Changes in, or interpretations of, accounting rulesnd regulations, could result in unfavorable acconting charges.

We prepare our consolidated financial stetets in conformity with accounting principles geaily accepted in the United States of
America. These principles are subject to interpiateby the SEC and various bodies formed to imrand create appropriate accounting
policies. A change in these policies can have mifsdignt effect on our reported results and maynenstroactively affect previously reported
transactions. Our accounting policies that recemilye been or may be affected by changes in thmuatiog rules are as follows:

. revenue recognition;
. accounting for share-based payments; and
. accounting for income taxe

If we fail to manage our exposure to global finaneil and securities market risk successfully, our opating results and financial
statements could be materially impacted.

The primary objective of most of our invesnt activities is to preserve principal. To ackiéhis objective, a majority of our marketable
investments are investment grade, liquid, shortixed-income securities and money market instmisidenominated in U.S. dollars. If the
carrying value of our investments exceeds theviaine, and the decline in fair value is deemedetother-than-temporary, we will be required
to write down the value of our investments, whiohild materially harm our results of operations findncial condition. Moreover, the
performance of certain securities in our investnpantfolio correlates with the credit conditiontbg U.S. financial sector. With the current
unstable credit environment, we might incur sigrfit realized, unrealized or impairment losses@atam with these investments.

We have adopted a shareholders rights' plan to linithe possibility that we are acquired, which may rean that a transaction that
shareholders are in favor of or are benefited by mabe prevented.

Our board of directors has the authoritissue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stodk@determine the rights, preferences,
privileges and restrictions of such shares wittenyt further vote or action by our shareholdersdate, our board of directors has designated
200,000 shares as Series A
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participating preferred stock in connection withr ebareholder rights' plan. The issuance of prefestock under certain circumstances could
have the effect of delaying or preventing an adtjaisof the company or otherwise adversely affegtihe rights of the holders of our stock.
The shareholder rights' plan may have the effectdiering more difficult or discouraging an acdiga of our company which is deemed
undesirable by our board of directors. The shadsraights' plan may cause substantial dilutioa fierson or group attempting to acquire us
on terms or in a manner not approved by our bohdirectors, except pursuant to an offer conditibone the negation, purchase or redemption
of the rights issued under the shareholder rigtési.

Our effective tax rate may vary significantly from period to period.

Various internal and external factors mayéfavorable or unfavorable effects on our fueffective tax rate. These factors include, but
are not limited to, changes in tax laws, regulagiand/or rates, changing interpretations of exgstéx laws or regulations, the future levels of
tax benefits of stock option deductions relatingnmentive stock options and employee stock purelpans and changes in overall levels of
pretax earnings. In addition, we have negotiatgdrteentives with the Costa Rica Ministry of Foreigrade, an agency of the Government of
Costa Rica. Under these incentives, all of thenmeave earn in Costa Rica during these eight tovievgéar incentive periods is subject to
reduced rates of Costa Rica income tax. The ineemsix rates will expire in various years beginnim@010. The Costa Rica corporate income
tax rate that would apply, absent the incentive80% for 2009. As a result of these incentivespine taxes decreased by $1.3 million in 2!

In order to receive the benefit of the incentiwes,must hire specified numbers of employees andtaiai minimum levels of fixed asset
investment in Costa Rica. If we do not fulfill tieesonditions for any reason, our incentive coupséand our income in Costa Rica would be
subject to taxation at higher rates, which couldeha negative impact on our operating results.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our headquarters are located in Santa QGakfornia. We lease approximately 127,000 sqdieet of space where we house our research
and development and administrative personnel. \Wseleur Santa Clara facilities under four leaség;iwexpire in June 2010. The combined
monthly rent for the Santa Clara facilities is apgmately $64,000. Commencing July 1, 2005 andioairig on the first day of each calendar
month thereafter, $11,000 will be deducted from&he3 million security deposit previously paid byto the lessor and such amount will be
applied against the monthly base rent for the S@tdea facilities.

We operate a facility in San Jose, CostaRIhe facility comprises approximately 63,000as@gUeet of manufacturing and office space.
The monthly rent for the Costa Rica facility is apgmately $78,000. We renewed the lease in Maf@®8Xor an additional five year term,
which commenced in October 2008 and expires inedaipér 2013. Our European headquarters are locatchsterdam, The Netherlands. On
August 3, 2007, we entered into an amendment torilgenal lease agreement to expand the Amsteraaitity to approximately 16,000 sque
feet of office space. This lease will expire in @012, with an option to renew for an additioma fyear term. We may also terminate this
lease in June 2012 for a fee of $125,000. The niprémt for the Amsterdam facility is approximatéig8,000.

On December 22, 2008, we notified IMS of imtiention to terminate IMS' shelter services ageament effective April 2009. At that time,
we will become a direct manufacturer of our clear
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aligners at the facility in Juarez, Mexico and wié also assume IMS' lease with its landlord. Thentily rent for this 68,000 square foot
facility is $30,000 and the lease expires in JW§2

We believe that our existing facilities agequate to meet current requirements and thitiadd or substitute space will be available as
needed to accommodate any expansion of operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Ormco

On January 6, 2003, Ormco Corporation ("@th a division of Sybron Dental Specialties (anBlaer Corporation subsidiary), filed suit
against us in the United States District Courttfer Central District, Orange County Division, asiserinfringement of U.S. Patent
Nos. 5,447,432, 5,683,243 and 6,244,861. The cam@aught unspecified monetary damages and injmetlief. Also in 2003, wi
counterclaimed for infringement of our U.S. Patidot 6,398,548, seeking unspecified monetary damagesnjunctive relief. Ormco filed a
first amended complaint for infringement of U.Stda No. 6,616,444 and we filed an answer to Oranfist amended complaint and a
counterclaim for invalidity and non-infringement@fS. Patent No. 6,616,444 and for infringement 8. Patent No. 6,554,611.

In connection with these claims, in 200% Court granted five motions for summary judgnibat we filed. First, the Court granted our
motion for summary judgment of non-infringementding that our Invisalign system does not infrimgegy of the asserted Ormco patents
(5,447,432, 5,683,243, 6,244,861 and 6,616,444018k the Court granted in part our motion for stanmudgment of infringement, finding
that Ormco and its subsidiary, Allesee OrthodoAppliances, Inc. ("AOA") infringe certain, but nall, claims of our patents Nos. 6,398,548
and 6,554,611 through the manufacture and saledf White & Blue appliances. Third, the Court geahbur motion for summary judgmen
invalidity of Ormco's asserted patents claims (3,432, 5,683,243, 6,244,861 and 6,616,444). Aschalt®ve, the Court earlier found that we
do not infringe these patents. In addition, the i€also denied Ormco's and AOA's motion for sumnjadgment seeking a finding of
invalidity of our asserted patent claims (6,398,848 6,554,611). Fourth, the Court granted our samrjudgment motion that our asserted
patent claims are not invalid based on the evidencently before the Court. Although the Courtrgeal that motion, it reopened discovery on
two additional invalidity arguments Ormco and AOgsarted. Fifth, the Court also granted our sumrualgment motion that our patents are
not unenforceable and granted Ormco's and AOA'sTeaimjudgment motion that Ormco and AOA did notlfuily infringe our patents.

On February 24, 2005, the Court, on furwenmary judgment, confirmed the validity of alltbé asserted claims of our 6,554,611 patent
and two of the asserted claims of our 6,398,548maf he Court also found certain claims of ou®8,348 patent to be invalid in view of prior
use evidence. On May 26, 2005, the Court issueztragnent injunction (the "Permanent Injunction"etgoin Ormco and AOA from further
infringement of Claims 10 and 17 of our 6,398,548pt and Claims 1-3 and 7 of our 6,554,611 pa@ntMay 31, 2005, Ormco and AOA
filed a notice of appeal with the Federal Circuiti the Permanent Injunction.

There have been two appeals. After the Beemt Injunction was entered, Ormco and AOA appkthlat injunction and the orders of the
District Court on summary judgment on which theiimgtion was based. In April 2006, the U.S. CourAppeals for the Federal Circuit
("CAFC") issued a ruling declaring two out of aalodf seventy-one claims in our US Patent No. 6,398 and four out of a total of ten claims
in US Patent No. 6,554,611 to be invalid as "obsib@The CAFC's decision reverses the CaliforniarizisCourt summary judgment order of
validity.

The 6,398,548 patent consists of 71 claong; claims 10 and 17 were at issue in the fipgtesal and CAFC ruling. These two claims are
directed to a system of appliances and methodpafsigoning
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teeth from an initial to a final tooth arrangemethiere at least some of the appliances are marksioww order of use. These claims contain
further limitations requiring instructions as te@tarder in which the appliances are to be wornwesedof the appliances in intervals of 2-
20 days.

The 6,554,611 patent consists of ten clalirected to a system for repositioning teeth thaludes one or more intermediate appliances
and a final appliance, provided in a single packagenell as instructions which set forth the olideshich the appliances are to be worn. The
CAFC's ruling pertains only to claims 1, 2, 3 anith the patent.

The second appeal was from the final judgm@rmco appealed the ruling of the District Cahet 92 claims in four of its patents are not
infringed by us and that the asserted claims aralith We appealed the ruling of the District Catindt certain claims of our 6,398,548 patent
which were found to be infringed by Ormco's and A®Red, White & Blue appliances were invalid. ThH®RC issued a ruling on August 24,
2007, affirming the District Court's ruling that 86t of 92 claims in Ormco's 5,447,432, 5,683,21344,861 and 6,616,444 patents are invalid
and not infringed by us. The CAFC reversed thergts€Court's non-infringement and invalidity rulisgn six claims in Ormco's 6,616,444
patent. Ormco filed a petition for review with thleS. Supreme Court with respect to the portiorhef€AFC's opinion that affirmed the
District Court's ruling of non-infringement and nenablement of Ormco's 86 claims. The Supreme Qlanied Ormco's petition, and the case
on the six claims in Ormco's 6,616,444 patent weérned to the District Court for a determinatadrvalidity and infringement of those
claims. The District Court issued orders construhlmgclaim terms at issue and granting our motioanhiend our answer and counterclaim to
assert Ormco's 6,616,444 patent is unenforcealdéainequitable conduct. The parties are curresdimpleting fact discovery.

On February 25, 2009, the District Coustisd rulings on various Summary Judgment and explated motions. In summary, the Dist
Court granted one of Ormco's motions on one thebigfringement and granted our motion on two tleoof noninfringement. Our invalidit
argument supported by over fifty prior art referengvas unaffected. The District Court also ruled tne of our inequitable conduct theories
should be resolved at trial. A finding of inequitalbonduct at trial could render the six claimssatie and possibly the family of Ormco patents
related to the 6,616,444 patent unenforceable.

Trial on liability issues is scheduled fame 2, 2009. Despite the District Court's rulifignéringement on one of Ormco's theories, if the
jury finds Ormco's six claims to be invalid or uf@nceable, there can be no liability for infringeméWe intend to vigorously pursue ¢
invalidity and inequitable conduct counterclaimsril.

Other matters
USPTO

During fiscal 2005 and 2006, requests Viiged with the United States Patent and Trademdflc®("USPTQO") by a San Francisco,
California, law firm, acting on behalf of an unnairgarty, requesting Ex Parte re-examination ofpatents. A Reexamination Certificate has
been issued regarding the 6,309,215, 6,398,5485@83, 6,217,325, 6,722,880, 6,318,994 and 5,93%&tents and
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therefore these patents are no longer in reexaimmal/e received an Action Closing Prosecutionttn@,685,469 patent. The status of the
6,629,840 patent is as follows:

Request for Initial
Reexaminatior Office
Actions
Patent No. Granted? Received’ Status
6,629,841 Yes Yes In this initial Office Action dated June 13, 20@Be examiners confirmed the validity of eight oé #lever

claims of U.S. Patent No. 6,629,840 (the '840 pgateithout amendment and preliminarily rejected the
remaining claims of the patents. The non-finai&hiOffice Action presented us with the first oppority

to respond to the USPTO's review and interpretaifahe prior art. On September 13, 2006, we sulechit
a response to the initial Office Action. A petitisaeking a waiver was filed on February 15, 2007 \aas
granted on April 17, 2007, granting a single intewx. The interview was held on May 22, 2007, and an
Interview Summary was filed with the USPTO on J@te2007. We are awaiting further action by the
USPTO.

As part of the OrthoClear Agreement, Ortlea€ agreed to take no further action with respethe Inter Parte Requests, including the
6,629,840 patent.

Class Action

On May 18, 2007, Debra A. Weber filed asiamer class action lawsuit against us, OrthoClaar,and OrthoClear Holdings, Inc. (d/b/a
OrthoClear, Inc.) in Syracuse, New York, U.S. Didt€Court. The complaint alleges two causes ofoacéigainst the OrthoClear defendants and
one cause of action against us for breach of confféie cause of action against us titled "Bredchhird Party Benefit Contract” references
our agreement to make Invisalign treatment avalablOrthoClear patients, alleging that we failegrovide the promised treatment to
Plaintiff or any of the class members".

On July 3, 2007, we filed our answer to¢benplaint and asserted 17 affirmative defensesJubn20, 2007, we filed a motion for
summary judgment on the Third Cause of Action (thly cause of action alleged against us). On Augds2007, Weber filed a motion for
class certification. On October 1, 2007, we filedogposition to the motion of class certificatiordave are currently awaiting rulings from the
Court. OrthoClear has filed a motion to dismisse Tititial case management conference and all d&sgdvas been stayed pending the Court's
decision on the motion for class certification, l@€lear's motion to dismiss and our motion for samynmudgment.

Litigating claims of the types discussedhis Annual Report on Form 10-K, whether or ndineitely determined in our favor or settled
by us, is costly and diverts the efforts and aitendf our management and technical personnel fiormal business operations. Any of these
results from litigation could adversely affect easults of operations and stock price. From tim@ne, we have received, and may again
receive, letters from third parties drawing oueation to their patent rights. While we do not beé that we infringe any such rights that have
been brought to our attention, there may be ottaemertinent proprietary rights of which we aregantly unaware.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
There were no matters submitted to a vbseourity holders during the fourth quarter of 200
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PART I

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ®@I& Market under the symbol "ALGN." Public tradiofjour common stock commenced
on January 26, 2001. Prior to that date, therenegsublic market for our common stock. The followiable shows, for the periods indicated,
the high and low per share closing prices of ounmmn stock, as reported by the NASDAQ Global Market

High Low

Year Ended December 31, 20!

Fourth quarte $10.4¢  $ 5.0C
Third quartel $13.4¢  $10.01
Second quarte $13.1¢ $ 9.84
First quarte $16.55 $10.3¢
Year Ended December 31, 20(

Fourth quarte $28.7C $14.6¢
Third quartel $27.6¢ $22.5¢
Second quarte $24.8¢ $15.7¢
First quarte! $17.8¢ $13.3¢

On February 18, 2009, the closing pricewnfcommon stock on the NASDAQ Global Market wa)8&er share. As of February 18,
2009 there were approximately 184 holders of reocbmlr common stock. Because the majority of dvares of outstanding common stock is
held by brokers and other institutions on behaltotkholders, we are unable to estimate the totaber of stockholders represented by these
record holders.

We have never declared or paid any casdetfids on our common stock. We currently intencetain any future earnings to fund the
development and growth of our business and domtatipate paying any cash dividends in the foreskefuture. Our credit facility contains
certain restrictive loan covenants, including riesbns on our ability to pay dividendSee Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operati—Liquidity and Capital Resources".

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Following is a summary of stock repurchdseshe three months ended December 31, 2008 (1):

Total Number of Approximate Dollar Value
Total Number of Shares Repurchased ¢ of Shares that May
Average Price Pait Yet Be Repurchased Unde
Shares Part of Publicly
Period Repurchased per Share Announced Program the Program
November 1, 2008 to November 30, 2 1,064,02. $ 6.8¢ 1,064,02. $ 3,431,00!
December 1, 2008 to December 31, 2 477,50 $ 7.22 477,50C $ —
Total 154152 $ 6.9¢ 1,541,52.

In April 2008, our Board of Directors appeal a common stock repurchase program authorizengagement to purchase up to
$50.0 million of our outstanding shares of commimtls. Purchases under the program were made, froentb time, in the open market. As of
December 31, 2008, we had repurchased approximé&télyillion shares of common stock at an average f $10.76 per
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share. In December 2008, we completed the stoekecbpse program, and all repurchased shares hawerbiired.
1) All shares were repurchased pursuant to the pytdichounced repurchase program described al
Performance Graph

Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary ig @ahour previous or future filings with the SE@e ffollowing information relating to
the price performance of our common stock shallbeotieemed “filed" with the SEC or "Soliciting M&kE under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended, or subject to Regulation I4/E, or to liabilities of Section 18 of the Excigeg Act except to the extent we specifically
request that such information be treated as sdatigitnaterial or to the extent we specifically ingorate this information by reference.

The following graph compares the cumulatital stockholder return on our common stock it of the NASDAQ Stock Market US
Index, a broad market index published by the Natidssociation of Securities Dealers, Inc. and er ggoup that reflects the labor market in
which we compete. The comparison for each of thi®ge assumes that $100 was invested on Janu@038,in our common stock, the stocks
in the NASDAQ Stock Market US Index, and the stoickdhe peer group index, and that all dividendsenreinvested.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Align Technology, Inc., The NASDAQ Compoditelex
And A Peer Group
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*$100 invested on 12/31/03 in stock & index-inclglireinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.
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Our peer group consists of 13 companiesateapredominantly (although not exclusively) lechin the San Francisco Bay Area, the
geographic location in which we operate and comfrgtexecutive talent. In addition to geographicdtion, these companies were chosen
using the following principles:

. companies that are close industry competitors;

. medical device companies that are generally bet®e®io 2.5 times Align's revenue (with Align apapximately the median);
and

. technology companies with similar growth potentéintl technology development needs for software atefgrise system
designers.

The following companies made up the peer grou20f8:

Advanced Medical Optics Inc Natus Medical Inc
American Medical Systems Holdings | Nektar Therapeutic
Ansys Inc. Nuvasive Inc
ArthroCare Corp Sirona Dental Systems I
Integra Lifesciences Holdings Col Sonosite

Intuitive Surgical Inc Vital Images Inc

Mentor Corp.*

* Each of these companies was acquired in 2008 ahdavMionger form part of our peer group as publiormation for these companies
are no longer publicly available.

ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables set forth the seleatedsolidated financial data for each of the yéatbe five-year period ended December 31,
2008. The selected consolidated financial dataidified in its entirety and should be read in cogtion with the Consolidated Financial
Statements and related Notes thereto set fortlagag50 to 78 and "Management's Discussion and/gisalf Financial Condition and Results
of Operations" beginning on page 35. We have ddrikie statement of operations data for the yeatec®December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006
and the balance sheet data as of December 31,a2@08007 from the consolidated audited financeteshents included elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. The statement of openatdata for the years ended December 31, 2002@0dl and the balance sheet data as
of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were derivad the consolidated audited financial statemerasdte not included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

(in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Consolidated Statement of Operations Dats

Net revenue $303,97¢ $284,33. $206,35: $207,12! $172,83(
Gross profit $225,12¢ $209,29° $141,57¢ $143,34: $115,30«
Profit (loss) from operations(1)(. 15,51« 33,85F  (37,53¢) 2,44¢ 9,76t
Other income (expense), r 1,562 3,09t 3,401 283 3
Net profit (loss) before provision for (benefit find income taxes(1)( 17,07¢ 36,95( (34,139 2,72¢ 9,76:
Provision for (benefit from) income tax (62,91 1,22¢ 82¢ 1,31¢ 994
Net profit (loss)(1)(2)(3 $ 79,987 $ 3572¢ $(34,96) $ 1,41 $ 8,76¢
Net profit (loss) per shau

Basic $ 12 $ 05: $ (058 $ 00z $ O.1If
Diluted $ 11¢ $ 05C $ (058 $ 00z $ 0.1¢
Shares used in computing net profit (loss) perest

Basic 66,81: 67,17¢ 63,24¢ 61,64« 59,96:
Diluted 68,064 71,44: 63,24¢ 63,15: 64,08¢

December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Consolidated Balance Sheet Date

Working capital $117,33! $123,05¢ $ 40,30¢ $ 62,97¢ $ 61,88t¢
Total asset 279,34: 222,76. 151,55¢ 142,11( 130,71:
Total lon¢-term liabilities 22¢ 14¢ 21¢ 64 25
Stockholders' equit $218,54( $161,15: $ 83,55¢ $ 93,43t $ 85,73¢

(1) Profit (loss) from operations, net profit (lossfdre provision for income taxes and net profit glofor the years ended December
2007 and 2006 included a $1.8 million credit arf#14.3 million charge, respectively, for the Patefirst Program and settlement cc
SeeNote 5 "Patients First Program and settlement cbistshe Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateménmtsdditional information.

(2) Profit from operations and net profit before benfgim income taxes included a $6.2 million restwing charge for the year end
December 31, 2008. In addition, 2008 net profituded a $6.1 million restructuring charge net aetof $129,000. Sedote 18
"Restructurings” in the Notes to Consolidated FiciahStatementor additional information.

3) Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2008iaed a $64.6 million benefit to income taxes assalt of the release of a t

valuation allowance on most of the deferred tae@sSedNote 13 "Income Taxes" in the Notes to Consolid&iadncial Statements
for additional information.
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operationsiddde read together with "Selected
Consolidated Financial Data" and our consolidatedritial statements and related notes includedvilses in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K.

Overview

Align Technology, Inc. designs, manufacsuaad markets the Invisalign system, a propriataehod for treating malocclusion, or the
misalignment of teeth. Invisalign corrects malosan using a series of clear, nearly invisible, ogable appliances that gently move teeth to a
desired final position. Because it does not relytenuse of metal or ceramic brackets and wiregsdtign significantly reduces the aesthetic
and other limitations associated with metal arcltesvind brackets, commonly referred to as braces.@dgived the United States Food and
Drug Administration ("FDA") clearance to market Isalign in 1998. The Invisalign system is reguldbydhe FDA as a Class Il medical
device.

Each Invisalign treatment plan is uniquéhi®individual patient. Our Invisalign Full treagnt consists of as many aligners as indicated by
ClinCheck in order to achieve the doctors' treatngels. Our Invisalign Express is a dual archaxtintic treatment for cases that meet ce
predetermined clinical criteria and consist of apen sets of aligners. Invisalign Express treatrigeimtended to assist dental professionals to
treat a broader range of patients by providingneelecost option for adult relapse cases, for marowding and spacing, or as a pre-cursor to
restorative or cosmetic treatments such as venkeeisalign Teen, which was launched in July 206&Jesigned to meet the specific needs of
the non-adult comprehensive or teen treatment rhdrkgsalign Assist, launched in October 2008ntended to help newly-trained and low
volume Invisalign GPs accelerate the adoption aaglulency of use of Invisalign into their practickaon completion of an Invisalign or non-
Invisalign treatment, the patient may be prescribedtraditional retainer product, or our Vivergaiaers, a clear aligner set designed for
ongoing retention.

Our goal is to establish Invisalign as stendard method for treating malocclusion ultimatilving increased product adoption by dental
professionals by focusing on the four key objediwdiving product innovation, enhancing the custoexperience, generating consumer
demand and expanding into international marketshBé these four key objectives is described mallg fn "ltem [—Business—Business
Strategy" of this Annual Report on Form 10-K anihisorporated herein by this reference. In additmwhether we successfully execute our
business strategy, a number of other factors, th& important of which are set forth below, mayeeaffour results during the remainder of 2
and beyond.

. Impact on consumer spending due to a decline irigdrconomic conditions.Consumer spending habits are affected by,
among other things, prevailing economic conditidegels of employment, salaries and wage ratespgess, consumer
confidence and consumer perception of economicitiond. A general slowdown in the United Statesrexoy and certain
international economies as well as an uncertain@oic outlook have adversely affected consumerdipgrhabits. As a result
of the decline in general economic conditions, weeet that our product volumes and revenues maljngeia 2009 compared
2008. In addition, the decline in general econoooicditions may further have the impact of decreagie number of
orthodontic case starts overall.

. Utilization Rates Our goal is to establish Invisalign as the statdaethod for treating malocclusion ultimately dniy
increased product adoption and frequency of usgelyal
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professionals, or utilization. Our quarterly utdtion rates from the years ended December 31, 2008, and 2006 are as

follows:
Utilization Rates*
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Utilization rates = # of cases shipped divided of #octors cases were shipped to

As set forth in the chart above, year over yedization rates declined slightly for our domestimanel in each quarter of 2008
compared to the same quarter in 2007. We belieatettle continued economic slowdown has negativefyaicted many of our North
America customers. International utilization rdfi@sthe same periods, however, increased slightly.

. Impact of new products on deferred rever We launched three new products in 2008: Vivetaimers in January 200
Invisalign Teen in July 2008, and Invisalign AssisOctober 2008. As a result of and depending upmtomer adoption of
these new products, we expect our mix of productsegin shifting gradually. Key features of thesgproducts include staged
delivery of retainers with Vivera, up to six frewlividual replacement aligners with Invisalign Tesamd staged delivery of
aligners with Invisalign Assist. As a result of skeefeatures, these new products will have a sigifly higher amount of
deferred revenue as a percentage of their avesdigggprices compared to Invisalign Full.

The Vivera retainer includes four shipments peryaad revenue is deferred upon the first shipraedtthen recognized as each
shipment occurs. Revenue for the six replaceméeis included in Invisalign Teen will be deferteaksed on their fair market value
until the earlier of the replacement aligners beisgd or until the case is completed. For InvisehAgsist, when the progress tracking
feature is selected, aligners are shipped to theatprofessional after every nine stages. As altider these cases, revenue will be
deferred upon the first staged shipment and willde®agnized upon shipment of the final staged shigttrin addition, included in the
price of Invisalign Full treatment, we offer cagéimement, which is a finishing tool used to admgtatient's teeth to the desired final
position. Invisalign Teen, Invisalign Assist, amyisalign Full include a deferral for case refinetneé\s these new products increase as
a percentage of our total case volume, deferreghtgy on our balance sheet will increase.

. Reliance on international manufacturing operatic Our manufacturing efficiency has been and wilitaoue to be ai
important factor in our future profitability. Cumdy, two of our key production steps are perfornredperations located outside
of the U.S. At our facility in Costa Rica, dentathnicians use a sophisticated, internally devel@oenputer-modeling program
to prepare digital treatment plans. We currently om IMS, a third party shelter services proviftarated in Juarez, Mexico, for
order acquisition, to fabricate aligner molds adl e finished
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aligners and to ship the completed product to costs. On December 22, 2008, we notified IMS ofiatention to terminate
this shelter services arrangement effective in I2009. At that time, we will become a direct maantfirer of our clear aligners
at the facility in Juarez, Mexico. Our success @dpend in part on the efforts and abilities of eagament to effectively manage
these international operations, including any diffiies encountered by us with respect to a trimmsftom a third party shelter
services arrangement to a direct manufacturemidtieg difficulties hiring and retaining qualifie&gsonnel. If our management
fails in any of these respects, we could experigmoduction delays and lost or delayed revenuadtfition, even if we have
case submissions, we may not have a sufficient eamibtrained dental technicians in Costa Ricargate the ClinCheck
treatments, or if we are unable to ship our protucur customers on a timely basis, our revenliebeidelayed or lost, which
will cause our operating results to fluctugdee Part I, tem 1A—"Risk Factors" for risks rethte our international operations
as well as risks related to transitioning from eglce on shelter service arrangement to indepenahamufacturer.

. Seasonal Fluctuation: Seasonal fluctuations in the number of doctotthéir offices and available to take appointmeigsd
affected, and are likely to continue to affect, business. Specifically, our customers often tedeation or are on holiday duri
the summer months and therefore tend to start feasgs. These seasonal trends have caused atilehjlcontinue to cause,
fluctuations in our quarterly results, includingdtuations in sequential revenue growth rates.

. Foreign Exchange RatesAlthough the U.S. dollar is our reporting currgna portion of our revenues and profits are gerdra
in foreign currencies. Revenues and profits geedrhy subsidiaries operating outside of the UnBtates are translated into
U.S. dollars using exchange rates effective duttiegrespective period and as a result are affdptedhanges in exchange rates.
We have generally accepted the exposure to exchratgenovements without using derivative finanoatruments to manage
this risk. Therefore, both positive and negativevermoents in currency exchanges rates against theddli&r will continue to
affect the reported amount of revenues and priofiir consolidated financial statements.

. Restructurings. During 2008, we announced restructuring plankig and October to increase efficiencies across th
organization and lower the overall cost structimeluly 2008, we implemented a restructuring ptareduce our full time
headcount by 67 employees including initiating aged-consolidation of order acquisition operatioos our corporate
headquarters in Santa Clara, California to Judexjco, which was completed by the end of 2008. Dlaéober restructuring
plan included a total reduction of 111 full timeakdeount in Santa Clara, California by July 200%va<reate a new shared
services organization in our existing Costa Riadlifg that will consolidate customer care, accaurgceivable, credit and
collections, and customer event registration ogtions, which are currently located in Santa Cl&alifornia. We anticipate
phasing the relocation to Costa Rica in an attemptinimize disruptions to customer service leaid expect the relocation to
be completed by the end of July 2009. These actiesidted in a restructuring charge of approxinya$®.2 million in 2008, and
we expect to incur additional restructuring chargieapproximately $1.8 million over the first half 2009. We expect to
reinvest the annualized savings of these two retstrings in the execution of our key strategiciatives.See Part |, Item 1A—
"Risk Factors" for risks related to the Octobertresturing, including the phased-relocation of austomer facing operations
to Costa Rica.

. Review of our investment portfolio and polici Our cash equivalent and sk-term investment portfolio as of the date of 1

Form 10-K consisted of U.S. government notes amdibocorporate bonds and certificates of depaaitsncy bonds and
discount notes and commercial paper. We followstal#ished investment policy and set of guidelteasionitor, manage and
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limit our exposure to interest rate, liquidity acredit risk. The policy sets forth credit qualitaisdards and limits our exposuri
any one issuer, as well as our maximum exposwarious asset classes. As a result of current advigrancial market
conditions, investments in some financial instrutegsuch as structured investment vehicles, subgpmortgage-backed
securities and collateralized debt obligations, pasge risks arising from liquidity and credit conte As of the date of this
Form 10-K, we had no direct holdings in these aatieg of investments and our indirect exposurdésé financial instruments
through our holdings in money market mutual funds wnmaterial. As of the date of this Form 10-K, lveel no impairment
charge associated with our short-term investmertfgim relating to such adverse financial markentditions. Although we
believe our current investment portfolio has véttjel risk of impairment, we cannot predict futurarket conditions or market
liquidity and can provide no assurance that ouestment portfolio will remain unimpaired. Seart I, Item 1A—"Risk Factors"
for risks related to global financial and securdienarkets.

Our short-term marketable securities as of Decer@beP008 are as follows (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized

December 31, 2008 Costs Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. government notes and bot $9971 $ 25 $ — $ 9,99
Corporate bonds and certificates of def 3,77¢ 1 (29 3,751
Agency bonds and discount no 8,49¢ 2C — 8,51¢
Commercial pape 80C — — 80C
Total $23,04: $ 46 $ (24) $23,06¢

Our long-term marketable securities as of DecerBtheP008 are as follows (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized

September 30, 2008 Costs Gains Losses Fair Value
Agency bond: $ 1000 $ 1 $ 1,001
Corporate bond 1,89 0 (35 1,86z
Total 2,891 1 (35 2,862
. Tax Valuation Allowance We continually evaluate both the positive andatieg evidence in assessing our need for :

valuation allowance. As a result of our analysie,r@leased the tax valuation allowance on mostefieferred tax assets with
the exception of certain capital loss and foreighaperating loss carryforwards as of DecembeG@8.

. Effective Tax Rat¢ Our effective tax rate may vary significantly fingeriod to period. Various internal and exteraatérs ma
have favorable or unfavorable effects on our fugffective tax rate. These factors include, butrerelimited to, changes in tax
laws, regulations and/or rates, changing interfireta of existing tax laws or regulations, the fetlevels of tax benefits of sto
option deductions relating to incentive stock opsi@nd employee stock purchase plans and changegsriall levels of pretax
earnings.

. Stock-based compensatioWe implemented Statement of Financial Accoungitgndards ("FAS") No. 123 (revised 2004),
"Share-based Payment" ("FAS 123R") in 2006, anexpect stock-based compensation to increase titdihst 2010, which
corresponds to our standard 4-year vesting terraregtiter, new grants will be expensed over thengsteriod, however, this
expense may be offset by fully vested grants tteaha longer expensed. For the years
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ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, stock-lasegensation expense recognized in accordanceP4ih123R is as
follows (in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
% of net % of net % of net

Stock-based Stock-based Stock-based

Compensatior revenue: Compensatior revenue: Compensatior revenue!
Cost of revenue $ 1,75t 0.6% $ 994 0.4% $ 70C 0.2%
Sales and marketir 5,28¢ 1.7% 4,22¢ 1.5% 2,86: 1.4%
General and administratiy 8,011 2.€% 5,44: 1.S% 4,054 2.%
Research and developme 2,004 0.7% 1,54¢ 0.5% 1,29¢ 0.€%
Total stocl-based compensation expe $ 17,05: 5% $ 12,21 43% $ 8,91( 4.2%

Results of Operations
Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007d2006:
Net revenues:

Invisalign product revenues by channel atiér revenues, which represent training and sdlascillary products for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, are as follows:

Years Ended December 31

Net % Net %
Net revenues 2008 Change Change 2007 Change Change 2006
(in millions)

North America:
Ortho $895 $ (0.9 (0.99%$% 90.2 $ 21.7 31.7% $ 68.€
GP 140.2 5.7 4.2% 134. 40.€ 43.2% 93.€
Total North American Invisalig 229.% 4.8 2.2% 224.¢ 62.2 38.2% 162.f
International Invisaligt 61.¢ 15.2 32.8% 46.€ 14.5 45.1% 32.1
Total Invisalign revenue 291.€ 20.2 7.4% 271. 76.€ 39.5% 194.¢
Other revenue 12.4 (0.5) (3.9% 12.¢ 1.1 10.2% 11.€
Total net revenue $304.C $ 19.7 6.9% $284.5 $ 77.¢ 37.6% $206.4

Case volume data which represents Invisalase shipments by channel, for the years endedrtger 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 are as
follows:

Years Ended December 31,

Net % Net %
Invisalign case volume 2008 Change Change 2007 Change Change 2006
(in thousands)

North America:

Ortho 70.€ 2.3 3.2% 72¢ 17.4 31.2% 55.

GP 103.5 iLE 1.5% 102.( 26.€ 35.2% 754
Total North American Invisalig 174.1 (0.8) (0.5% 174.¢ 44.C 33.6% 130.¢
International Invisaligr 37.¢ 9.8 35.4% 28.C 8.8 46.1% 19.2
Total Invisalign case volurr 212.C 9.1 4.5% 202.¢ 52.¢ 35.2% 150.1
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Total net revenues increased in 2008 coethbtr 2007 primarily as a result of increased ghowtour international Invisalign revenue and
our North American GP revenue.

Net revenues from our North American Inliggaorthodontic channel decreased in 2008 comper@®07 due to decreased case volume
and higher revenue deferrals related to new predattoduced in 2008 partially offset by lower peigation in volumebased discount progr:
rebates. Net revenues from our North American bligea GP channel increased due to higher case wwhmd lower participation in volume-
based discount rebate programs.

Revenues from both our North American odthatic and GP channels increased in 2007 compar2@@6 primarily as a result of an
overall increase in case volume and a favorabldymomix shift towards Invisalign Full. This produnix shift towards Invisalign Full began
in the fourth quarter of 2006 after we removeddaecellation fees on Invisalign Full cases prio€tmCheck approval and clarified clinical
protocols surrounding what is an appropriate IrigsaExpress case. The increase in Invisalign Faienues is partially offset by increased
participation in our volume-based discount programs

The increase in our international Invisaligvenues in 2008 compared to 2007 was predontyrdune to higher case volumes partially
offset by unfavorable exchange rates and increpagttipation in volume-based discount programs.

The increase in our international Invisaligvenues in 2007 compared to 2006 was attribeitabdn increase in case volume.
Additionally, our international revenues benefifemim favorable exchange rates in 2007. These iseewere partially offset by increased
participation in volume-based discount programs.

Other revenues, consisting of training faed sales of ancillary products, were lower in@66mpared to 2007 primarily due to North
American training discount programs. Other reverwee higher in 2007 compared to 2006 as a refalh increased number of doctors
trained year over year.

For 2009, we expect our total net revenaaeecrease compared to 2008 primarily due to ealsene decreases in North America parti
offset by expected growth in international revenie. expect our mix of products to continue to sinif2009 due to the introduction of new
products during the second half of 2008. These pr@ducts have a significantly higher amount of defé revenue as a percentage of their
average selling price compared to Invisalign Full.

Cost of revenues and gross margin:

Years Ended December 31
2008 Change 2007 Change 2006

(in millions)
Cost of revenue $78¢ $ 39 $75C $10.z $ 64.€
% of net revenue 25.9% 26.4% 31.4%
Gross profil $225.1 $15.¢ $209.: $67.7 $141.¢
Gross margin 9 74.1% 73.6% 68.6%

Cost of revenues includes salaries foff gta&blved in the production process, costs incdifog IMS, a third party shelter service provider
in Juarez, Mexico, the cost of materials, packagshgpping costs, depreciation on capital equipnused in the production process, training
costs and stock-based compensation expense.

Gross margin improved in 2008 comparedd@72primarily due to an increase in case volume oue relatively fixed cost structure and
improved operating efficiencies.

Gross margin improved in 2007 comparedd@&2primarily as a result of increased case volowes our relatively fixed cost structure
resulting in decreases in our per unit standard éaglitionally,

46




Table of Contents

cost reductions from improved operating efficiescdso contributed to the increase in 2007 grosgima

We believe that gross margin in 2009 waldbightly lower than in 2008 as we expect overalie volume to decrease year over year
partially offset by a benefit from our transitioroin a third party shelter arrangement to directufiaeturing in Juarez, Mexico effective April
2009. However, with our relatively fixed manufadtgy cost structure, quarterly gross margin wilctiwuate based on case volume and product
mix. In addition, should we experience continuimjavorable exchange rates, our gross margin magdbersely affected.

Sales and marketing:

Years Ended December 31
2008 Change 2007  Change 2006

(in millions)
Sales and marketir $115.1 $16.¢ $98.2 $16.z $82.C
% of net revenue 37.9% 34.5% 39.7%

Sales and marketing expense includes gaes compensation (including travel-related cqostagrketing personnel-related costs, media
and advertising, clinical education, product marigeand stock-based compensation expense.

Sales and marketing expense increasedglRfi68 compared to 2007 due to higher payroll-eel@xpenses of $7.0 million, including
stock-based compensation of $1.1 million, as altre$the full year effect of additional headcotnited in the fourth quarter of 2007. We also
incurred higher product marketing expenses of $8lllon, associated with our new product launched eommercialization, professional
marketing programs, clinical education and med&t<o

Our sales and marketing expense increasedgi?2007 compared to 2006 predominantly as dtrefa $10.3 million increase in media,
advertising and product marketing expenses and@pase in payrollelated expenses of $5.1 million, of which $3.7lianl was attributable t
additional headcount and $1.4 million to stock-lbasempensation.

We expect sales and marketing expenses@e&l009 to be comparable to 2008. In 2009, weetiw invest in our international channel,
including consumer advertising and sales force esipa, and continue commercialization of new praslirt North America, offset by benefits
from the transition of our shared services orgditna to Costa Rica, beginning in the second Ha®0®9.

General and administrative:

Years Ended December 31,
2008  Change 2007 Change 2006

(in millions)
General and administratiy $62.2 $ 8¢ $53.2 $(11.0) $%64.c
% of net revenue 20.5% 18.7% 31.2%

General and administrative expense inclsaéasries for administrative personnel, outsidesotiing services, legal expenses and stock-
based compensation expense.

General and administrative expenses inecedaring 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due ghér payroll-related expenses of
$4.5 million, including increased stock-based congg¢ion expense of $2.6 million, resulting from iiddal headcount. Management decided
to no longer invest in an internally developedwafie tool for business process management resiittiag asset impairment charge of
$1.7 million in the fourth quarter of 2008. In atiloin, legal and other professional fees were
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higher by $3.4 million compared to 2007 primarilyedto a $1.6 million credit in 2007 from an insurameimbursement we received associated
with the OrthoClear litigation.

General and administrative expense decdeas2007 compared to 2006 largely due to a $20lémdecline in external legal fees
following the settlement of the OrthoClear litigatiin the fourth quarter of 2006. As mentioned ah@ur 2007 legal expense included a
$1.6 million credit for an insurance reimbursemefiiegal costs also associated with the Orthodlegation. This decrease was partially off
by a $3.5 million increase in additional headcoamd incentive compensation, a $1.7 million incréasmnsulting fees, and a $1.4 million
increase in stock-based compensation expense.iéwlliyy, amortization expense increased $2.2 nmillio 2007 compared to 2006 related to
the amortization of the non-compete agreementswaeived in connection with the OrthoClear settletmen

We expect general and administrative exp&m®009 to be lower than 2008 levels as we begbenefit from the transition of our shared
services organizations to Costa Rica, beginnirtgénsecond half of 2009.

Research and development:

Years Ended December 31
2008  Change 2007 Change 2006
(in millions)
Research and developm: $26.2 $ 0.5 $25.7 $ 7.2 $18.k
% of net revenue 8.6% 9.C% 9.C%

Research and development expense inclheégsersonnel-related costs and outside consuliipgreses associated with the research and
development of new products and enhancements stirexiproducts, conducting clinical and post-marigetrials and stock-based
compensation expense.

Research and development expenses increlgbtly in 2008 compared to the same period i@72primarily due to higher payroll-related
expenses, including stock-based compensationresult of increased headcount in the first halP@®8, partially offset by lower consulting
fees.

Research and development expense incréga28@7 compared to 2006 predominantly from a $8ildon increase resulting from higher
headcount and incentive compensation. Additionall$1.5 million increase in outside services atsutiibuted to the increase in 2007 research
and development costs.

We expect research and development experZ¥09 to be lower than 2008 levels as a resuthwér headcount and reduced consulting
expenses.

Restructurings:

Years Ended December 31,
2008 Change 2007 Change 200¢

(in millions)
Restructuring: $6.2 $62 $— $ — $—
% of net revenue 2.1% nle

During 2008, we announced restructuringi@lia July and October to increase efficienciesssthe organization and lower the overall
cost structure. In July 2008, we implemented awesiring plan to reduce our full time headcoun®iFyemployees including a phased-
consolidation of order acquisition operations froor corporate headquarters in Santa Clara, CalfdmJuarez, Mexico, which was comple
by the end of 2008. The October restructuring ptatuded a total reduction of 111 full time headebin Santa Clara, California by July 2009
as we move customer care, accounts
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receivable, credit and collections, and customengregistration organizations in Santa Clara,f@atia to our existing facilities in Costa Ric

In 2008, we incurred approximately $6.2lionl in restructuring expenses relating to thes®mas which includes $0.7 million related to
the acceleration of stock option vesting and $5l8amn related to severance and termination beagfift which $3.0 million was paid during t
year.

We are phasing in the relocation to Costa Rf our shared services group in an attemptitonize disruptions to customer service le\
and expect the relocation to be completed by JOB82We expect to incur additional restructuringrgfes of approximately $1.8 million dur
the first half of 2009.

Patients First Program and settlement costs:

Years Ended December 31

200¢ Change 2007  Change 2006
(in millions)
Patients First Progral $— $1.8 $(1.& $10.1) $ 8.2
Settlement cosl — — (6.0) 6.C
Total Patients First Program and settlement ¢ $— $1.8 $(1.§ 9$(16.1) $14.c
% of net revenue — (0.6)% 7.C%

As part of the OrthoClear Agreement in ®et02006, OrthoClear agreed to stop the importaifaaligners into the United States and
discontinue all aligner business operations wortthwiAs a result, most OrthoClear patients were lgnabcomplete their orthodontic treatment
with OrthoClear. In an attempt to help minimizeatraent disruptions for the OrthoClear patients ted doctors, we committed to make
treatment available to these patients at no additioost under the "Patients First Program”. Inftheth quarter of 2006, we recorded an
$8.3 million charge for the anticipated costs ahpdeting this program. Subsequently, in the firsaiger of 2007, we reduced our Patients First
Program accrual by $1.8 million to reflect a redueof our initial estimate to the number of caaetially received by the case submission
deadline. We shipped all Patients First Prograresay June 30, 2007.

We paid $20.0 million to OrthoClear duritthg fourth quarter of 2006 in accordance with #vens of the OrthoClear Agreement, of wh
$14.0 million was capitalized on our balance sheptesenting the fair value of the non-competeergents and is being amortized over
5 years. In accordance with Emerging Issues TasteH®4-01 "Accounting for Pre-existing ContractRalationships between the Parties to a
Purchase Business Combination" ("EITF@4Y, we recorded the remaining $6.0 million asleetent costs in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2(

Interest and other income (expense), net:

Years Ended December 31
2008  Change 2007  Change 2006

(in millions)
Interest incomt $31 $(1.1) $42 $ 1C $3.2
Interest (expense — 0.2 (0.3 — (0.3
Other income (expense), r (5 (.7 (0.8 (13 o=t
Total interest and other income(expense), $16 $(15) $31 $(0.3 $34
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Interest and other income (expense), nebydes interest income earned on cash balandesgsh expense on debt, foreign currency
translation gains and losses and other miscellaneloarges.

Interest income, net in 2008 decreasedlby Billion compared to 2007 primarily due to loveerage cash, cash equivalents and
marketable securities balances resulting from 8@&@million stock repurchase program and lowesrigdt rates. In 2008, we shifted our
investments into more conservative instrumentscipally, U.S. government securities, which beardoterest rates. We incurred no interest
expense in 2008 compared to 2007. In 2007 we iadunterest expense on the outstanding balancerdine of credit during 2007 which was
repaid during 2007. We had no outstanding borrosvimg of December 31, 2008.

Other income (expense), net, increase®@82Zompared to 2007 reflecting increases in foreigrency translation losses.

Interest income, net increased in 2007 aregbto 2006 primarily due to higher average ceash equivalents and marketable securities
balances in 2007.

Other income (expense), net, decrease@0i@ 2ompared to 2006 reflecting the decrease &idorcurrency translation gains. In January
2007, we began to record the adjustments fromlating certain European subsidiaries' financialesteents from the local currency into the
U.S. dollar as a separate component of sharehbklprgy on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.lt8ee 7A "Quantitative And Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk" under the headingrt€ncy Rate Riskfor additional information on the change in funotbcurrency.

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes:

Years Ended December 31,
2008 Change 2007 Change 2006
(in millions)

Provision for (benefit from) income tax $(63.0 $(64.2 $1.2 $ 04 ¢0.8

We recorded an income tax benefit of $68ildon for 2008 and income tax provisions of $Mm#lion and $0.8 million for 2007 and 20(
respectively. These represented effective tax 1@t€368.4)%, 3.3%, and (2.4)%, in 2008, 2007 a@d&? respectively. Our income tax
provision is based upon our operating results &mheaxable jurisdiction in which we operate areldmount of statutory tax that we incur in
each jurisdiction. We exercised significant judgtarregards to estimates of future market grofidlecasted earnings and projected taxable
income, in determining the provision for incomedsxand for purposes of assessing our abilityil@eiany future benefit from deferred tax
assets. At December 31, 2008, based on availaBlévgoevidence, we determined that most of ouedetl tax assets would be realized with
the exception of certain capital loss and foreighaperating loss carryforwards as we cannot fatesuafficient future capital gains or foreign
source income to realize these deferred tax asBetsefore, we recorded a tax valuation allowaetease of $64.6 million in 2008. The
remaining valuation allowance of approximately $&iflion relating to capital loss and foreign neteoating loss carryforwards as of
December 31, 2008, will result in an income taxddief and when we conclude it is more likely thaot that the related deferred tax assets
will be realized.

At December 31, 2008, we had net operdtiag carryforwards of approximately $191.1 million federal tax purposes and $68.1 million
for California state tax purposes. If not utilizéidese carryforwards will begin to expire in 2020 fiederal purposes and 2010 for California
purposes. FAS 123R prohibits recognition of a deféincome tax asset for excess tax benefits damtk option exercises that have not yet
been realized through a reduction in income taggslple. Such unrecognized deferred tax benefitdedt$7.5 million as of December 31,
2008 and will be accounted for as a credit to daltltl paid-in capital, if and when realized throwgheduction in income taxes

50




Table of Contents

payable. The Internal Revenue Code imposes an biimitation on the use of a corporation's taxihtites if a corporation undergoes an
ownership change for tax purposes. If an ownershgnge is determined to have occurred, our alidityse the net operating loss
carryforwards would be subject to an annual linot@tHowever, based on our current estimate ofdte net operating losses at December 31,
2008 and our current estimate of the annual linitatwe do not expect our net operating loss carwérds to be limited. At December 31,
2008, we had research credit carryforwards of apprately $3.5 million for federal purposes and $shillion for California state tax purpose

If not utilized, the federal credit carryforwarddleegin to expire in 2017. The California statedit can be carried forward indefinitely.

We have not provided additional U.S. incdmess on undistributed earnings from non- U.Srafpens as of December 31, 2008 because
such earnings are intended to be reinvested irtifiroutside of the United States.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We fund our operations from product satles,proceeds of the sale of our common stock, eord bccasional borrowings under our
available credit facility. As of December 31, 20@807 and 2006, we had the following cash and eagsiivalents, restricted cash and short-
term investments:

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalel $ 87,10C $ 89,11¢ $55,11:
Restricted cas — 21 93
Shor-term investment 23,06¢ 38,77: 8,931
Total $110,16¢ $127,91: $64,13%

Net cash provided by operating activitiesthe year ended December 31, 2008 was $39.7omillesulting primarily from our net profit
of $80.0 million and non-cash items totaling $3&iflion, which included depreciation, amortizatiohintangibles, option acceleration charges
for terminated executives and stock-based compensatpense. Also included in non-cash items waasalt impairment charge of
$1.7 million relating to management's decisionadonger invest in an internally developed softwa@ for business process management.
These increases were offset by the release of @asimtax valuation allowance of $64.6 million oastof the deferred tax assets. Cash flows
from operating activities also resulted from a $#iBion increase in deferred revenue and a $0l8anidecrease in inventories. These
increases in cash flows were offset by an $8.Cee in accounts receivable and a decrease ofrfiidn in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities.

Net cash provided by operating activitiesthe year ended December 31, 2007 was $52.&millesulting primarily from our net income
of $35.7 million and non-cash items such as deptieci and amortization, stock-based compensatiwhamortization of intangibles totaling
$25.6 million. Additionally, a $2.7 million increasn accounts payable also contributed to the aszrén net cash provided by operating
activities. These increases in cash flows from afiey activities were partially offset by a $10.1lion increase in accounts receivable.

Net cash used in operating activities far year ended December 31, 2006 was $14.0 millesulting primarily from our net loss of
$35.0 million and non-cash items such as depreciahd amortization, stock-based compensationaarattization of intangibles totaling
$19.2 million. Additionally, a $6.4 million increasn current assets and a $5.8 million reductiodeferred revenue partially offset by a
$14.3 million increase in accounts payable andwsztiiabilities also contributed to the cash usedperating activities. The increase in
accrued liabilities was primarily due to the
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$6.8 million accrual as of December 31, 2006 ferdhticipated costs of completing the Patients Frsgram.

Net cash used in investing activities was $nillion for the year ended December 31, 2008 @msisted of $14.3 million for the purch:
of property and equipment offset by $12.9 millidmet maturities of marketable securities. As ailtesf current adverse financial market
conditions, investments in some financial instruteenay pose risks arising from liquidity and crestihcerns. Although we believe our curr
investment portfolio has very little risk of impaient, we cannot predict future market conditionmarket liquidity and can provide no
assurance that our investment portfolio will remammpaired.

Net cash used in investing activities wag.8 million for the year ended December 31, 20@vch largely consisted of $29.9 million of
net purchases of short-term marketable securitidsb@.4 million used for the purchase of capitakts

Net cash used in investing activities wa2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2@0Bnarily due to a $14.0 million purchase of
intangible assets resulting from the OrthoCleare®gnent, $10.0 million for the purchase of capitaleds and $8.9 million for net purchases of
short-term marketable securities.

Net cash used in financing activities wd8.8 million for the year ended December 31, 20@8r@sulted primarily from our $50.1 millic
stock repurchase including commissions offset By million in proceeds from the issuance of ounown stock, principally from exercises
of employee stock options and purchases undemtiptogee stock purchase plan.

Net cash provided by financing activitiesss$17.5 million for the year ended December 30724hd consisted of $29.0 million in
proceeds from the issuance of our common stockyasily from exercises of employee stock optiongsTihcrease was partially offset by the
repayment of $11.5 million against the outstandiaance on our line of credit. Net cash providedibgncing activities was $27.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2006 and consistetba? $nillion in proceeds from the issuance of ammmon stock, primarily from exercises
of employee stock options and $11.5 million in betrowings from our line of credit.

Net proceeds from the issuance of our comstock related to the exercise of employee st@tions have historically been a significant
component of our liquidity. However, in 2006, wegha granting restricted stock units ("RSUs") whighlike stock options, do not generate
cash from exercise. As a result, we will likely geate less cash from the proceeds of the salerafaamon stock in future periods. In
addition, because RSUs are taxable to the indiléduben they vest, the number of shares we isseadh of our executive officers will be net
of applicable withholding taxes which will be pdigl us on their behalf. During 2008 and 2007, wel [$.5 million and $0.4 million of taxes
related to RSUs that vested during the period fecetive officers.

On December 5, 2008, we renegotiated arehded our existing credit facility with ComericarBaUnder this revolving line of credit, \
have $25.0 million of available borrowings with aturity date of December 31, 2010. This creditlfigzciequires a quick ratio covenant and
also requires us to maintain a minimum unrestricesh balance of $10.0 million. As of December2fI08, we had no outstanding borrowi
and we were in compliance with the financial coverd this credit facility.

On April 29, 2008, we announced that ouamloof Directors had approved a stock repurchasgram of up to $50 million. During the
year ended December 31, 2008, we repurchased Higmshares of common stock at an average prickl6f76 per share for an aggrec
purchase price of $50.1 million including commissioAs of December 31, 2008, we had completed ebpses under the stock repurchase
authorization.
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Contractual Obligations/Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The impact that our contractual obligatiassof December 31, 2008 are expected to have moligaidity and cash flows in future periods
is as follows (in thousands):

Payments Due by Perioc

Less thar More than

1-2 35
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Operating lease obligatiol $ 9,687 $3,23¢ $4,20f $2,24¢ $ —
Computer support servic 38¢ 38¢ — — —
Total $10,07¢ $3,622 $4,20f $2,24¢ $ —

In July 2008, we entered into an agreerrefavor of and for the benefit of Elamex de Jua®A. DE C.V., or Elamex, landlord to IMS,
our third party shelter services provider. Undés #tigreement, we guarantee IMS' lease paymentis fiacility located in Juarez, Mexico. The
monthly rent for this 68,000 square foot facilisyd30,000 and the lease expires in July 2013. Batga the guarantee, we are obligated to pay
Elamex for any rental payments in default by IM$iribg the year ended December 31, 2008, there meerental payment defaults by IMS.

On December 22, 2008, we notified IMS of imtiention to terminate IMS' shelter services agement effective April 2009. At that time,
we will become a direct manufacturer of our cldagreers at the facility in Juarez, Mexico and wel @iso assume IMS' lease with Elamex.

We had no off-balance sheet arrangemendefased in Regulation S-K Iltem 303(a) (4) as otBmber 31, 2008.

We believe that our current cash and caslivalents combined with our existing borrowing aeipy will be sufficient to fund our
operations for at least the next 12 months. If rgeumable to generate adequate operating cash, fleevmay need to seek additional sources of
capital through equity or debt financing, collaliosa or other arrangements with other companiesk imancing and other sources in order to
realize our objectives and to continue our openatidhere can be no assurance that we will betaldbtain additional debt or equity financi
on terms acceptable to us, or at all. If adequatdd are not available, we may need to make busiesssions that could adversely affect our
operating results such as modifications to ouripgigolicy, business structure or operations. Adoagly, the failure to obtain sufficient funds
on acceptable terms when needed could have a aladrvierse effect on our business, results of dipasaand financial condition.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management's discussion and analysis ofioancial condition and results of operationsaséxd upon our consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordeitttaccounting principles generally accepted i thnited States of America. The
preparation of financial statements requires ounagament to make estimates and judgments that #fieeceported amounts of assets and
liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosatré®e date of the financial statements. We evalaat estimates on an on-going basis,
including those related to revenue recognitiorglsioased compensation and income taxes. We user#ative pronouncements, historical
experience and other assumptions as the basisakingestimates. Actual results could differ frdmge estimates.

We believe the following critical accourgipolicies and estimates affect our more signifigadgments used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements.
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Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with SEXf Accounting Bulletin No. 104 "Revenue Recdigm” ("SAB 104"), and Emerging
Issues Task Force ("EITF") No. 00-21 "Revenue Ageanents with Multiple Deliverables” ("EITF 00-219AB 104 requires that four basic
criteria must be met before revenue can be recednjzersuasive evidence of an arrangement exiisedy has occurred, the price is fixed or
determinable, and collectibility is reasonably asdu

Revenues are recognized from product saof discounts and rebates. Service revenuatedeto the training of dental professionals
and staff on the Invisalign treatment process ecended when the services are completed.

We enter into arrangements that involvetiplel product deliveries in the future. Includedli® price of Invisalign Full, Invisalign Teen
and Invisalign Assist, we offer case refinementiohlis a finishing tool used to adjust a patietg&th to the desired final position. Case
refinement may be elected by the dental profeskiarthe last stages of orthodontic treatment. \We vendor specific objective evidence of
fair value to allocate revenue to the case refimgrdeliverable and recognize the residual revemas shipment. We defer the fair value of
case refinement upon shipment based on a breakatye,fwhich is determined by sufficient historieaperience of case refinement utilizati
We believe that the use of a breakage factor soregble and appropriate because of the relatibdistaf case refinement utilization since
case refinement was first offered. Actual utilipatrates could differ from the historical break&agtor requiring future adjustments to rever

Revenues are deferred for certain prodimetsinclude staged delivery. Depending on the pcodevenues are recognized based on usage
case completion, ratably over a delivery periodmon shipment of the final staged shipment. Revéouthe six replacement aligners incluc
in Invisalign Teen is deferred based on the fairketvalue until the earlier of replacement alignleeing used or until the case is completed.
The Vivera retainer includes four shipments perryaad revenue is deferred upon the first shipraedtrecognized ratably over the one year
delivery period. For Invisalign Assist, when thegress tracking feature is selected, alignerstapped to the dental professional after every
nine stages. For these cases, revenue is defgroedtie first staged shipment and will be recoghizgon shipment of the final staged
shipment.

We estimate and record a provision for am®of estimated losses on sales, if any, in thi@gesuch sales occur. Provisions for discounts
and rebates to customers are provided for in theegzeriod that the related product sales are reddsdsed upon historical discounts and
rebates.

Stock-based Compensation Expense

We adopted the fair value recognition ps@s of Statement of Financial Accounting Stansl&fBAS") No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-
Based Payment" ("FAS 123R") in 2006. Accordingly scognize compensation cost for only those shdtiesately expected to vest on a
straight-line basis over the requisite servicequedf the award, net of an estimated forfeiture.réife estimate the fair value of stock options
using a Black-Scholes valuation model, which reggithe input of highly subjective assumptions,ldaig the option's expected term and
stock price volatility. In addition, judgment issalrequired in estimating the number of stock-baseards that are expected to be forfeited.
Forfeitures are estimated based on historical éspes at the time of grant and revised, if necgssarsubsequent periods if actual forfeitures
differ from those estimates. The assumptions usedliculating the fair value of share-based payraerrds represent management's best
estimates, but these estimates involve inherergrteiaties and the application of management'smedg. As a result, if factors change and we
use different assumptions, our stock-based compiensaxpense could be materially different in theufe. Prior to FAS 123R adoption, we
accounted for share-based payment awards undeuAting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accountiiog Stock Issued to
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Employees" ("APB 25") and its related interpretaticSee Note 10 "Stockholders' Equity" in the NoteSdnsolidated Financial Statements
additional information.

Long-lived assets, including finite lived purchasetdngible assets

Long-lived assets, including intangibleetsother than goodwill are amortized over the@fuislives, unless these lives are determined to
be indefinite. Intangible assets are carried at less accumulated amortization. Long-lived asaetseviewed for impairment in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards NBt, "Accounting for the Impairment or DisposalLong-Lived Assets" ("FAS 144").
We perform an impairment test whenever events angés in circumstances indicate that the carryalgevof such assets may not be
recoverable. Examples of such events or circumetamclude significant underperformance relativlistorical or projected future operating
results, significant changes in the manner of disbevacquired assets or the strategy for its mssinsignificant negative industry or economic
trends, or a significant decline in our stock pficea sustained period. Impairments are recogrizestd on the difference between the fair
value of the asset and its carrying value, andvaline is generally measured based on discountdftaw analyses. Management decided to
no longer invest in an internally developed sofeviaol for business process management resulting esset impairment charge of
$1.7 million which was recorded in general and adstiative expense in the fourth quarter of 2008.ilNangible asset impairment was
recorded for the periods presented.

Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance

We consider all available evidence, botkifpee and negative including historical levelsrmfome, expectations and risks associated with
estimates of future taxable income and ongoing gmuiend feasible tax planning strategies in assgs$le need for a valuation allowance. In
the fourth quarter of 2008, with the exception eiftain capital loss and foreign net operating tessyforwards, we determined that it was
likely than not the deferred tax assets would la¢ized. Accordingly, we released the tax valuattiowance on most of the deferred tax assets
and recorded an income tax benefit of $64.6 milfamthe year ended December 31, 2008.

As of December 31, 2008, we believed thatamount of deferred tax assets recorded on damdrmsheet would ultimately be realized.
However, should there be a change in our abilityetmver our deferred tax assets, our tax provigionld increase in the period in which we
determine that it is more likely than not that veaeot recover our deferred tax assets.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 "Summary of Significant AccongtPolicies" in the Notes to Consolidated FinanSikatements in Item 8 for a full description
of recent accounting pronouncements, includingettpected dates of adoption and estimated effectssuits of operations and financial
condition, which is incorporated herein.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

In the normal course of business, we apmsad to foreign currency exchange rate and irtteags risks that could impact our financial
position and results of operations.

Interest Rate Risk

Changes in interest rates could impactamticipated interest income on our cash equival@ntsinvestments in marketable securities.
cash equivalents and investments are in fixed-shi@it-term securities. Fixed-rate securities mayehtheir fair market value adversely
impacted due to a rise in interest rates, andrasudt, our future investment income may fall studreéxpectations due to
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changes in interest rates or we may suffer logspsimcipal if forced to sell securities which hadeclined in market value due to changes in
interest rates. As of December 31, 2008, we hadl$28lion invested in available-for-sale marketbkcurities. An immediate 10% increase
in interest rates would not have a material advienpact on our future operating results and cashdl

We do not have interest bearing liabilitessof December 31, 2008 and therefore, we arsuigéct to risks from immediate interest rate
decreases.

Currency Rate Risk

We operate in North America, Europe, AsétiRc, Costa Rica and Japan. As a result of oierimational business activities, our financial
results could be affected by factors such as ctamg@®reign currency exchange rates or economiditions in foreign markets, and there is
no assurance that exchange rate fluctuations wflharm our business in the future. We sell oudpots in the local currency for the respec
country. This provides some natural hedging becenusst of the subsidiaries' operating expenseseerdinated in their local currencies as
discussed further below. Regardless of this natedbing, our results of operations may be adwersgdacted by the exchange rate
fluctuation. Although we will continue to monitoupexposure to currency fluctuations, and, whepr@griate, may use financial hedging
techniques in the future to minimize the effecttefse fluctuations, we are not currently engagexhinfinancial hedging transactions. The
impact of an aggregate decline of 10% in foreigmemcy exchange rates relative to the U.S. dolaour results of operations and financial
position could be material.

Prior to January 1, 2007, the functionatency of Align and our subsidiaries was the U @lad, and accordingly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement of monetary assetdiabilities denominated in Euros, Costa RiCatones, and other currencies were
reflected in other income (expense). During thet fijuarter of 2007, we analyzed the various ecoadéactors of our international subsidiaries
in accordance with FAS 52 and determined that thatebeen a significant change in facts and cirtamegs to warrant a change in the
functional currency for some of our European subsiels from the U.S. dollar to the local currengffective January 1, 2007, the adjustment
from translating certain European subsidiarieglritial statements from the local currency intoWh®. dollar was recorded as a separate
component of accumulated other comprehensive incogten the stockholder's equity section of oung€sidated Balance Sheets.
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ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SU PPLEMENTARY DATA

Quarterly Results of Operations

Three Months Ended
2008 2007
31-Dec 3C-Sep 3C-Jun 31-Mar 31-Dec 3C-Sep 3C-Jun 31-Mar
(in thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited)

Net revenue $74,12% $75,17% $79,90: $74,77¢ $72,517 $71,45. $76,60: $63,76:
Gross profil 53,89: 56,407 59,65¢ 55,16¢ 53,39( 53,31¢ 56,35¢ 46,23:
Profit from operations(1)(z 1,32t 5,691 3,872 4,62¢ 5,01z 8,39t 13,44¢ 7,00(
Net profit(1)(2)(3) $65,49¢ $ 5,157 $ 4,03C $ 5,30¢ $ 5,66¢ $ 9,46( $13,61¢ $ 6,97¢
Net profit per share

Basic $ 09¢$ 00t$ 00€% 00e$ 0083 0143 020% 0.11
Diluted $ 09¢$ 00¢$ 00€% 007% 008$ 012 % 01¢$ 0.1C
Shares used in computing net profit per sl

Basic 66,44( 67,367 68,581 69,05! 68,56: 67,97( 66,69¢ 65,43:
Diluted 66,81¢ 68,70¢ 69,91¢ 70,86( 71,86« 72,23( 71,207 69,33

1)

%)

®)

March 2007 profit from operations and net profitlirded a $1.8 million credit for the Patients FPsbgram and settlement cosige
Note 5 "Patients First Program and settlement costshe Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateméntsdditional information

September and December 2008 profit from operatmsnet profit included $2.2 million and 4.0 mitliarespectively, for restructurir
charges. SeNote 18 "Restructurings"” in the Notes to ConsobdafFinancial Statementsr additional information.

December 2008 net profit included a $64.6 milli@méfit to income taxes as a result of the reledsetax valuation allowance on mc
of the deferred tax assets. $éa@e 13 "Income Taxes" in the Notes to Consolid&iadncial Statement®r additional information.
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Invisalign, Align, ClinCheck, Invisalign Assistylsalign Teen and Vivera, amongst others, are tnaaids belonging to Align Technology, |
and are pending or registered in the United Stated other countries.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN CIAL REPORTING

Management of Align is responsible for bthing and maintaining adequate internal cortra@r financial reporting as defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 1585(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934gié internal control over financial reportingdiesigned to provid
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaiicial reporting and the preparation of finansiatements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples Internal control over financial reportingindes those policies and procedures that:

. pertain to the maintenance of records that, inaralsle detail, accurately and fairly reflect trengactions and dispositions of
assets of the company;

. provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@reded as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iahstatements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes; and that receipts and expenditures of thepemy are being made ot
in accordance with authorizations of managementdimretttors of the company; and

. provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibtmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, eselisposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effettte financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. In addition, project
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future pesiade subject to the risk that controls may becoméequate because of changes in conditions
and that the degree of compliance with the polioiegrocedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectivenessgii'éinternal control over financial reportinga<December 31, 2008. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria setrfdrtternal Control-Integrated Framework issuedtsy Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Based on its assessment and those criteaiaagement has concluded that, as of Decemb@088, Align's internal control over financ
reporting was effective to provide reasonable asste regarding the reliability of financial repongiand the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealepted accounting principles.

The Company's internal control over finaheceporting as of December 31, 2008 has beenexltlit PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,taged in their report which is included herein, gthexpresses an ungualified opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal controkdivencial reporting as of December 31, 2008.

/s THOMAS M. PRESCOT1

Thomas M. Prescott
President and Chief Executive Offic

February 27, 200

/sl KENNETH B. AROLA

Kenneth B. Arola
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Offi

February 27, 200
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Stockholders and Board of Directafrdlign Technology, Inc. and subsidiaries:

In our opinion, the consolidated finanatdtements listed in the index under item 15(g)(&yent fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Align Technology, Inc. and gubsidiaries at December 31, 2008 and 2007 heniesults of their operations and their «
flows for each of the three years in the periodeehdecember 31, 2008 in conformity with accounpinigciples generally accepted in the
United States of America. In addition, in our opimj the financial statement schedule listed inatmompanying index appearing under item 15
(a)(2) presents fairly, in all material respedt® information set forth therein when read in caojion with the related consolidated financial
statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maiet, in all material respects, effective interoahtrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008, based on criteria establish&ttémal Control—Integrated Framework issued iy @ommittee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOg CTbmpany's management is responsible for theardial statements and financial
statement schedule, for maintaining effective imaércontrol over financial reporting and for itsassment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in thecampanying Management's Report on Internal Co@x@r Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on theserfaia statements, on the financial statement sdbednd on the Company's internal control
over financial reporting based on our integrateditauWe conducted our audits in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thdsedards require that we plan and perform the sadibbtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of malterisstatement and whether effective internal mdmiver financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audits of the finahstatements included examining, on a test bagidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assesagccounting principles used and significannestés made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. Quditeof internal control over financial reportingcluded obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing thk tiigt a material weakness exists, and testingeaatliating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on thesseskrisk. Our audits also included performing satbler procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe thaaadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures thakefifain to the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatggaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readdeassurance regarding prevention or timely detecf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, CA
February 27, 2009
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share data)

Net revenues
Invisalign
Ancillary products and other servic

Total net revenue

Cost of revenues
Invisalign
Ancillary products and other servic

Total cost of revenue

Gross profit
Operating expense
Sales and marketir
General and administratiy
Research and developme
Patients First Program and settlement ¢
Restructuring:

Total operating expens
Profit (loss) from operatior

Interest incom:
Interest expens
Other income (expens

Net profit (loss) before provision for income ta;
Provision for (benefit from) income tax

Net profit (loss)

Net profit (loss) per sharn
Basic

Diluted

Shares used in computing net profit (loss) peresi
Basic

Diluted

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
$291,63( $271,35( $194,58:
12,34¢  12,98: 11,77
303,07 284,33 206,35
70,18¢  65,49(  55,75¢
8,66¢ 9,54¢ 9,01¢
78,85( 7503t 64,77t
22512 209,29° 141,57
115,06.  98,23:  81,99:
62,15 53,28 64,30
26,168 25727 18,47«
— (1,796 14,34
6,231 — —
209,61, 17544; 17911
1551 33,85 (37,530
3,05: 4,19¢ 3,17¢
(24) (342) (296)
(1,466) (75¢) 51¢
17,07¢  36,95(  (34,13)
(62,91)  1,22¢ 82¢
$ 79,980 $ 3572 $(34,96))
$ 12 $ 055 $ (059
$ 11¢ $ 05 $ (0.59
66,81:  67,17¢  63,24¢
68,06: 71,44«  63,24¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except per share data)

December 31,
2008 2007
ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 87,10C $ 89,11¢
Restricted cas — 21
Marketable securities, sh-term 23,06¢ 38,77
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#ittounts of $612 and $760, respecti 52,36: 44,85(
Inventories, ne 1,96¢ 2,91(
Prepaid expenses and other current a 13,41« 8,84¢
Total current asse 177,90 184,51°
Property and equipment, r 26,97¢ 25,32(
Goodwill 47¢ 47€
Intangible assets, n 7,78¢ 10,61¢
Deferred tax asst 61,69¢
Other asset 4,49: 1,831
Total asset $279,34: $222,76:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 5580 $ 9,227
Accrued liabilities 38,28 39,87¢
Deferred revenue 16,71( 12,36:
Total current liabilities 60,57- 61,45¢
Other lon¢-term liabilities 22¢ 14¢
Total liabilities 60,801 61,607
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 7 ar
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value (5,000 sharg®ared; none issue: — —
Common stock, $0.0001 par value (200,000 sharémaréd; 65,633 and 68,682 shares issued, respbctdb,63:
and 68,642 shares outstanding, respecti\ 7 7
Additional pait-in capital 439,49: 450,14(
Accumulated other comprehensive income, 26¢ 657
Accumulated defici (221,23()  (289,65()
Total stockholders' equit 218,54( 161,15
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $279,34: $222,76:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 200

(in thousands)

Balances at December 31, 2(

Net loss
Net change in unrealized loss from avail-for sale securitie

Comprehensive net lo:

Issuance of common stock relating to employee spockhase pla
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodbiug
Stocl-based compensatic

Balances at December 31, 2(

Net profit
Net change in cumulative translation adjustmn
Net change in unrealized loss from avail-for sale securitie

Comprehensive net incon

Issuance of common stock relating to employee spockhase pla

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodbiug

Issuance of common stock in settlement of resttisteck units, net of shares withheld for employe
taxes

Excess tax benefit from shi-based payment arrangeme

Stocl-based compensatic

Balances at December 31, 2C

Net profit
Net change in unrealized gain from availi-for sale securitie
Net change in cumulative translation adjustmn

Comprehensive net incon

Issuance of common stock relating to employee spockhase pla

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodbiug

Issuance of common stock in settlement of restfisteck units, net of shares withheld for employe
taxes

Common stock repurchas

Excess tax benefit from shi-based payment arrangeme

Stocl-based compensatic

Acceleration of stoc-based compensatic

Balances at December 31, 2(

Accumulated

Additional Other
—Common Stock Comprehensive  Accumulated
Paid in

Shares  Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Total
62,08( $ 6 $ 38383 $ 7 $ (290,41) $ 93,43¢
_ _ — — (34,969 (34,967
— — — @ — @
(34,967)
462 — 2,58: — — 2,58:¢
2,317 — 13,59: — — 13,59.
— — 8,91( — — 8,91(
64,85¢ $ 6 $ 408,92: $ 3 $ (325379 $ 83,55¢
35,72« 35,72¢
— — — 702 — 70
— — — (49 — (49
36,37¢
58C — 3,43¢ — — 3,43¢
3,04¢ 1 25,55¢ — — 25,55¢
15E — (4393) — — (439)
— — 44¢ — — 44¢
— — 12,21: — — 12,212
68,64: $ 7 $ 450,14( $ 657 $ (289,65() $161,15¢
79,987 79,987
33 33
(421 (421)
79,59¢
52: 4,457 4,457
912 6,04¢ 6,04¢
21€ (460) (460)
(4,660 (38,579 (11,567 (50,139
144 144
17,057 17,05%
67€ 67¢
65,63: $ 7 % 439,49: $ 26  $ (221,23() $218,54(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit (loss) $79,98° $3572¢ $(34,96)
Adjustments to reconcile net profit (loss) to naste provided by (used in) operating activil
Deferred taxe (64,609 — —
Depreciation and amortizatic 9,96/ 10,17¢ 9,27¢
Stock-based compensatic 17,053 12,211 8,91(
Acceleration of stoc-based compensatic 67¢ — —
Amortization of intangible: 2,821 3,20¢ 992
Provision for doubtful accoun 71 46 (28¢)
Loss on retirement and disposal of fixed as 513 24 40
Loss on impairment of fixed asst 1,712 — —
Excess tax benefit from sh-based payment arrangeme (144) (449 —
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqaisiéffect:
Accounts receivabl (7,957 (10,709 (4,049
Inventories 943 18€ (160
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 27¢€ (1,480 (2,24%
Accounts payabl (2,657) 2,73¢ 2,997
Accrued and other loi-term liabilities (3,48%) (295) 11,25¢
Deferred revenue 4,55¢ 1,39( (5,80%)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 39,74¢ 52,777 (14,030
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipm (14,339 (7,429 (10,029
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn 18¢ — 36€
Restricted cas 21 77 57
Purchase of marketable securit (75,050 (64,68¢) (18,416
Maturities of marketable securiti 87,92¢ 34,791 9,481
Payments for acquisition, net of cash acqu — — —
Purchase of intangible ass — — (14,000
Other asset 198 462 (211)
Net cash used in investing activiti (1,055 (36,779 (32,75)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of common si 10,50¢ 28,99: 16,17¢
Proceeds from line of crec — 15,00(

Payments on line of crec (11,500 (3,500

Payments on she«term obligations (407)

Repurchases of common stc (50,13¢) — —
Excess tax benefit from sh-based payment arrangeme 144 44¢ —
Employees' taxes paid upon the vesting of resttisteck units (460C) (433) —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (40,355  17,50¢ 27,67¢
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on castcasid equivalent (355) 49¢ —
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (2,019 34,00¢ (19,106
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of 89,11¢ 55,11 74,21¢
Cash and cash equivalents, end of ) $87,10C $89,11¢ $ 55,11

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Business Description

Align Technology, Inc. ("Align" or the "Cgmany") was incorporated in April 1997 and designanufactures and markets the Invisalign
system, a proprietary method for treating malogolusor the misalignment of teeth. Invisalign cateemalocclusion using a series of clear,
nearly invisible, removable appliances that genttyve teeth to a desired final position.

Basis of presentation and preparation

The consolidated financial statements idelthe accounts of the Company and its wholly-owswdssidiaries after elimination of
intercompany transactions and balances.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America
requires the Company's management to make estimateassumptions that affect the amounts repantétei consolidated financial stateme
and accompanying notes. Actual results could diffaterially from those estimates.

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company's eeshcash equivalents, accounts receivable, accpagtble and other current liabilities
approximate the fair value.

Cash equivalents and marketable securities

Cash equivalents consist of highly liguidtruments purchased with an original maturityhoé¢& months or less. The Company invests
primarily in money market funds, commercial pagard United States government securities, accorgitigese investments are subject to
minimal credit and market risks.

Marketable securities are classified aslaviz-for-sale and are carried at fair value. Medble securities classified as current assets have
maturities of less than one year. Unrealized gairiesses on such securities are included in actaiediother comprehensive income (loss) in
stockholders' equity. Realized gains and losses fraturities of all such securities are reporteddmings and computed using the specific
identification cost method. Realized gains or Issmed charges for other-than-temporary declineslue, if any, on available-for-sale
securities are reported in other income (expers@arred. The Company periodically evaluatesdhegestments for other-than-temporary
impairment.

The Company adopted the provisions of &tate of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 (SFA "Fair Value
Measurements" ("FAS 157"), for measuring its caglivalents and marketable securities effective dgnf, 2008. FAS 157 defines fair value
as the price that would be received from sellingsset or paid to transfer a liability in an orgdéransaction between market participants at the
measurement date. FAS 157 establishes a fair Wduarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuattenhniques used to measure fair value. This
hierarchy requires an entity to maximize the uselservable inputs and minimize the use of unolad#evinputs when measuring fair value.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued)

The Company also adopted FAS No. 159, 'Héie Value Option for Financial Assets and Finahktiabilities—Including an amendment
of FAS No. 115" ("FAS 159"). FAS 159 expands the afair value accounting but does not affect xisstandards which require assets or
liabilities to be carried at fair value. Under FAS9, a company may elect to use fair value to nreastcounts and loans receivable, available-
for-sale and held-to-maturity securities, equitytmoel investments, accounts payable, guaranteessuned debt. Other eligible items include
firm commitments for financial instruments thatetise would not be recognized at inception andcesh warranty obligations where a
warrantor is permitted to pay a third party to pdevthe warranty goods or services. If the usawffalue is elected, any upfront costs and fees
related to the item must be recognized in earnamgscannot be deferred, e.g., debt issue costsfaithealue election is irrevocable and
generally made on an instrument-ingtrument basis, even if a company has similgransents that it elects not to measure based owdhie.

At the adoption date, unrealized gains and loseexxisting items for which fair value has been &ldare reported as a cumulative adjustment
to beginning retained earnings. Subsequent todbptaon of FAS 159, changes in fair value are reded in earnings. The adoption of

FAS 159 did not have a material impact on the Camiisgaconsolidated financial position, results oéigtions or cash flows as the fair value
option was not elected for any of the Company'arfaial assets or financial liabilities at the datt@doption.

Restricted cash

The Company's restricted cash as of DeceBhe2007 was $21,000 and was primarily comprisfeal security deposit for a leasing
arrangement in Europe. There was no restricted loalsimce as of December 31, 2008.

Foreign currency

The Company accounts for both the trarmtedind remeasurement of balance sheet and incateengint items into the U.S. dollar in
accordance with FAS No. 52, "Foreign Currency Tiaien" ("FAS 52"). The Company analyzes the fuoctl currency for each of its
international subsidiaries on an annual basis,aeroften if necessary, to determine if a signiftcghange in facts and circumstances indicate
that the primary economic currency has changed.

During the first quarter of 2007, the Companalyzed the various economic factors of iterimhtional subsidiaries in accordance with
FAS 52 and determined that there had been a significhange in facts and circumstances to warreh&age in the functional currency for
some of its European subsidiaries from the U.Sadtd the local currency. Effective January 1, 20e adjustment from translating certain
European subsidiaries' financial statements froeridbal currency to the U.S. dollar was recorded asparate component of accumulated
comprehensive income (loss), net in the stockheldgyuity section of the Consolidated Balance $hdditis foreign currency translation
adjustment reflects the translation of the balastwet at period end exchange rates, and the instatgment at an average exchange rate in
effect during the period. As of December 31, 2008 2007, the Company had $0.3 million and $0.7iomi|lrespectively, in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), net related to thestation of its foreign subsidiaries' financialtstaents. Seblote 15 "Comprehensive Income
(Loss)"for additional disclosures.

Align's other international entities operat a U.S. dollar functional currency environmeantd therefore, the foreign currency assets and
liabilities are remeasured into the U.S. dollacatent
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued)

exchange rates except for non-monetary assetdadilities which are remeasured at historical extjgarates. Revenues and expenses are
generally remeasured at an average exchange retieat during each period. Gains or losses fromifm currency remeasurement are
included in other income (expense). Prior to Jan®af007, all of Align's subsidiaries used the .d8lar as its functional currency, and
accordingly, gains and losses resulting from remeasent were included in other income (expense).

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 280872006, the Company included in other incompdnse) a loss of $0.4 million, a loss of
$0.1 million and a gain of $1.1 million, respectixe

Certain risks and uncertainties

The Company's operating results dependstgraficant extent on the Company's ability to ketrand develop its products. The life cycles
of the Company's products are difficult to estinmdie in part to the effect of future product enteaments and competition. The inability of the
Company to successfully develop and market itsyctedas a result of competition or other factorsilddnave a material adverse effect on the
Company's business, financial condition and resiltsperations.

Financial instruments which potentially egp the Company to concentrations of credit risksist primarily of cash equivalents,
marketable securities and accounts receivable Ciimepany invests excess cash primarily in money etdtinds of major financial
institutions, commercial paper and notes and gowent securities. If the carrying value of the Compsinvestments exceeds the fair value,
and the decline in fair value is deemed to be ethan-temporary, the Company will be required t@dewdown the value of its investments,
which could materially harm the Company's resultspeerations and financial condition. Moreover, fegformance of certain securities in the
Company's investment portfolio correlates with ¢hedit condition of the U.S. financial sector. Witte current unstable credit environment
Company might incur significant realized, unrealize impairment losses associated with these imersts. The Company provides credit to
customers in the normal course of business. Caddlaie not required for accounts receivable, bigaing evaluations of customers' credit
worthiness are performed. The Company maintairerves for potential credit losses and such losaes heen within management's
expectations. No individual customer accountedLff% or more of the Company's accounts receivatileeaémber 31, 2008 and 2007, or net
revenues in 2008, 2007 and 2006.

In the United States of America, the Fond Brug Administration ("FDA") regulates the desigmanufacture, distribution, preclinical a
clinical study, clearance and approval of mediealices. Products developed by the Company mayne@pprovals or clearances from the
FDA or other international regulatory agencies ptiocommercialized sales. There can be no asseitaiat the Company's products will
receive any of the required approvals or cleararitdse Company was denied approval or clearamcioch approval was delayed, it may have
a material adverse impact on the Company.

The Company has manufacturing operatiocatéa outside the United States of America. The @om currently relies on its
manufacturing facilities in Costa Rica to prepaigitdl treatment plans using a sophisticated, itally developed computer-modeling program.
In addition, the Company relies on a third partglsdr services provider in Juarez, Mexico to fadieécaligners and to ship the completed
product to the Company's customers. On Decembe218, the Company announced the termination chigdter services arrangement with
the third party shelter services
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued)

provider effective April 1, 2009. At that time, ti@mpany will become a direct, independent manufactof its clear aligners at the facility in
Juarez, Mexico. The Company's reliance on intesnatioperations exposes it to related risks anémaioties, including difficulties in staffing
and managing international operations; difficulilegnanaging the transition from a third party steservices arrangement to becoming an
independent manufacturer, including difficultieshining and retaining qualified personnel; conir@l production volume and quality of
manufacture; political, social and economic indtghiincluding as a result of increased levelyiaience in Juarez, Mexico; interruptions and
limitations in telecommunication services; prodact material transportation delays or disrupticage restrictions and changes in tariffs;
import and export license requirements and regirist fluctuations in foreign currency exchangesatnd potential adverse tax consequences
If any of these risks materialize, the Companytsrimational manufacturing operations, as well @®jfterating results, may be harmed.

The Company purchases certain inventomn fsole suppliers. Additionally, the Company rebesa limited number of hardware
manufacturers. The inability of any supplier or mi@acturer to fulfill supply requirements of the Cpamy could materially and adversely
impact future operating results.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of @ysharket, with cost computed on a first-in, fiostt basis.
Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at listiorost less accumulated depreciation and anadidiz. Depreciation and amortization are
computed using the straight-line method over thienased useful lives of the assets. Upon sale tireraent, the asset's cost and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the gétestger and any related gains or losses arecteflén the Consolidated Statements of
Operations. Maintenance and repairs are expensedwsed.

The Company evaluates the recoverabilitgroperty and equipment in accordance with FASMd., "Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets" ("FAS 144"), wheneegents or changes in circumstances indicatethleatarrying value of a long-lived asset
may not be recoverable. Examples of such everts@rmstances include significant underperformametative to historical or projected future
operating results, significant changes in the manhase of the acquired assets or the strategigStusiness, significant negative industry or
economic trends, or a significant decline in oocktprice for sustained period. The carrying amaidra long-lived asset is not recoverable if it
exceeds the sum of the projected undiscountedftmass expected to result from the use and evertisplosal of the asset. The Company also
compares the carrying amount of the asset toiitsrfarket value in accordance with FAS 157. FAS @Bfines fair value as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to teargsliability in an orderly transaction betweeanket participants at the measurement date. In
the event that the projected undiscounted castsfnw not sufficient to recover the carrying valfithe assets, the assets are written down to
their estimated fair values. The Company recordedsset impairment charge of $1.7 million in cotioecwith an internally developed
software in fourth quarter of 2008. See Noteldhpairment of Long-Lived Assetigt additional information.
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Development costs for internal use software

Costs relating to internal use softwareaa@ounted for in accordance with the provisionStatement of Position 98-1, "Accounting for
the Costs of Computer Software Developed or ObtefoelInternal Use" ("SOP 98*). As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, capitalinéernal
use software at cost was $5.3 million and $5.0iomlrespectively. The associated accumulated datidin was $4.7 million and $4.4 million
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectivelyit&apd software costs are amortized over theredtid useful lives of three years.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the msetprice paid over the fair value of tangible ishtifiable intangible net assets acquired in
business combinations. Goodwill is reviewed anyualithe fourth quarter and whenever events omuairstances occur which indicate that
goodwill might be impaired. The Company completsdannual evaluation of goodwill during the fougtiarter of 2008 and determined that
there was no impairment.

Long-lived assets, including finite lived purchasetdngible assets

Other intangible assets primarily consfahtangible assets purchased as part of the Otdav@greement. These assets are amortized
using the straight-line method over their estimatseful lives of three to five years, reflecting feriod in which the economic benefits of the
assets are expected to be realized.

The Company performs an impairment testnglier events or changes in circumstances indibatehe carrying value of such assets
not be recoverable. Examples of such events ourtistances include significant underperformanceivel&o historical or projected future
operating results, significant changes in the manhase of acquired assets or the strategy fdiutsness, significant negative industry or
economic trends, or a significant decline in thenPany's stock price for a sustained period. Impaims are recognized based on the differ
between the fair value of the asset and its cagryalue, and fair value is generally measured basetiscounted cash flow analyses. No
intangible asset impairment was recorded for thiege presented.

Product Warranty

The Company warrants its products agairasgernal defects until the Invisalign cases are detep. The Company accrues for product
warranty in cost of revenues upon shipment of petslProduct warranty costs are primarily basetistorical experience as to product
failures as well as current information on repaists. Actual warranty costs could differ materidttym the estimated amounts. The Company
regularly reviews the accrued balances and updadse balances based on historical warranty carsti$r Actual warranty costs incurred have
not materially differed from those accrued.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains an allowance for dfoliaccounts for estimated losses resulting fromihability of the Company's customers to
make payments. The Company periodically reviewsdlalowances, including an analysis of the custenpayment history and information
regarding the
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customers' creditworthiness. Actual write-offs haweé materially differed from the estimated allowan
Revenue Recognition

Align recognizes revenue in accordance BHEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 "Revenue &gution” ("SAB 104"), and Emerging
Issues Task Force ("EITF") No. 00-21 "Revenue Agements with Multiple Deliverables" ("EITF 00-219AB 104 requires that four basic
criteria must be met before revenue can be recegngersuasive evidence of an arrangement exaltgedy has occurred, the price is fixed or
determinable, and collectibility is reasonably asdu

Revenues are recognized from product saof discounts and rebates. Service revenuatedeto the training of dental professionals
and staff on the Invisalign treatment process ecended when the services are completed.

Align enters into arrangements that invatwaltiple product deliveries in the future. Incladia the price of Invisalign Full, Invisalign
Teen and Invisalign Assist, the Company offers eafaement, which is a finishing tool used to adja patient's teeth to the desired final
position. Case refinement may be elected by théatiprofessional in the last stages of orthodoméatment. The Company uses vendor
specific objective evidence of fair value to alltceevenue to the case refinement deliverable eoapgnizes the residual revenue upon
shipment. Align defers the fair value of case refirent upon shipment based on a breakage factachwhdetermined by sufficient historical
experience of case refinement utilization. The Canypbelieves that the use of a breakage fact@aisanable and appropriate because of the
relative stability of case refinement utilizatiance case refinement was first offered. Actualizdiion rates could differ from the historical
breakage factor requiring future adjustments t@nex.

Revenues are deferred for certain prodhetsinclude staged delivery. Depending on the pcodevenues are recognized based on usage
case completion, ratably over a subscription pesiodpon shipment of the final staged shipment.eRere for the six replacement aligners
included in Invisalign Teen is deferred based @nftir market value until the earlier of replaceimaigners being used or until the case is
completed. The Vivera retainer includes four shiptager year, and revenue is deferred upon thesfiipment and recognized as each
shipment occurs. For Invisalign Assist, when thegpess tracking feature is selected, alignerstapped to the dental professional after every
nine stages. For these cases, revenue is defgoedtie first staged shipment and will be recogihizgon shipment of the final staged
shipment.

The Company estimates and records a poovieir amounts of estimated losses on sales, ifiartyie period such sales occur. Provisions
for discounts and rebates to customers are proviadd the same period that the related produletssare recorded based upon historical
discounts and rebates.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling charges to custoraersncluded in net revenues, and the associatdd twurred are recorded in cost of revenues
for all periods presented.

Research and development
Research and development costs are expassadurred.
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Advertising costs

The cost of advertising and media is expdras incurred. For the years ended December 88, 2007 and 2006 advertising costs toti
$18.3 million, $15.9 million, and $9.2 million, m@exctively.

Income taxes

The Company estimates income taxes basdéteovarious jurisdictions where business is cotetlicSignificant judgment is required in
determining the income tax provision. Deferredadagets and liabilities are recognized for diffetirggatments of certain items for tax and
accounting purposes. These differences resultferidel tax assets and liabilities. The Company rthest assess the likelihood that its deferred
tax assets will be realized. To the extent the Camgpbelieves that realization is not likely, it Mgktablish a valuation allowance.

On January 1, 2007, the Company adoptegdrhésion of Financial Accounting Standards Bo@fASB") Interpretation No. 48,
"Accounting for Uncertain Income Taxes—An Interpitegn of FASB Statement No. 109" ("FIN 48"). FIN dRrifies the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an estftpancial statements in accordance with FAS M@, "Accounting for Income
Taxes" ("FAS 109") and prescribes a recognitioeghold and measurement attributes for financigééstant disclosure of tax positions taken
or expected to be taken on a tax return. UnderddNhe impact of an uncertain income tax positinrthe income tax return must be
recognized at the largest amount that is moreyliklghnnot to be sustained upon audit by the relevanhtpauthority. An uncertain income 1
position will not be recognized if it has less tlaB0% likelihood of being sustained. AdditionafN 48 provides guidance on decognition
classification, interest and penalties, accouniinigterim periods, disclosure and transition.

Stock-based compensation

The Company adopted the fair value recagmiprovisions of FAS No. 123 (revised 2004), "ShBased Payment" ("FAS 123R") in 20
Accordingly, the Company recognizes compensatiat foy only those shares ultimately expected ta gesa straight-line basis over the
requisite service period of the award, net of aimeged forfeiture rate. The Company estimateddirevalue of stock options using a Black-
Scholes valuation model, which requires the infutighly subjective assumptions, including the opts expected term and stock price
volatility. In addition, judgment is also requirgdestimating the number of stock-based awardsateexpected to be forfeited. Forfeitures are
estimated based on historical experience at the éfgrant and revised, if necessary, in subseqesniads if actual forfeitures differ from
those estimates. The assumptions used in calogdtenfair value of share-based payment awardesept management's best estimates, but
these estimates involve inherent uncertaintiest@application of management's judgment. As dtiéstactors change and the Company
uses different assumptions, its stock-based conagiensexpense could be materially different infilteire. Prior to FAS 123R adoption, the
Company accounted for share-based payment awad#s tecounting Principles Board Opinion ("APB") N&b, "Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees" ("APB 25") and its relate@riptetationsSee Note 10 "Stockholders' Equifgt additional information.

71




Table of Contents

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued)
Comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes ainges in equity during a period from non-owner sesir Comprehensive income (loss),
including unrealized gains and losses on availfditesale securities and foreign currency transtaidjustments, are reported net of their
related tax effect.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS MAd. (tevised 2007), "Business Combinations" ("FASRY. FAS 141R establishes
principles and requirements for how the acquirea business combination recognizes and measuitssfimancial statements the fair value of
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assdrand any noncontrolling interest in the acquatethe acquisition date. FAS 141R determines
what information to disclose to enable users offithencial statements to evaluate the nature arahfiial effects of the business combination.
FAS 141R applies prospectively and is effectivefigral years beginning on or after December 18820 he Company is currently evaluating
the potential impact, if any, of the adoption of $A41R on its consolidated financial position, hssof operations and cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS Na.18oncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Finah&tatements" ("FAS 160"), an
amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. &grisolidated Financial Statements" ("ARB 51"). FA&® changes the accounting and
reporting for minority interests, which will be teracterized as noncontrolling interests and diadsis a component of equity. This new
consolidation method significantly changes the aating for transactions with minority interest hetd. FAS 160 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008. The Companysgiaadopt FAS 160 beginning in the first quarfe2@9. The Company is evaluating
impact the adoption of FAS 160 will have on its solidated financial position and results of openadi

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS HN42-3, "Determination of the Useful Life of Intabtg Assets" ("FSP FAS 142-3"). FSP
FAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be coresidae developing renewal or extension assumptisesi to determine the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under FAS No. 142, dadlband Other Intangible Assets." FSP FAS No. B2 effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008. The guidancddtermining the useful life of an intangible asseist be applied prospectively to
intangible assets acquired after the effective.dite Company is currently evaluating the impadhefpending adoption of FSP FAS No. 142-
3 on its consolidated financial statements.

In August 2008, the U.S. Securities andiaxge Commission ("SEC") announced that they sslié for comment a proposed roadmap
regarding the potential use by U.S. issuers offina statements prepared in accordance with latemal Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS"). IFRS is a comprehensive series of acdogrdtandards published by the International ActiognStandards Board ("IASB"). Under
the proposed roadmap, the Company could be requiristal 2014 to prepare financial statementadoordance with IFRS, and the SEC wiill
make a determination in 2011 regarding the mangatdoption of IFRS. The Company will assess thesichhat this potential change would
have on its consolidated financial statements aitidnenitor the development of the potential implemtation of IFRS.
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Other recent accounting pronouncement&dsbdy the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Tlagkce), the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the SEC did noarer not believed by management to have a matenzlct on the Company's present or

future consolidated financial statements.

Note 2. Marketable Securities and Fair Value Measwements

The Company has the following short-terrestments as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 (irs#mals):

Gross Gross
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized
December 31, 200: Costs Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. government notes and bot $9971 $ 25 $ — $ 9,99
Corporate bonds and certificates of def 3,77¢ 1 (29 3,751
Agency bonds and discount no 8,49¢ 20 — 8,51¢
Commercial pape 80C — — 80C
Total $23,04: $ 46 $ (24) $23,06¢
Gross Gross
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized
December 31, 200 Costs Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. government notes and bot $ 4081 $ 6 $ — § 4,08;
Corporate bond 6,98: — — 6,98:
Commercial paper and as-backed securitic ~ 27,75¢ — (53 27,70
Total $38,81¢ % 6 $ (53) $38,77:

As of December 31, 2008, all shtatm investments have maturity dates of less timenyear. For the years ended December 31, 200
2007, realized losses were immaterial.

The Company has the following long-termastments as of December 31, 2008 (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized

December 31, 2008 Costs Gains Losses Fair Value
Agency bond: $ 1,00 $ 1 $ — $ 1,001
Corporate bond 1,897 0 (35) 1,862
Total $289% $ 1 $ (35 $ 286¢

The long-term marketable securities ar&upted in Other assets in the consolidated balaheets. As of December 31, 2007, the
Company did not hold any long-term marketable séear
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Fair Value Measurements

The Company adopted the provisions of FAS for measuring its cash equivalents and marketsdaturities effective January 1, 2008.
FAS 157 defines fair value as the price that wdaddeceived from selling an asset or paid to teresfiability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurementEAf 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy thiatitizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. This hieyarequires an entity to maximize the use of obelglevinputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. EBBestablishes three levels of inputs that maydeel to measure fair value:

Level 1—Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets feniital assets or liabilities.
The Company's Level 1 assets and lialslitiensist of U.S. government debt securities andeyonarket funds.

Level 2—Observable inputs other than quoted prices indudé.evel 1, such as quoted prices for similaetssr liabilities in active
markets; quoted prices for identical or similareas®r liabilities in markets that are not actioepther inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data for suliathnthe full term of the asset or liability.

The Company's Level 2 assets and lialslitiensist of agency bonds and discount notes, catgbonds and certificates of deposit and
commercial paper.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs to the valuation methodoldgy aire supported by little or no market activityl @ahat are significant to the
measurement of the fair value of the assets oilitiab. Level 3 assets and liabilities include ¢keavhose fair value measurements are
determined using pricing models, discounted cash fhethodologies or similar valuation techniqueswall as significant management
judgment or estimatiot

The Company did not hold any Level 3 asaattliabilities during the year ended December2BD8.
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The following table summarizes the Compsifigancial assets measured at fair value on aniaguasis in accordance with FAS 157 as
of December 31, 2008 (in thousands):

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for Significant Other
Observable Inputs

Balance as o Identical Assets
Description December 31, 20C (Level 1) (Level 2)
Cash equivalents:
Money market fund $ 39,457 $ 39457 $ —
U.S. government debt securiti 20,00( 20,00( —
Short-term investments:
Corporate bonds and certificates of def 3,751 — 3,751
U.S. government debt securiti 9,99¢ 9,99¢ —
Agency bonds and discount no 8,51¢ 8,51¢
Commercial pape 80C — 80C
Long-term investments:
Corporate bonds and certificates of deg 1,862 — 1,862
Agency bonds and discount no 1,001 1,001

$ 85,38t $ 69,45: $ 15,93¢

Note 3. Balance Sheet Components
Inventories consist of the following (irotisands):

December 31,

2008 _2007_
Raw materials $1,06€ $1,98¢
Work in proces: 41€ 631
Finished good 482 29¢

$1,968  $2,91(

Work in process includes costs to prodheeltivisalign product. Finished goods primarilynegent ancillary products that support the
Invisalign system.
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Property and equipment consist of the foilg (in thousands):

Useful Life December 31,
(in years) 2008 2007
Clinical and manufacturing equipme 5 $ 45,128 $44,23(
Computer hardwar 3 13,54¢ 10,44«
Computer softwar 3 10,09: 8,49:
Furniture and fixture 5 5,58¢ 5,01:
Leasehold improvemen Term of the leas 9,91¢ 9,701
Construction in progres — 4,07t 1,19¢
$88,34. $79,07¢
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiz: (61,369 (53,759

$26,97¢ $ 25,32

As of December 31, 2008, construction iogpess consisted primarily of costs for capitalipopent expected to be placed in service in
next year. Depreciation and amortization was $idillon, $10.2 million, and $9.3 million, for thesars ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

Accrued liabilities consist of the follovgr{in thousands):

December 31

2008 2007
Accrued payroll and benefi $17,79t $22,16:
Accrued restructurin 2,501 —
Accrued sales and marketing exper 2,44¢ 2,91(
Accrued sales reba 2,20t 3,72¢
Accrued warrant 2,031 2,03t
Accrued Patients First Program cc 10C 99¢€
Other 11,201 8,04t

$38,28: $39,87¢

Warranty accrual as of December 31, 20@B2807 consists of the following activity (in thausls):

Warranty accrual, December 31, 2( $ 2,094
Charged to cost of revenu 2,08¢
Actual warranty expenditure (2,14%)

Warranty accrual, December 31, 2( $ 2,03t
Charged to cost of revenu 2,48¢
Actual warranty expenditure (2,48%)

Warranty accrual, December 31, 2( $ 2,031
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The Company evaluates the recoverabilitgroperty and equipment in accordance with FAS\Hdnever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value lohg-lived asset may not be recoverable. The Caorylpananagement decided to no longer
invest in an internally developed software toollasiness process management resulting in aniagsatment charge of $1.7 million which
was recorded in general and administrative expentee fourth quarter of 2008. The impairment imdors which management considered
included the fact that this internally developettwsare tool was not completed and as no marketgiaaint would be willing to purchase an
unfinished customized application, the fair valusswdetermined to be zero, and the fully capitalemdunt of the software tool was written
consistent with the related provisions of FAS 14d &AS 157.

Note 5. Patients First Program and settlement costs

In October 2006, the Company entered iftrmal agreement with OrthoClear, Inc., OrthoCleaidings, Inc., and OrthoClear Pakistan
Pvt. Ltd. ("OrthoClear"), together with certain imdluals associated with OrthoClear (the "Ortho€lagreement") to end all pending litigati
between the parties. In addition, OrthoClear agteesdop the importation of aligners into the Udittates and discontinue all aligner business
operations worldwide. As a result, most OrthoCleatients were unable to complete their orthoddn¢iatment with OrthoClear. OrthoClear
also agreed to assign and transfer to Align adlliettual property rights with application to therection of malocclusion and certain
OrthoClear principals also signed five year non-peta agreements. The Company evaluated this ttamsamnder the provisions of EITF
No. 9¢-3 "Determining Whether a Non-Monetary Transactiovolves a Receipt of Productive Assets or of aiBess” ("EITF 98-3") and
concluded that this transaction was not a busiaegsisition and was accounted for as an asset asgch

In an attempt to help minimize treatmeistuaiptions for the OrthoClear patients and theital®; the Company committed to make
treatment available to these patients at no additicost under the "Patients First Program”. In&2@0e Company recorded an $8.3 million
charge for the anticipated costs of completing pinésgram. Subsequently, in the first quarter of 2@8e Company reduced its Patients First
Program accrual by $1.8 million to reflect a redebf its initial estimate of the number of casetually received by the case submission
deadline. During 2007, the Company shipped virjualll Patients First Program cases. The accrugdmatrirst Program balance as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $0.1 million an@ fillion, respectively, and principally consistefdestimated future warranty and case
refinement costs.

The Company paid $20.0 million to OrthoCldaring 2006 in accordance with the terms of titn@Clear Agreement, of which
$14.0 million was capitalized on the Company's hedasheet representing the fair value of the nonpate agreements and is being amortized
over 5 years. The Company recorded the remainir@$élion as settlement costs in 2006 in accordanith EITF No. 04-01 "Accounting for
Pre-existing Contractual Relationships betweerPidies to a Purchase Business Combination" ("BA401").
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The following is a summary of the Compampschased intangible assets as of December 38, &@) 2007 (in thousands):

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007
Estimated Net
Useful Life  Gross Accumulated Carrying  Gross Accumulated Net
Carrying Carrying Carrying
(inyears) Value Amortization Value Value  Amortization  Value
Non-compete agreemer 5 $14,000 $ 6,212 $7,78¢ $14,00( $ 3,417 $10,58¢
Consultant relationshiy 3 98( 98( — 98( 98C —
Pateni 5 18C 18C — 18C 153 27
Other 3 55 55 — 55 55 —
Total $15,21F $ 7,427 $7,78¢ $15,21F $ 4,600 $10,61¢

Non-compete agreements represent the dhievof assets received in conjunction with theh@@iear Agreement. These intangible assets
are being amortized on a straight-line basis dvertxpected useful life of five years beginnin@@96. SedNote 5 "Patients First Program a
settlement costdor additional information.

Consultant relationships and patents ahdrahtangible assets represent the fair valuatahgible assets acquired as the result of the
acquisition of General Orthodontics, LLC ("GO™")2005. Upon the integration of GO, Align included ©©@onsulting services in its clinical
education and training programs under the namaews$align Consulting Services ("ICS"). During 2087e Company announced the
discontinuation of ICS, and the net carrying valoEthe consultant relationships and other intalegitssets related to ICS were fully amortized
as of December 31, 2007.

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2068722006, total amortization expense for intargddsets was $2.8 million, $3.2 million and
$1.0 million respectively. The total estimated aarfuture amortization expense for these intangdsigets is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ending December 31

2009 $2,80(
2010 2,80(
2011 2,18¢
Total $7,78¢

Note 7. Legal Proceedings
Ormco

On January 6, 2003, Ormco Corporation ("Gt a division of Sybron Dental Specialties (enBlaer Corporation subsidiary), filed suit
against the Company in the United States Distrair€for the Central District, Orange County Diwaisj asserting infringement of certain
patents. The complaint sought unspecified monetamgages and injunctive relief. On February 18, 2a@8 Company answered the complaint
and asserted counterclaims seeking a declaratidimeb@ourt of invalidity and non-infringement oktasserted patents. In addition, the
Company counterclaimed for infringement of onetefiatents, seeking unspecified monetary damagempamctive relief. Ormco filed a rep
to its counterclaims on March 10, 2003 and assexedterclaims against the Company seeking a agidarby the Court of invalidity and
non-infringement of the patent.
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There have been two appeals. After the paemt injunction was entered, Ormco and Allesebdaidntic Appliances, Inc. ("TAOA")
appealed that injunction and the orders of therBis€ourt on summary judgment on which the injimetwas based. Oral arguments took
place on April 3, 2006. Following oral argumente tJ.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circu@AFC") issued a ruling declaring two out
of a total of seventy-one claims in the CompanySsRatent No. 6,398,548 and four out of a totaknfdlaims in US Patent No. 6,554,611 to be
invalid as "obvious." The CAFC's decision revergesCalifornia District Court summary judgment ardévalidity.

The second appeal was from the final judgm@rmco appealed the ruling of the District Cahet 92 claims in four of its patents are not
infringed by the Company and that the assertednelaire invalid. Align appealed the ruling of thesttict Court that certain claims of its
6,398,548 patent which were found to be infringgdtmco's and AOA's Red, White & Blue applianceseniavalid. The CAFC issued a
ruling on August 24, 2007, affirming the Districo@t's ruling that 86 out of 92 claims in the fasserted Ormco patents are invalid and not
infringed by Align. The CAFC reversed the Distr@burt's non-infringement rulings on six claims imi@o's 6,616,444 patent.

Ormco has filed a petition with the U.Sp8ame Court asking for an extension of time in \hi file a petition for review by the U.S.
Supreme Court with respect to the portion of the=CA opinion that affirmed the District Court'singl of non-infringement and non-
enablement of the 86 claims. The Supreme CouredeBrmco's petition, and the case on the six clan@mco's patent were returned to the
District Court for a determination of validity aimtfringement of those claims. The District Courted orders construing the claim terms at
issue and granting the Company's motion to amarahiswer and counterclaim to assert Ormco's patentenforceable due to inequitable
conduct. The parties are currently conducting discg Trial on liability issues is scheduled fonéw2, 2009.

On February 25, 2009, the District Coustisd rulings on various Summary Judgment and exglated motions. In summary, the Dist
Court granted one of Ormco's motions on one thebmfringement and granted the Company's motiotmamtheories of non-infringement.
The Company's invalidity argument supported by difsr prior art references was unaffected. Thetfis Court also ruled that one of the
Company's inequitable conduct theories should selved at trial. A finding of inequitable condutttaal could render the six claims at issue
and possibly the family of Ormco patents relateth®6,616,444 patent unenforceable.

Trial on liability issues is scheduled fame 2, 2009. Despite the District Court's rulifighéringement on one of Ormco's theories, if the
jury finds Ormco's six claims to be invalid or uf@ceable, there can be no liability for infringemhieThe Company intends to vigorou:
pursue its invalidity and inequitable conduct ceualaims at trial.

Class Action

On May 18, 2007, Debra A. Weber filed asuamer class action lawsuit against Align, Ortho€lé&zc. and OrthoClear Holdings, Inc.
(d/b/a OrthoClear, Inc.) in Syracuse, New York, LD&trict Court. The complaint alleges two causkaction against the OrthoClear
defendants and one cause of action against Alighriach of contract. The cause of action agaimesCompany, titled "Breach of Third Party
Benefit Contract” references Align's agreement &kenlnvisalign treatment available to OrthoClediquas, alleging that the Company failed
"to provide the promised treatment to Plaintiffamy of the class members".
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On July 3, 2007, the Company filed an amdew¢he complaint and asserted 17 affirmative nedés. On July 20, 2007, the Company fil
motion for summary judgment on the Third Cause cfigh (the only cause of action alleged againsgy@)li On August 24, 2007, Weber filed a
motion for class certification. On October 1, 20@i& Company filed an opposition to the motiondiaiss certification and it is currently
awaiting rulings from the Court. OrthoClear haedila motion to dismiss. The initial case managero@nfierence and all discovery has been
stayed pending the Court's decision on the motiorelfiss certification, OrthoClear's motion to dissrand the Company's motion for summary
judgment.

Litigating claims of these types, whethenot ultimately determined in the Company's fawosettled by the Company, are costly and
divert the efforts and attention of the Companysmagement and technical personnel from normal bssioperations. Any of these results
from litigation could adversely affect the Compamgsults of operations. From time to time, the @any has received, and may again rece
letters from third parties drawing the Companytsraton to their patent rights. While the Compangsinot believe that it infringes any such
rights that have been brought to the Company'stidte there may be other more pertinent propnetights of which the Company is presel
unaware.

Note 8. Credit Facilities

On December 5, 2008, the Company renegetiand amended its existing credit facility withn@gica Bank. Under this revolving line of
credit, the Company has $25.0 million of availdiderowings with a maturity date of December 31,@01his credit facility requires a quick
ratio covenant and also requires the Company tataiaia minimum unrestricted cash balance of $tfililon. The interest rate on borrowin
will range from Libor plus 1.5% to 2.0% dependimmpun the amount of unrestricted cash the Compangptaias at Comerica Bank above the
$10.0 million minimum.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company hadutstanding borrowings under this credit facilityd is in compliance with the financial
covenant.

Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating leases

Align rents its facilities and certain eguient and automobiles under ncemcelable operating lease arrangements. Fa@lhisels expire
various dates through 2013 and provide for pre-tiagal fixed rental rates during the terms of #eesk.

In February 2005, the Company renewedatg#&Clara headquarters lease allowing it to etilie security deposit of $1.3 million paid at
the inception of the lease on July 1, 2000, to cedhe monthly rent payment by $11,000. By the@frttie lease term on June 30, 2010, the
security deposit balance will be reduced to $0.&ani

The Company has a facility in San Joset&Bs&ca. The facility comprises approximately 63,@@uare feet of manufacturing and office
space. The monthly rent for the Costa Rica facisitgpproximately $78,000. The Company renewedethige in March 2008 for an additional
five year term, which commenced in October 2008 explres in September 2013.

The Company's European headquarters aateldén Amsterdam, The Netherlands. On August 87 2the original lease agreement was
amended to expand its Amsterdam facility to apprately
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16,000 square feet of office space. This leaseeaxjbire in June 2012, with an option to renew foadditional five year term. The Company
may also terminate this lease in June 2012 foeafé&125,000. The monthly rent for the Amsterdanility is approximately $48,000.

The Company recognizes rent expense omiglst-line basis over the lease period, and hasuad for rent expense incurred but not paid.
Total rent expense was $3.8 million, $3.4 milliand $3.8 million, for the years ended Decembe2808, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Minimum future lease payments for non-céadae leases as of December 31, 2008, are as f@lmthousands):

Years Ending December 31,

2009 $3,23¢
2010 2,411
2011 1,79¢
2012 1,37<
2013 87¢E
Total $9,681

In July 2008, the Company entered intogreement in favor of and for the benefit of ElandexJuarez, S.A. DE C.V., or Elamex,
landlord to International Manufacturing Solutionpédaciones, S.R.L. ("IMS"), the Company's thirdtpahelter services provider. Under this
agreement, the Company guaranteed IMS' lease pagifiogrits facility located in Juarez, Mexico. Thm®nthly rent for this 68,000 square foot
facility is $30,000 and the lease expires in JW$§2 Pursuant to the guarantee, the Company igaibll to pay Elamex for any rental paym
in default by IMS. During the year ended Decemtier208, there were no rental payment defaultdvfy. IOn December 22, 2008, the
Company notified IMS of its intention to termindMS' shelter services arrangement effective ApdiD@. At that time, the Company will
become a direct manufacturer of its clear aligaétbe facility in Juarez, Mexico, and the Compaiilyalso assume IMS' lease with Elamex.

Note 10. Stockholders' Equity
Preferred Stock Rights Agreement

The Preferred Stock Rights Agreement (Riglits Agreement”) is intended to protect stockaoddrom unfair or coercive takeover
practices. In accordance with the Rights AgreeméptBoard of Directors declared a dividend disttitin of one preferred stock purchase r
(a "Right") for each outstanding share of Aligrogrenon stock to stockholders of record on Novem2eR2R05. Each Right entitles
stockholders to buy one one-thousandth of a stfaldign's Series A Participating Preferred Stoclr palue $0.0001 per share, at an exercise
price of $37.00, subject to adjustment. Rights béltome exercisable in certain circumstances, difuupon a person or group acquiring or
announcing the intention to acquire beneficial oshig of 15% or more of the then outstanding comstock without the approval of the
Board of Directors. Each holder of a Right will leathe right to receive, upon exercise, shares wingon stock having a value equal to two
times the purchase price. The Rights will expirdNmvember 22, 2015 or upon the exercise of the ®Rjgbhichever occurs earlier.
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Common Stock

The holders of common stock are entitlecet®ive dividends whenever funds are legally alédl and when and if declared by the Board
of Directors. The Company has never declared at giaidends on its common stock.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Align's Employee Stock Purchase Plan (fhgrthase Plan™) consists of overlapping twenty-foonth offering periods with four six-
month purchase periods in each offering period. lByges purchase shares at 85% of the fair marleé e the common stock at either the
beginning of the purchase period or the end optirehase period, whichever price is lower. The Rase Plan provides that the number of
shares of the Company's common stock reservedgoance thereunder will automatically increaseherfitst trading day of January in each
calendar year by an amount equal to three per8éty ¢f the total number of shares of common stagktanding on the last trading day in
December of the immediately preceding calendar, yeisln this annual increase not to exceed 1,500020es. The maximum number of
shares that can be granted under the PurchasénRlag one year is 800,000 shares of common stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2008,82® shares were issued under the Purchase Paf.Recember 31, 2008, the Company
had reserved 11,933,456 shares of common stodltioe issuance and 9,169,883 shares remain alaitabfuture issuance.

As of December 31, 2008, there was $2.6anibf total unamortized compensation costs relaeemployee stock purchases. These «
are expected to be recognized over a weighted gegrariod of 0.6 years.

Stock Option Plans

In May 2005, the 2005 Incentive plan ("2080&n") replaced the 2001 stock incentive Plan@2Blan™). The 2005 Plan, which expires
December 31, 2010, provides for the granting oéimiive stock options, non-statutory stock optioastricted stock units, stock appreciation
rights, performance units and performance shamapld&ees, non-employee directors and consultaetelaible to receive grants under the
2005 Plan. The options are granted for perioderoteding ten years and generally vest over 4 yati25% vesting one year from the date
of grant and 1/48' each month thereafter. The Plan Administrator rhayvever, grant options with different vesting siies.

In 2006, the Compensation Committee ofBbard of Directors approved the grant of restricteatk units (contracts that give the
recipients the right to receive shares as the wei$) to its employees and director(s) in additmetock options. Each restricted stock unit
award generally vests over 4 years with 25% orotieyear anniversary of the date of grant and 6.288ting quarterly thereafter. Each grant
of a restricted stock unit will reduce shares al#é for grant by 2 shares. In October 2007, the@msation Committee of the Board of
Directors approved a change in vesting for pro$pedrants of restricted stock units to 25% annuall

The 2005 Plan has 9,983,379 shares of tlep@ny's common stock reserved for issuance, plis an aggregate of 5,000,000 shares
have been or will be returned to the 2001 Planrasalt of termination of outstanding options guuechase of shares granted under the 2001
Plan on or after March 28, 2005. As of December2BD8, 2,311,367 shares have been transferreditd 885,602 shares remain available for
issuance under the 2005 Plan.
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Executive Grants

In January 2001, the stockholders apprdwedoption grants to purchase 1,000,000 shardseo€bmpany's common stock at an exercise
price of $15.00 per share to each of the Compahgts Chief Executive Officer and President. Theas were granted outside of the 1997
Equity Incentive Plan and prior to the adoptioribef 2001 Plan or the 2005 Plan. As of January @620,500,000 shares had been cancelled.
The remaining 500,000 shares were cancelled in 208%. As of December 31, 2008, no options to pugelshares of common stock were
outstanding under these grants.

Activity for the years ended December 310& 2007 and 2006 under the stock option plangtanéxecutive grants are set forth below
(in thousands, except per share data):

Stock Options
Number of Share:  Weighted Weighted
Average Aggregate
Underlying Average Remaining Intrinsic
Stock Options Exercise Contractual Value

(in thousands) Price Term (in years)  (in thousands
Outstanding at December 31, 200 11,30« $ 8.7¢
Granted 1,79¢ 8.7¢
Exercisec (2,317%) 5.81
Cancelled or expire (1,603 12.3d
Outstanding at of December 31, 200 9,17¢ $ 8.8¢
Granted 1,515 18.97
Exercisec (3,049 8.52
Cancelled or expire (514) 11.1:
Outstanding at December 31, 200 7,13%  $10.9¢
Granted 2,18: 12.7¢
Exercisec (912 6.5C
Cancelled or expire (1,099 14.02

Outstanding at of December 31, 200 7,30¢ $11.6: 6.6 $ 6,347

Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 7,131 $11.5¢ 6.6 $ 6,33t

Exercisable at December 31, 2( 4,47C $10.5¢ 54 $ 6,00¢

The aggregate intrinsic value in the tatileve represents the total pre-tax intrinsic vélie difference between Align's closing stock
price on the last trading day in 2008 and the @genprice, multiplied by the number of in-the-morggtions) that would have been received by
the option holders had all option holders exercibedt options on the last day of each fiscal y&ais amount will fluctuate based on the fair
market value of Align's stock. The total intrinsiglue of stock options exercised for the years drdiecember 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was
$5.2 million, $43.1 million, and $13.2 million, m@sctively. The Company issues new shares uponxéreise of options.

As of December 31, 2008, there was $19llfomiof total unamortized compensation costs edab stock options and these costs are
expected to be recognized over a weighted averagedoof
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2.4 years. For the year ended December 31, 208&othl recognized tax benefit from exercised otiwvas $52,000.

The options outstanding and exercisablexgrcise price at December 31, 2008 are as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average

Remaining Average Average
Contractual Exercise Exercise

Range of Exercise Price Shares Term (in years) Price Shares Price
$ 0.15-% 6.57 1,235,671 3.74 $ 51¢ 1,178,141 $ 5.1:
6.70- 7.97 1,219,48 5.8¢ 7.41 1,157,66 7.4:
8.13- 12.30 1,241,47. 7.0¢ 9.4: 700,61¢ 9.0z
12.40- 13.00 1,550,72 8.7¢ 12.9% 57,96 12.61
13.04- 17.88 1,173,42 7.8¢ 17.3¢ 531,16 17.3:
18.35- 27.06 888,33¢ 5.5¢ 19.5(C 844,25¢ 19.2¢
7,309,12 6.6 $11.65 4,469,80¢ $10.5¢

Restricted Stock Units

In 2006, the Company began granting reastlistock units ("RSUs"). The fair value of eaclt imbased on the Company's closing stock
price on the date of grant. A summary of the notedshares for the years ended December 31, 2008,&hd 2006 is as follows (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

Weighted Average

Number of Weighted
Shares Average Grant Remaining Aggregate
Underlying RSUs Contractual Term
Date Fair Intrinsic
(in thousands) Value (in years) Value
Nonvested as of December 31, 2( — 3 —
Granted 442 8.6¢
Vested and releast — —
Forfeited (23) 8.22
Nonvested as of December 31, 2( 41  $ 8.71
Granted 48C 19.17
Vested and releast a7e) 9.27
Forfeited (70) 13.31
Nonvested as of December 31, 2( 651 $ 15.7¢
Granted 68t 12.7¢
Vested and releast (25¢) 15.5¢
Forfeited (20€) 15.0(
Nonvested as of December 31, 2( 87z $ 13.6¢ 15 $ 7,62¢
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The aggregate intrinsic value in the taiileve represents the total pee-intrinsic value (calculated by using Align'ssihg stock price ¢
the last trading day of 2008 multiplied by the nembf non-vested RSUs) that would have been reddiyehe unit holders had all RSUs been
vested and released on the last day of each fiseal This amount will fluctuate based on the faérket value of Align's stock. During 2008,
of the 258,318 shares vested and released, apmtelin?2,816 vested shares were withheld for exeslRSU tax payments, resulting in a net
issuance of 215,502 shares.

The total intrinsic value of RSUs vested agleased during 2008 and 2007 was $2.9 milliah%814 million. There were no RSUs vested
and released during 2006. As of December 31, 20@8e was $11.1 million of total unamortized cormgaion costs related to RSUs, and tt
costs are expected to be recognized over a weighveghige period of 2.5 years.

Stock-based compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company &estbStatement of Financial Accounting Standards128. (Revised 2004), "Share-based
Payment" ("FAS 123R") using the modified prospeztiransition method, which requires the measuremettrecognition of compensation
expense for all share-based payment awards basestiorated fair values over the requisite servaxog. In accordance with the modified
prospective transition method, our financial stegata for the prior periods have not been restatedftect and do not include the impact of
FAS 123R stock options.

Valuation assumptions

The fair value of stock options granted #maloption component of the Purchase Plan shages @stimated at the grant date using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the followiweighted average assumptions:

2008 2007 2006

Stock options:

Expected term (in year 4.4 4.t 5.0
Expected volatility 60.(% 68.(% 76.2%
Risk-free interest rat 28% 4.4% 4.6%
Expected dividen: — — —
Weighted average fair value at grant c $6.4C $10.82 $5.67
Employee stock purchase plan:

Expected term (in year 1.2 1.2 1.3
Expected volatility 67.2% 55.6% 48.2%
Risk-free interest rat 22% 4.8% 5.0%
Expected dividen: — — —
Weighted average fair value at grant c $4.8¢ $ 9.4z $2.6¢

The expected term of stock options reprssibie weighted-average period the stock optioegapected to remain outstanding. Upon the
adoption of FAS 123R, the Company used a mid-puoindel to determine the expected term of stock aptlwased on the Company's historical
exercise, post-vesting cancellation experience th@demaining contractual term of its outstandiptjons.

85




Table of Contents

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Note 10. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)

For the years ended December 31, 2008 @@d, 2he Company used its own historical volatiitgen determining the expected volatility.
In 2006, the Company used a combination of hisébriolatility and peer group volatility in derivirits expected volatility assumption as
allowed under FAS 123R and SAB 107.

The risk-free interest rate is based onirfy@ied yield on a U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issith a remaining term equal to the expected
term of the option.

The dividend yield reflects that the Compaas not paid any cash dividends since inceptichdmes not anticipate paying cash dividends
in the foreseeable future.

Summary of Stock-based Compensation Expense

Stock-based compensation expense recoginizbd Consolidated Statements of Operationsheryears ended December 31, 2008, 2007
and 2006 is based on awards ultimately expectedgst) net of estimated forfeitures. Forfeituresesmated based on historical experience at
the time of grant and may be revised, if necessargtibsequent periods if actual forfeitures differm those estimates. The stock-based
compensation expense related to all of the Compatgtk-based awards and employee stock purchades BAS 123R for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007, 2006 is as follows:

For the Years Ended December 3:

2008 2007 2006
(in thousands)

Cost of revenue $1,75: $ 994 $ 70C

Sales and marketir 5,28¢ 4,228 2,86z

General and administrati\ 8,011 5,44: 4,05¢

Research and developmt 2,00¢ 1,54¢ 1,29¢

Total stocl-based compensatic $17,057 $12,21. $8,91(

Note 11. Common Stock Repurchase Program

In April 2008, the Company's Board of Dies approved a common stock repurchase programodzing management to repurchase up
to $50 million of the Company's outstanding comrstotk. Purchases under the program were made tinoerto time, in the open market.
During 2008, the Company purchased approximatélyrillion shares of common stock at an averageepfc$10.76 per share for an
aggregate purchase price of $50.1 million includinogimissions and completed the stock repurchasgaro The common stock repurchases
reduced additional paid-in capital by $38.6 millimmd increased accumulated deficit by $11.6 milliihrepurchased shares were retired.

Note 12. Employee Benefit Plan

In January 1999, the Company adopted aeéftontribution retirement plan under Section kpaf the Internal Revenue Code. This |
covers substantially all employees who meet mininag@ and service requirements and allows partitspandefer a portion of their annual
compensation on a pre-tax basis. Company contobsitio the plan may be made at the discretion of
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the Board of Directors. There have been no cortiohe by the Company since the inception of thepla
Note 13. Income Taxes
Deferred tax assets and liabilities weré#sws (in thousands):

Years Ended December 3.

2008 2007
Deferred tax assets, ni
Net operating loss carryforwar $48,58: $ 73,44(
Credit carryforward: 6,83¢ 6,052
Reserves & accrua 4,807 5,00¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 6,10( 6,84:
Other 6,37 3,69¢

$72,70: $ 95,04(
Deferred tax liabilities

Prepaid expens $ 1,752 $ 1,88:
Translation gain 142 —
1,89t 1,88:

Net deferred tax assets before valuation allow: 70,80¢ 93,157
Valuation allowanct (6,200 (93,15
Net deferred tax asse $64,60¢ $ —

With the exception of certain capital l@sgl foreign net operating loss carryforwards, tbenfany released the tax valuation allowance
on most of the deferred tax assets and record@tcame tax benefit of $64.6 million for the yeaded December 31, 2008. As of
December 31, 2008, the Company believed, exceghéitems noted above, that the amount of defderedssets recorded on the balance
sheet will be realized. However, should there lbhange in the Company's ability to recover its defétax assets, the tax provision would
increase in the period in which it is more likefyah not that the Company cannot recover its defdene assets.

At December 31, 2008, the Company had petaiing loss carryforwards of approximately $191illion for federal purposes and
$68.1 million for California state tax purposesntit utilized, these carryforwards will begin tgoée beginning in 2020 for federal purposes
and 2010 for California purposes.

The Company has research credit carryfatevaf approximately $3.5 million for federal purpesand $4.3 million for California state tax
purposes. If not utilized, the federal credit cborwards will begin to expire in 2017. The Calif@rstate credit can be carried forward
indefinitely.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company éstbpASB Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for émntainty in Income Taxes" ("FIN 48").
This interpretation clarifies the criteria for rggozing income tax benefits under FASB StatementI®, "Accounting for Income Taxes", ¢
requires additional disclosures about uncertairptasitions. Under FIN 48, the financial statememognition
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of the benefit for a tax position is dependent uffenbenefit being more-likely-than-not to be simgthle upon audit by the applicable taxing
authority. If this threshold is met, the tax benhefithen measured and recognized at the largestiainthat is greater than 50 percent likely of

being realized upon ultimate settlement.

The following is a rollforward of the Compgs total gross unrecognized tax benefit for 2008housands):

Balance as of January 1, 2C $2,81¢
Tax positions related to current ye

Additions for tax positions related to R&D crec 314
Tax positions related to prior ye:

Reductions for tax positions related to R&D cre (16€)

Other position: (84)
Balance as of December 31, 2( $2,87¢

The unrecognized tax benefits of $2.9 mnillinclude $0.3 million of uncertain tax positichat would impact the Company's effective tax
rate if recognized. In accordance with FIN 48, @@mmpany recognizes interest and penalties relatedriecognized tax benefits as a
component of income taxes. Interest and penalteegvanaterial at the date of adoption and are oedlin the unrecognized tax benefits.

The Company is subject to taxation in th8.lnd various states and foreign jurisdictiorlbofthe Company's tax years will be open to
examination by the U.S. federal and most statatdhorities due to the Company's net operatingdosisoverall credit carryforward position.
With few exceptions, the Company is no longer sciitie examination by foreign tax authorities foayebefore 2004.

The differences between income taxes usiedederal statutory income tax rate of 35% amdG@bmpany's effective tax rate were as
follows:

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
U.S. federal statutory income tax ri 35.0% 35.0%  35.0(%
State income taxes, net of federal tax bet 7.74% 5.04% 5.15%
Deferred tax benefits utilize (67.00% (44.59% (21.59%
Foreign losses not benefit 4.1€% 24(% (12.25%
Impact of differences in foreign tax rat (8.19% (7.29% 1.27%
Amortization of stoc-based compensatic 32.3%% 7.8% (7.610)%
Non-deductible foreign exchange los: (0.91)% — (0.79)%
Non-deductible meals & entertainment chal 3.21% 121%  (1.29%
Valuation allowance relea: (378.39% — —
Other items not individually materi 3.51% 3.5% (0.30)%

(368.40%  3.32%  (2.49%
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The provision for (benefit from) income éasxconsisted of the following (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
Federal
Current $ 268 $ 27¢ $(27)
Deferred (56,939

(56,66¢) 27¢  (27)
State
Current 784 30¢ 55
Deferred (7,674

(6,890 30¢ 55
Foreign
Current 64t 641 80C
Deferred — — —

64E 641  80C

Provision for (benefit from) income tax $(62,917) $1,22¢ $82¢

Note 14. Net Profit (Loss) per Share

Basic net profit (loss) per share is coreguising the weighted average number of sharesmofron stock during the year less unvested
common shares subject to repurchase. Diluted 0t fIoss) per share is computed using the weidjlateerage number of shares of common
stock, adjusted for the dilutive effect of potehttammon stock. Potential common stock, computeédiguthe treasury stock method, includes
options, restricted stock units, and the dilutieenponent of Purchase Plan shares.

The following table sets forth the compiatatof basic and diluted net profit (loss) per shattributable to common stock (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

Years Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006

Numerator:
Net profit (loss) $79,987 $35,72¢ $(34,96))

Denominator
Weightec-average common shares outstanding, ' 66,81:  67,17¢ 63,24¢

Dilutive effect of potential common stoi 1,252 4,26¢ —
Total shares, dilute 68,06 71,44« 63,24¢
Net profit (loss) per share, ba: $ 12C $ 05z $ (0.5
Net profit (loss) per share, dilut $ 118 $ 05C $ (0.5
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Note 14. Net Profit (Loss) per Share (Continued)

For the years ended December 31, 2008,,20@2006, stock options and restricted stocksuntaling 5.1 million, 1.0 million, and
6.5 million respectively, were excluded from dildteet profit (loss) per share because of theirdihitive effect.

Note 15. Comprehensive Income (LosS)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes nefitploss), foreign currency translation adjustiseand unrealized gains and losses on
available-for-sale securities. The components affm@hensive income (loss) are as follows (in thodsg

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

Net profit (loss) $79,987 $35,72¢ $(34,967)
Foreign currency translation adjustme (421 702
Unrealized gain/(loss) on availa-for-sale securitie 33 (49 4

Comprehensive income (los $79,59¢ $36,37¢ $(34,96)

Note 16. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The supplemental cash flow information dstssof the following (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
Taxes paic $1,51C $1,632 $99z
Interest paic — $ 41t $22¢

Non-cash investing and financing activitit
Fixed assets acquired with accounts payable, addiatglities, or through financir $1,322 $1,13¢ $541

Note 17. Segments and Geographical Information

Segments

The Company reports segment data baselleomanagement approach which designates the ihtepwating that is used by management

for making operating decisions and assessing pedoce as the source of the Company's reportablatipg segments. During all periods
presented, the Company operated as a single besiagment.
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Geographical Information
Net revenues and long-lived assets areepted below by geographic area (in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

Net revenues
North America $240,21( $236,75¢ $172,63!
Europe 61,652 45,041 28,07¢
Other internations 2,11« 2,527 5,64:
Total net revenue $303,97¢ $284,33. $206,35:

As of December 31

2008 2007

Long-lived assets
North America $ 99,08¢ $35,63:
Europe 96( 1,081
Other internations 1,38¢ 1,531
Total lon¢-lived asset: $101,43: $38,24«

Note 18. Restructurings

During 2008, the Company announced restring plans in July and October to increase efficies across the organization and lower the
overall cost structure. In July 2008, the Companglemented a restructuring plan to reduce itstime headcount by 67 employees includii
phased-consolidation of order acquisition operatimom its corporate headquarters in Santa Claaifothia to Juarez, Mexico, which was
completed by the end of 2008. The October restringfiplan included a total reduction of 111 futhe headcount in Santa Clara, California by
July 2009 as the Company moves its customer cecepats receivable, credit and collections, andotosr event registration organizations, in
Santa Clara, California to existing facilities inga Rica.

In 2008, the Company incurred approximag8y2 million in restructuring expenses relatinghese actions which included $0.7 million
related to the acceleration of stock option veséind $5.5 million related to severance and terriindienefits, of which $3.0 million was paid
during the year.

The Company anticipates phasing in theceglon to Costa Rica of its shared services grawgmiattempt to minimize disruptions to
customer service levels and expect the relocatidretcompleted by July 2009. The Company expedteto additional restructuring charges
of approximately $1.8 million during the first haif 2009.
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Activity and liability balances relatedrestructuring activity for the year ended Decenier2008 are as follows (in thousands):

Severance an

Benefits

Balance at January 1, 20 $ —
Restructuring accrui 5,56¢
Cash payment (3,067)

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 2,501

The Company has included this amount imweat liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

Under the supervision and with the parttign of our management, including our Chief Exeeu©Officer and our Chief Financial Offic:
we have evaluated the effectiveness of the desidroperation of our disclosure controls and procesi(as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based uponetveltiation, our Chief Executive Officer and our €ttinancial Officer have concluded
that our disclosure controls and procedures aeetife as of December 31, 2008 to provide reaseraggurance that information required to
be disclosed by us in the reports that we fileulimsit under the Exchange Act is accumulated anchwemicated to our management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Finanddficer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisioagarding required disclosure, and that
such information is recorded, processed, summagnéedeported within the time periods specifiethie Securities and Exchange Commission
rules and forms.

Management's annual report on internal control ofifeancial reporting.

See "Report of Management on Internal Gbmiver Financial Reporting" on page 59 of this AahReport on Form 10-K, which is
incorporated herein by reference.

Changes in internal control over financial repogin

There have been no changes in our intearatol over financial reporting during the yeaded December 31, 2008 that have materially
affected or are reasonably likely to materiallyeaff our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART IlI

Certain information required by Part lllamitted from this Form 10-K because we intendlod definitive Proxy Statement for our 2009
Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Proxy Statetfiemot later than 120 days after the end of tBedi year covered by this Annual Report
on Form 10-K, and certain information to be inclddieerein is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by Item 401 of Riegion SK concerning our directors is incorporated by refme to the Proxy Statement ur
the section captioned "Election of Directors.” Thi®rmation required by Item 401 of Regulation S#hcerning our executive officers is set
forth in Item 1—"Business" of this Annual ReportBarm 10-K. The information required by Item 405Redgulation S-K is incorporated by
reference to the section entitled "Section 16(a)eBieial Ownership Reporting Compliance" contaiirethe Proxy Statement. The information
required by Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K isangorated by reference to the Proxy Statement uth@esection entitled "Corporate
Governance—Board of Directors & Committee Meetingsdit Committee”.
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Code of Ethics

We have a code of ethics that appliesltofalur employees, including our principal exeeatofficer, principal financial officer and
principal accounting officer. This code of ethisgbsted on our Internet website. The Internetesidfor our website isww.aligntech.com
and the code of ethics may be found on the "Cotpdemvernance" section of our "Investor Relationsbpage.

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requieat under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an ameasrtt to, or waiver from, a provision of
this code of ethics by posting such informatioroan website, at the address and location spedifiede, or as otherwise required by the
NASDAQ Global Market

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 402 of Rikegion S-K is incorporated by reference to thexiprStatement under the section captioned
"Executive Compensation”. The information requibgdtems 407(e)(4) and (e)(5) is incorporated bgnmence to the Proxy Statement under
the section captioned "Corporate Governance—ConapiensCommittee Interlocks" and "Compensation CotreaiReport”, respectively.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 403 of Riegion S-K is incorporated by reference to thexiprStatement under the section captioned
"Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownersl &ttanagement.”

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information@sDecember 31, 2008 about our common stock tlzat Ioe issued upon the exercise of opl
and rights granted to employees, consultants orlmeesrof our Board of Directors under all existimgigy compensation plans, including the
1997 Equity Incentive Plan, the Employee Stock Rase Plan, the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan and tBB B®&entive Plan, each as amended,
and certain individual arrangements.

Number of
securities to be
Number of securities

issued upon remaining available for
exercise of Weighted averagt future issuance under
outstanding equity compensation plan
options and exercise price of
restricted outstanding (excluding securities
Plan Category stock units(a) options(b) reflected in column(a))
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs 8,180,90(1)(2) $ 11.6: 13,205,48(3)
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotgler: — — —
Total 8,180,90. $ 11.6: 13,205,48

(1)  This number reflects the number of securities tisbeed upon exercise of outstanding options astticeed stock units under the 19
Equity Incentive Plan, the 2001 Stock IncentivenPknd the 2005 Incentive Plan. The 871,777 resttistock units included in this
number have an exercise price of zero.
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®3)

We are unable to ascertain with specificity the hanof securities to be issued upon exercise aftanding rights under the Employee
Stock Purchase Plan or the weighted average egqudise of outstanding rights under the EmployeeiSPurchase Plan.

This number reflects securities available for fatissuance under the 2005 Stock Incentive PlarttenBEmployee Stock Purchase Plan.
In January 2001, all outstanding options underl®@/ Equity Incentive Plan were subsumed unde2@@4. Stock Incentive Plan. Sir
that date no options have been granted under ®ig EQuity Incentive Plan. In May 2005, stockholdpproval was obtained for the
2005 Incentive Plan and the 2001 Stock Incentias Rlas terminated. Since that date, no furthepopthave been granted under the
2001 Stock Incentive Plan. The 2005 Incentive Pia® 9,983,379 shares of common stock reservedgoance, plus up to an aggres
of 5,000,000 shares that are or would have beenmed to the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan as a re$wérmination of outstanding
options or repurchase of shares granted underQ®& 3tock Incentive Plan after March 28, 2005. ABecember 31, 2008, 2,311,367
shares have been transferred to the 2005 IncefPlisre As of December 31, 2008, the number of staraable for future issuance
under the 2005 Incentive Plan was 4,035,602. Aaytgrof restricted stock units will reduce shareslable for grant at a 2:1 ratio. T
Employee Stock Purchase Plan provides that the aunftshares of our common stock reserved for isighereunder will
automatically increase on the first trading dayafiuary in each calendar year by an amount eqtiatee percent (3%) of the total
number of shares of common stock outstanding otastarading day in December of the immediatecpding calendar year, with t
annual increase not to exceed 1,500,000 sharesn@kienum number of shares that can be granted uhddEmployee Stock Purchase
Plan in any one year is 800,000 shares of comnumk sAs of December 31, 2008, the total numbehafas of our common stock
available for future issuance under the EmployeelSPurchase Plan was 9,169,883.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 404 arehit407 of Regulation S-K is incorporated by refeeeto the Proxy Statement under the

sections captioned "Certain Relationships and BelRarty Transactions" and "Corporate GovernanceeeRir Independence”, respectively.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 9(e) oh8dule 14A of the Securities Act of 1934, as amdndeincorporated by reference to the Pr

Statement under the section captioned "Ratificadioppointment of Independent Registered PublicdAmtants.”
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) Financial Statemen

1. Consolidated Financial Statements

The following documents are filed as pdrthis Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiinm 60
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeraded December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2 61
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&0D200% 62

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' EquityHferyears ended December 31, 2008, 2007 anc 63

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradled December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2 64
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 65
2. The following financial statement schedule is fiksipart of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Schedule Il—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts anesBrves
All other schedules have been omitted ag #re not required, not applicable, or the reglinéormation is otherwise included.
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SCHEDULE II: VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Additions
(reductions)
Balance Reclass Balance
at to Costs from at End
Beginning and Write Other of
of Period Expenses offs Accounts Period
(in thousands)
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 162t $ (332) $(450) $ — $ 844
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 844 % 46 $(1849) $ 54 $ 76C
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 76C $ 71 $(184) $ (35 $ 61z
Allowance for deferred tax assets
Year ended December 31, 2C $89,98¢ $ 12,16* $ — $ — $102,15:
Year ended December 31, 2C $102,150 $ (8,99 $ — $ — §$ 93,15]
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 93,15 $(86,95) $ — $ — $ 6,20C
Allowance for excess and obsolete inventory and abdoned product:
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 17t $ 10 $ — $ — ¢ 18¢
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 18t % 47 $(19 $ — $ 21¢
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 21¢ $ 11C $(18) $ — $  13¢
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(b)  The following Exhibits are included in this AnnuRéport on Form 10-K:
Exhibit
Number
Incorporated
Exhibit by reference Filed
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatioregistrant. Form $-1, as amende  12/28/2001 3.1
(File No. 33:-49932)
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of registrant. Form S4, as amende 12/28/2001 3.2
(File No. 33:-49932)
3.2A Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws of registr Form 8-K (item 5.03  12/18/200 3.1
only)
3.3 Certificate of Designations of Rights, Preferenaed Privileges Form 8-K 10/27/200! 3.1
of Series A Participating Preferred Stock regidtr
4.1 Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate. Form S4, as amende  01/17/200. 4.1
(File No. 33:-49932)
4.2 Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated Octobere®den the Form 8-K 10/27/200! 4.1
registrant and EquiServe Trust Company, M
10.1 Lease Agreement by and between James Lindsey gistramt, Form S4, as amende 11/14/2001 104
dated June 20, 2000, for office space located hi\g&rtin (File No. 333-49932)
Avenue, Santa Clara, C,
10.2  First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated Februa29@ fo Form 8-K 02/09/200! 10.1
office space located at 881 Martin Avenue, Sant&a&ICA.
10.3 Lease Agreement dated August 30, 2001 by and batdemes Form 10-K 03/27/200: 10.28
S. Lindsey and registrant for office space locate821 Martir
Avenue, Santa Clara, C,
10.4  First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated Februa29@s fo Form 8-K 02/09/200! 10.3

office space located at 821 Martin Avenue, Santa&CICA.
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Exhibit
Number

Incorporated

Exhibit by reference Filed

Number Description Form Date herein herewith

10.5 Lease Agreement dated March 4, 2004 by and betdames S. Form 10-Q 05/06/200. 10.40
Lindsey and registrant for office space locate83it Martin
Avenue, Santa Clara, C,

10.6 First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated Februa2@@s foi Form 8-K 02/09/200! 10.2
office space located at 831 Martin Avenue, SantaaICA.

10.7 Shelter Agreement dated December 22, 2005 betveggstrant Form 8-K 12/28/200! 10.1
and International Manufacturing Solutions Operae®rs.R.L

10.8 Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreeméad da Form 8-K. 12/19/200! 10.1
December 16, 2005 between registrant and Come&o& |

10.8A Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan and Security ~ Form 10-K 03/12/200 10.8A
Agreement dated March 7, 2007 between registraiht an
Comerica Bank

10.8B Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan and Security ~ Form 8-K 04/29/200: 10.1
Agreement dated March 7, 2007 between registraiht an
Comerica Bank

10.8C Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan and Security  Form 8-K 01/13/200! 10.1
Agreement dated March 7, 2007 between registrasht an
Comerica Bank

10.107 Registrant's 2001 Stock Incentive Plan. Form S4 as amende  12/28/200! 10.13

(File No. 33:-49932)

10.111 Form of option agreement under Align's 2001 Steoalehtive Form 10-Q 11/05/200. 10.13.1
Plan.

10.121 Registrant's Employee Stock Purchase F Form <-8 02/05/200. 99.2
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Exhibit
Number
Incorporated
Exhibit by reference Filed
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
10.13t  Form of Indemnification Agreement by and between Form S-1 as amended 01/17/200 10.15
registrant and its Board of Directors and its exieeu (File No. 333-49932)
officers.
10.14t  Amended and restated 2005 Incentive F Form 1(-K 03/12/200 10.14
10.14A1 Form of restricted stock unit award agreement under Form 10-Q 11/05/200° 10.1A, 10.1B
registrant's 2005 Incentive Pl 10.1C
(General Form; Officer Form: Director Forn
10.14B1 Form of option award agreement under registrafb2 Form 10-Q 08/04/200! 10.4
Incentive Plan
10.14C° Form of restricted stock unit award agreement under Form 10-K 03/12/200 10.14C
registrant's 2005 Incentive Plan with Thomas MsEo#.
10.14D- Form of restricted stock unit award agreement amemd Form 10-K 03/12/200 10.14D
under registrant's 2005 Incentive Plan with ThoMas
Prescott
10.15t Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dateddy Form 10-Q 04/08/200: 10.4
2008 between Thomas M. Prescott and regist
10.167  Form of Employment Agreement entered into by artdvben Form 10-Q 05/08/200: 10.3
registrant and each of executive officer (othentG&O).
10.17t  Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Form 10-Q 05/08/200: 10.4
registrant and Thomas M. Prescott dated May 5, Z
10.18t  Separation and Release Agreement between AfsanatieAz Form 10-Q. 11/05/200: 10.1

and Align dated August 1, 200
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Exhibit
Number
Incorporated

Exhibit by reference Filed
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
10.19t Separation and Release Agreement between Soenila &1id Align *

dated December 31, 20(
10.20 Lease Agreement dated February 26, 2003 betweendKPNIDES Form 10-Q 05/13/200: 10.36

(Costa Rica) S.A., Parque Global S.A.A. and regigt
10.20~A Omnibus Amendment to Lease and Service Agreeméweba Form 8-K 06/26/200: 10.1

KPMG FIDES (Costa Rica) S.A., Parque Global S.Al Atign

dated June 24, 200
10.21  Lease Agreement between Schootsepoort Onroerendgfezbr, for Form 10-Q 08/05/200- 10.41

Stichting Philips Pensioenfonds and Al
10.21A Amendment to Lease Agreement between Align TeclyyolB.V. Form 10-Q 08/03/200 10.4

and TT Amsterdam Project Company (formerly Stiafptihilips

Pensioenfonds
10.22 Lease Agreement between International Manufactusiolgitions Form 8-K 12/22/200: 10.1

Operaciones, S.R.L. and Elamex de Juarez, S.A.\dedated

July 31, 2008 (assigned to Align as Lessee effedipril 1, 2009).
10.23t1 Summary of 2008 Incentive Awards for Named Exeau@fficers.  Form 8-K 01/13/200¢  Item 5.02 only

and Form 8- anc
K/A 01/22/200

21.1 Subsidiaries of the registral *
23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Indeperiiegistered *

Public Accounting Firm
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Exhibit
Number
Incorporated
Exhibit by reference Filed
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
31.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer pursuidan Exchange Act *
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursnu&@wction 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2003
31.2  Certifications of Chief Financial Officer pursudantExchange Act *
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursu&sction 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2003
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chiginancial Officer pursua *
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuarédtidd 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2003
) Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagefiled as an Exhibit to this form pursuanttenis 14(a) and 14(c) of Form-

K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduolp authorized, on February 27, 2009.

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC.

By: /sl THOMAS M. PRESCOTT

Thomas M. Prescott
President and Chief Executive Offic

Know All Men By These Presents, that eaetspn whose signature appears below constituteagpaints Thomas M. Prescott, his or her
attorney-in-fact, with the power of substitutionr him or her in any and all capacities, to sigg amendments to this Report on Form 10-K
and to file the same, with exhibits thereto andeottocuments in connection therewith, with the &&es and Exchange Commission, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that each of said atteys-infact, or his or her substitute or substitutes, mhayr cause to be done by virtue her

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seéeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the Registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date

/sl THOMAS M. PRESCOTT

President and Chief Executive Officer (PrincipakEutive Officer) February 27,
2009
Thomas M. Presco
/s/ KENNETH B. AROLA Chief Financial Officer and Vice President, Finaencipal Financial Officer and February 27,
Kenneth B. Arolz Principal Accounting Officer) 2009
/s DAVID E. COLLINS _ February 27,
Director 2009
David E. Collins
/sl JOSEPH LACOB o February 27,
irector 2009
Joseph Laco
/s/ C. RAYMOND LARKIN _ February 27,
Director 2009
C. Raymond Larkir
/sl GEORGE J. MORROW o February 27,
Irector 2009
George J. Morrov
/s/ GREG J. SANTORA o February 27,
irector 2009
Greg J. Santor
/sl WARREN S. THALER
Director February 27,

Warren S. Thale 2009
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Exhibit Index
Exhibit
Number
Incorporated
Exhibit by reference Filed
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatioregistrant.  Form &1, as amende  12/28/2001 3.1
(File No. 33-49932)
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of registrant. Form S-1, as amended 12/28/200 3.2
(File No. 33-49932)
3.2A Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws of regittr Form 8-K (item 5.03 ~ 12/18/200 3.1
only)
3.3 Certificate of Designations of Rights, Preferenaed Privileges Form 8-K 10/27/200! 3.1
of Series A Patrticipating Preferred Stock regidtr
4.1 Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate. Form S-1, as amended 01/17/200. 4.1
(File No. 33:-49932)
4.2 Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated Octobere®yden the Form 8-K 10/27/200! 4.1
registrant and EquiServe Trust Company, M
10.1  Lease Agreement by and between James Lindsey gistramt, Form S-1, as amended 11/14/200 10.4
dated June 20, 2000, for office space located At\B&rtin (File No. 333-49932)
Avenue, Santa Clara, C,
10.2 First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated Februa2@@s for Form 8-K 02/09/200! 10.1
office space located at 881 Martin Avenue, Santa&ICA.
10.3 Lease Agreement dated August 30, 2001 by and betdemes ¢ Form 10-K 03/27/200: 10.28
Lindsey and registrant for office space locate@24t Martin
Avenue, Santa Clara, C,
10.4  First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated Februa2@@5 for Form 8-K 02/09/200! 10.3

office space located at 821 Martin Avenue, SantaaICA.
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Exhibit
Number
Incorporated

Exhibit by reference Filed

Number Description Form Date herein herewith

10.5 Lease Agreement dated March 4, 2004 by and betdames S. Form 10-Q 05/06/200. 10.40
Lindsey and registrant for office space locate83it Martin
Avenue, Santa Clara, C,

10.6 First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated Februa2@@ for Form 8-K 02/09/200! 10.2
office space located at 831 Martin Avenue, SantaaICA.

10.7 Shelter Agreement dated December 22, 2005 betveggstrant  Form 8-K 12/28/200! 10.1
and International Manufacturing Solutions Operae®rS.R.L

10.8 Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreeméad da Form 8-K 12/19/200! 10.1
December 16, 2005 between registrant and Come&o& |

10.8A Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan and Security Form 10-K 03/12/200 10.8A
Agreement dated March 7, 2007 between registraiht an
Comerica Bank

10.8B Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan and Security Form 8-K 04/29/200: 10.1
Agreement dated March 7, 2007 between registraiht an
Comerica Bank

10.8C Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan and Security Form 8-K 01/13/200! 10.1
Agreement dated March 7, 2007 between registrasht an
Comerica Bank

10.107 Registrant's 2001 Stock Incentive Plan. Form S-1 as amended 12/28/200 10.13

(File No. 33:-49932)

10.111 Form of option agreement under Align's 2001 Steoalehtive Form 10-Q 11/05/200. 10.13.1
Plan.

10.121 Registrant's Employee Stock Purchase F Form <-8 02/05/200. 99.2
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Exhibit
Number
Incorporated
Exhibit by reference Filed
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
10.13t  Form of Indemnification Agreement by and betwesgistrant Form S-1 as amended 01/17/200: 10.15
and its Board of Directors and its executive offic (File No. 33:-49932)
10.14t  Amended and restated 2005 Incentive F Form 1(-K 03/12/200 10.14
10.14A1 Form of restricted stock unit award agreement uneigistrant’ Form 10-Q 11/05/200° 10.1A, 10.1B
2005 Incentive Plar 10.1C
(General Form; Officer Form: Director Forn
10.14B1 Form of option award agreement under registraf0s2 Form 10-Q 08/04/200! 10.4
Incentive Plan
10.14C* Form of restricted stock unit award agreement unegistrant’ Form 10-K 03/12/200 10.14C
2005 Incentive Plan with Thomas M. Presc
10.14D- Form of restricted stock unit award agreement amnemd Form 10-K 03/12/200 10.14D
under registrant's 2005 Incentive Plan with ThoMas
Prescott
10.15t  Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dateddViay Form 10-Q 04/08/200: 10.4
2008 between Thomas M. Prescott and regist
10.16%  Form of Employment Agreement entered into by artvéen  Form 10-Q 05/08/200: 10.3
registrant and each of executive officer (othent@&O).
10.17t  Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Form 10-Q 05/08/200: 10.4
registrant and Thomas M. Prescott dated May 5, Z
10.18t  Separation and Release Agreement between Afsaretiehz  Form 10-Q 11/05/200: 10.1
and Align dated August 1, 200
10.19t  Separation and Release Agreement between Sonik &idr *

Align dated December 31, 20C
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Exhibit
Number
Incorporated
Exhibit by reference Filed
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
10.20 Lease Agreement dated February 26, 2003 betw®&MKFIDES Form 10-Q 05/13/200: 10.36
(Costa Rica) S.A., Parque Global S.A.A. and regigt
10.20~A Omnibus Amendment to Lease and Service Agreeméweea Form 8-K 06/26/200: 10.1
KPMG FIDES (Costa Rica) S.A., Parque Global S.Al Atign
dated June 24, 200
10.21 Lease Agreement between Schootsepoort Onroerendigebr, for Form 10-Q 08/05/200: 10.41
Stichting Philips Pensioenfonds and Al
10.2124 Amendment to Lease Agreement between Align TeclywlIB.V. anc Form 10-Q 08/03/200 10.4
TT Amsterdam Project Company (formerly Stichtinglipb
Pensioenfonds
10.22 Lease Agreement between International Manufactusiolgitions Form 8-K 12/22/200: 10.1
Operaciones, S.R.L. and Elamex de Juarez, S.A.\dedated
July 31, 2008 (assigned to Align as Lessee effedipril 1, 2009).
10.23t Summary of 2008 Incentive Awards for Named Exeau@ificers. Form 8-K 01/13/200"  Item 5.02 only
and Form 8- anc
K/A 01/22/200
21.1 Subsidiaries of the registrai *
23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, IndeperRiegistered *
Public Accounting Firm
31.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer pursudaatExchange Act *
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursu&wction 302
of the Sarban«-Oxley Act of 2003
31.2 Certifications of Chief Financial Officer pursudantExchange Act *

Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursu&sgction 302
of the Sarban«-Oxley Act of 2003
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Exhibit
Number
Incorporated
Exhibit by reference Filed
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chlgnancial Officer pursuant *

to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuarédtidd 906 of the

Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2003
T Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagefiled as an Exhibit to this form pursuanttenis 14(a) and 14(c) of Form 10-

K.







Exhibit 10.18
SEVERANCE AGREEMENT AND GENERAL RELEASE

This Separation and General Release Agreement €&xgent”) is made by and between Sonia Clark (“ClarKkEmployee”)
and Align Technology, Inc. (“Align” or the “Compatjy

RECITALS
WHEREAS, Clark has been for a time employed by #lig

WHEREAS, the Company and Clark have entered intAraended and Restated Employment Agreement datgd5\i2008 (the
“Employment Agreement”), which provided for an imdiually negotiated severance package in the evfethie termination of her employment
under certain circumstances;

WHEREAS, the Parties agree that Clark shall ceabe tan executive officer of the Company and otlsrwease performing services
and her employment with the Company shall be temteohon December 31, 2008 (the “Termination Date”);

WHEREAS, Clark and Align (together “the Partieg/jsh permanently to resolve all disputes that exist or may exist between thi
in the future arising out of Clark’employment with Align and the termination theranél that such resolution shall constitute a Géirebeas:
as described below;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of therpises and undertakings described below, the Pageee as follows:
1. In consideration for this Agreement, the Compargligtrovide the following to Clark:

a. In accordance with Section 6(b)haf Employment Agreement, following the executionhié Agreement and after the
expiration of the revocation period referred tdgragraph 7 below, Align shall pay to Clark thetamount of seven hundred and
twenty two thousand five hundred and seventy fioltads and seventy cents ($722,575.70) to be pa&dlump sum, less applicable
deductions and withholdings, which represents aousnequal to: (a) $160,192.50, which amount ejtred fiscal year 2008 target
bonus; (b) $266,987.50, which amount equals ongg/base salary; (c) $266,987.50, which amount sqih@ greater of the then-
2008 target bonus or the actual prior year’s bo(d}s$25,808.20, which amount equals twelve monffSOBRA; and (e) $2,600, for
outplacement services .

b. In accordance with Section 6(b)h&f Employment Agreement, as of the Termination Datark shall immediately
conditionally vest in an additional number of slsamader all outstanding options and restrictedkstmits as if Clark had performed
twelve (12) additional months of service measurethfthe Termination Date, subject to Clark’s exaxubf this Agreement and
provided that she does not revoke this Agreemeatlased in Paragraph 7 below and the exercisdsigiith respect to such
conditionally vested shares shall be suspendetsuth execution and expiration of such revocagieriod.

2. In exchange for the foregoing consideration aneémogfood and valuable consideration set forth hefélierk agrees as follows:




a. Clark warrants and agrees that tm@any, its predecessors, successors and assiganpdid Clark any and all
compensation due to her, including vacation pasrgaother wages or expenses, and all compensatiany type, except as identifi
in Paragraph 1 above, due or due to become duthahdo the extent that any of the foregoing remaipaid, any such payments are
included in the sum specified in Paragraph 1 abatéch is more than sufficient to cover such ameuifitany. Excluding the
amounts in Paragraph 1, which may come due updsfesztion of the conditions herein, the CompanyieeClark is owed any
compensation other than her final paycheck anduadcbut unused vacation, which shall be paid orfihal day of employment
whether or not she signs this agreement. At suoh &s Align pays the amounts in Paragraph 1 at@bebligations to Clark shall
cease and she shall be entitled to no further patsr# any kind from Align, including but not lineidl to any salary, bonuses or
incentive compensation payments, or payments oty In this regard, Clark understands and agttest she has not earned any
bonuses or other amounts and, except for such asocefierred to in Paragraph 1 above and subjettietconditions herein, is and
shall be entitled to no other bonuses, paymentempensation of any type.

b. Clark agrees that the foregoinglstmistitute an accord and satisfaction and agfiudl complete settlement of her claims,
shall constitute the entire amount of monetary wm@ration provided to her under this Agreement, éwad she will not seek any
further compensation for any other claimed damagsts or attorneys’ fees in connection with theteratencompassed in this
Agreement.

C. Clark acknowledges and agrees HeCompany has made no representations to hediegdhe tax consequences of any
amounts received by her pursuant to this Agreeméterk further agrees to pay federal or stateddkat are required by law to be
paid with respect to this Agreement, and furtheeag to indemnify the Company for any fines, péesltinterest or other levies due
any federal or state taxing authorities as a redutie characterization of any of the paymentsidesd herein.

d. Clark also agrees to cooperate thiehCompany regarding any pending or subsequdletyIftigation, claims, or other
disputes involving Align that relate to mattershiit the knowledge or responsibility of Clark duringr employment with Align.
Without limiting the foregoing, Clark agrees (i)neeet with Company representatives, its counsedttoer designees at mutually
convenient times and places with respect to amysteithin the scope of this provision; (ii) to prde truthful testimony regarding
same to any court, agency, or other adjudicatodyband (iii) to provide the Company with noticeaaintact by any adverse party or
such adverse partyrepresentative, except as may be required by Glark shall also comply with reasonable requstinformatior
that relate to matters with the knowledge or respmlity of Clark during her employment. Align wileimburse Clark for all
reasonable expenses in connection with the codprrag¢scribed in this paragraph.

3. This Agreement, all of its terms, and all of théigditions of the Company contained herein are esglyecontingent upon the
condition that Clark does not exercise her rightevbcation as described in subparagraph (g) afgPaph 7 below.

4, Clark represents that she will not file (or aslatbow anyone to file on her behalf), any chargenptaint, claim or lawsuit of any kin
in connection with any claim released by this Agneat. This provision shall not apply, howeveratty non-waivable charges or claims
brought before any




governmental agency. With respect to any suchwainable claims, Clark agrees to waive her righafiy) to any monetary or other recovery
should any governmental agency or other third pautgue any claims on her behalf, either indiviguyair as part of any collective action.
Nothing herein shall preclude any claim Clark miégy dlleging that the waiver of claims under theeAgiscrimination in Employment Act «
1967 (“ADEA”) was not knowing or voluntary. Likesg, nothing herein shall preclude Clark from malkiang claims for workers’
compensation benefits, unemployment benefits, imiéeation or reimbursement for business expenseleulabor Code section 2802, or any
other claims that cannot be waived by private agexe under applicable laws. With regard to claimder section 2802, Employee
acknowledges and agrees that she has conductadaneble investigation and is unaware of any indgation claims that have not been
disclosed in writing to the Company.

5. Clark without limitation hereby irrevocably and wmditionally releases and forever discharges thmgamy, its current and former
subsidiaries, divisions, affiliates, officers, agemlirectors, supervisors, employees, represgatatsuccessors and assigns, and all persons
acting by, through, under, or in concert with afiyh@m from any and all charges, complaints, claicasises of action, debts, demands, sur
money, controversies, agreements, promises, danaagidgbilities of any kind or nature whatsoevmth at law and equity, known or
unknown, suspected or unsuspected, anticipatedantticipated (hereinafter referred to as “claim*@daims”), arising from conduct occurring
on or before the date of this Agreement, includirpout limitation any claims incidental to or drig out of Clark’s employment with the
Company or the termination thereof. It is expnessiderstood by Clark that among the various rigiis claims being waived in this release
are those arising under the Age Discrimination impfoyment Act of 1967 (29 U.S.C. § 621. et setyg, ®lder Workers Benefit Protection A
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the EquBRay Act of 1963, the Americans With Disabilitiast, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, the
California Fair Employment and Housing Act, thei@ahia Family Rights Act, the federal and Calif@Worker Adjustment and Retraining
Act, or any other federal, state or local law gyuiation, except as specified herein. This praviss intended by the parties to be all
encompassing and to act as a full and total relebany claim, whether specifically enumerated hreoe not, that Clark might have or has had,
that exists or ever has existed on or before tie afathis Agreement, which may legally be released

6. The parties understand the word “claim” or “clainig’include without limitation all actions, clainasd grievances, whether actual or
potential, known or unknown, related, incidentabtarising out of Employes’employment with the Company and the terminati@ndof. Al
such claims, including related attorneys’ fees eosts, are forever barred by this Agreement andowitregard to whether those claims are
based on any alleged breach of a duty arising ftraot or tort; any alleged unlawful act, any otbkim or cause of action; and regardless of
the forum in which it might be brought.

7. The parties hereby agree that by signing this Agere and by acceptance of the payment describedealitark gives up any and all
rights she may have to file any claim or actionahhshe may now have, has ever had, or may in theefbhave, with respect to any matter
pertaining to or arising from her employment witle {Company. In this regard, Clark agrees thatAjigement covers both known and
unknown claims or actions, and as such Employeeesgly waives any rights or protection she may hmder California Civil Code section
1542, which provides:

A general release does not extend to claims wiieltteditor does not know or suspect to existsnoniher favor at the time
of executing the




release, which if known by him or her must haveearially affected his or her settlement with the teb
8. Clark understands and agrees that she:
a. Has had the opportunity of a fuletwy-one (21) days within which to consider this@ement before signing it, and that if
she has not availed herself of that full time pettioat she failed to do so knowingly and voluntariClark, however, may not sign this
Agreement on or before December 31, 2008.
b. Has carefully read and fully undensts all of the provisions of this Agreement.
C. Is, through this Agreement, releggime Company and its officers, agents, direcgupervisors, employees, representatives,

successors and assigns and all persons actingrbygh, under, or in concert with any of them, frany and all claims she may have
against the Company or such individuals.

d. Knowingly and voluntarily agreesatibof the terms set forth in this Agreement.
e. Knowingly and voluntarily intendshe legally bound by the same.
f. Was advised and hereby is advigagriting to consider the terms of this Agreememd aonsult with an attorney of

Employee’s choice prior to signing this Agreement.

g. Has a full seven (7) days followihg execution of this Agreement to revoke this Agnent, and has been and hereby is
advised in writing that this Agreement shall notdme effective or enforceable until the revocapeniod has expired. If Clark
desires to revoke this Agreement, she must prowiitéen notice to Roger E. George by 5:00 p.m.lmdeventh day following her
execution of this Agreement.

h. Understands that rights or claimdarrthe Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 79@&9 U.S.C. 8§ 621, et seq.) that
may arise after the date this Agreement is signedhat waived.
9. The parties agree that any change made to the Agmetenffered to Clark on October 31, 2008, whethaterial or immaterial and
regardless of the reason for the change, will estart the running of the twenty-one (21) day pkrio
10. This Agreement has been individually negotiatediamibt part of a group exit incentive or othemeration program.
11. Clark specifically acknowledges that her employm®snalign created a relationship of trust betwedarkCand the Company with

respect to any information of a confidential orre¢@ature of which she became aware during thegef her employment and which

(i) relates to the business of the Company, ohédbusiness of any customer, licensor or suppfigfreoCompany; or (i) is processed by the
Company and has been created, discovered or dexklp or has otherwise become known to the Comfratyhas commercial value to the
business in which the Company is engaged. All sdamation is hereinafter called “proprietaryanfation.” By way of illustration, and not
in limitation,




proprietary information includes trade secretscpsses, computer programs, data, know how, stemtefgirecasts, customer lists, pricing,
testing methods and results, clinical trial datadpct designs, product performance data, policipsrational procedures, staffing, billing and
collection practices, and contract provisions ahidbgophies. At all times Clark will keep in cotince and trust all such proprietary
information and will not use or disclose any suobppietary information or anything relating to itthout the written consent of the Company.
Clark hereby agrees that all proprietary informashall be the sole and exclusive property of then@any and its assigns. Clark further
acknowledges and agrees that the Employee Praprief@rmation and Inventions Agreement entered ioy Clark and dated September 25,
2006, remains in full force and effect and is ueetiéd by this Agreement. Clark acknowledges ameeagthat she has delivered to the
Company all documents, data and proprietary inféionaof any nature pertaining to the Company oaffgiated companies, and will not take
from the Company or its affiliated companies angutoents or data of any description or any repradnaontaining or pertaining to any
proprietary information nor utilize same.

12. Clark agrees not to interfere with the Companylatienship with current or prospective employeeppdiers, or investors. Clark
also agrees to refrain from communicating any degiag, derogatory, libelous or scandalous statésrterany third party regarding the
Company. The Company agrees that its Executivie@# have not and will not make any derogatorgpaiaging or negative statements a
Clark. On and after the Termination Date, Clarkeagrthat she will not represent to any person tityehat she is an agent or employee of the
Company, or has any authority to bind the Company.

13. This Agreement and compliance with this Agreeméallsiot be construed as an admission by the Comnpgany liability
whatsoever, or as admission by the Company of &igtion of the rights of Employee, violation ofyaarder, law, statute, duty or contract
whatsoever. The Company specifically disclaims lahility to Clark for any alleged violation of ¢hrights of Employee, or for any alleged
violation of any order, law, statute, duty or cawtron the part of the Company, or its employeezgents.

14. The parties hereto represent and acknowledgerthtextacuting this Agreement they do not rely ancehast relied upon any
representation or statement made by any of théepast by any of the parties’ agents, attorneyepresentatives with regard to the subject
matter or effect of this Agreement or otherwisdentthan those specifically stated in this writegreement.

15. This Agreement shall be binding upon the partiggtioeand upon their heirs, administrators, repregises, executors, Successors,
and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of gaitles and each of them and to their heirs, adinittors, representatives, executors,
successors, and assigns. Clark expressly wattaitshe has not transferred to any person oryeantif rights or causes of action, or claims
released by this Agreement.

16. The Parties further agree that the benefits pravidehis Agreement fully satisfy any obligationigh may have to provide any
severance or other benefits to Clark under thahiteemployment offer letter by and between Claré aAlign September 13, 2006, and the
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by ameeba Clark and Align dated May 5, 2008. This Agmnent may be changed only by
another written agreement signed by Clark and Adigghief Executive Officer.

17. Should any provision of this Agreement be declamede determined by any court of competent jurisalicto be illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable, the legality, validity and enforagghof the remaining
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parts, terms or provisions shall not be effectedidhy and said illegal, unenforceable, or invadiat, part or provision shall be deemed not to
be a part of this Agreement.

18. With the exception of any agreement with the Comypaertaining to proprietary, trade secret or otwmrfidential information and/or
the ownership of inventions, all of which shall m@min full force and effect and are unaffectediig Agreement, this Agreement sets forth
entire agreement between the parties hereto alydsiypersedes any and all prior agreements andrstagieings, written or oral, between the
parties hereto pertaining to the subject matteedferThis Agreement may only be amended or madlifig a writing signed by the parties
hereto. Any waiver of any provision of this Agreemh shall not constitute a waiver of any other @ion of this Agreement unless expressl|
indicated otherwise.

19. This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordanitle tive plain meaning of its terms and not striétly or against any of the parties
hereto.
20. This Agreement is made and entered into in thee®thCalifornia, and shall in all respects be ipteted, enforced and governed by

and under the laws of the State of California. phgies agree that any and all disputes arisingbiine terms of this Agreement, their
interpretation, and any of the matters herein sgldashall be subject to binding arbitration int8aara County in accordance with the
JAMS/Endispute Arbitration Rules and ProcedureElimployment Disputes. Either Clark or the Comparay initiate arbitration within the
statute of limitations for the underlying claim, @se said claim shall be deemed waived. Other ¢$hacified below, the parties agree that they
shall each bear the same costs in arbitrationastitd bear in civil litigation. The parties agrmat in any arbitration held to enforce or
interpret the terms of this Agreement, and/or sth@ube necessary for either party to file a petitio compel arbitration, the arbitrator or the
court, as the case may be, shall have the authordayard the prevailing party reasonable attornfeys and costs as allowed by law. Said
attorneys’ fees and costs shall extend to any dppeeess related hereto and to the enforcementaliettion of any court judgment and any
execution related thereto.

21. This Agreement may be executed in counterpartseact counterpart, when executed, shall have tieaejf of a second original.
Photographic or facsimile copies of any such siggmthterparts may be used in lieu of the origioalany said purpose.
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In Witness Whereof, the parties hereto have exddhis Severance Agreement and General Releadelss date upon
which the last party to sign this Agreement doesascet forth below.

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. SONIA CLARK
By: /s/ Thomas M. Prescc /s/ Sonia Clarl
THOMAS M. PRESCOT1
President & CEC

Dated: October 23, 20(
Dated: December 31, 20!
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Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of Align Technology, Inc.
The registrant's principal subsidiarie®BBecember 31, 2008, are as follows:

— Align Technology De Costa Rica, SRL, Costa F

— Align Technology, B.V., The Netherlani
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporationdfgnence in the Registration Statement on Form(I$e8 333-55020, No. 333-82874, No. 333-
116912, No. 333-125586) of Align Technology, Intoar report dated February 27, 2009, relatindftnancial statements, financial
statement schedule, and the effectiveness of miteontrol over financial reporting, which appegrshis Form 10-K.

[/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
February 27, 2009
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Thomas M. Prescott, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Align Technology, Inc.
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessarn

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrami &ave:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ttesigned under o
supervision to ensure that material informatiomtiaty to the registrant, including its consolidasedbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this annual report is lgeprepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahetporting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assereegarding the reliability of financial repogdiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyeddis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tleatturred during the registran
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigibal quarter in the case of an annual repod) lttas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anlblve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financii
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatanmmmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig's ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; ar

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2009

/sl THOMAS M. PRESCOTT

Thomas M. Prescott
President and Chief Executive Offic
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Exhibit 31.2
I, Kenneth B. Arola, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Kldn Technology, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesamiain any untrue statement of a material facoit to state a material fa

necessary to make the statements made, in lightdafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrami &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and procedutes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this annual report is lgeprepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipg; or caused such internal control over finahetgorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contants procedures, as of the end of the period cougyeddis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regiisanternal control over financial reporting tleaturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigibal quarter in the case of an annual repod) lttas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anlblve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataammmittee of the registrant's board of direct@nspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig's ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; ar

(c) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéin the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2009

/sl KENNETH B. AROLA

Kenneth B. Arola
Chief Financial Officer and Vice President, Finar
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Exhibit 32
906 Certification

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF  FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2003

I, Thomas M. Prescott, certify, pursuant®U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to&e306 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003,
that the Annual Report of Align Technology, Inc.Borm 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 808Xully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéearExchange Act of 1934 and that informationtadmed in this Form 10-K fairly presents
in all material respects the financial conditiom aasults of operations of Align Technology, Inc.

By: /sl THOMAS M. PRESCOTT

Date: February 27, 20( Name Thomas M. Presco
Title:  President and Chief Executive Offic

I, Kenneth B. Arola, certify, pursuant t8 W.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant tode@@6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003,
that the Annual Report of Align Technology, Inc.Borm 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 808Xully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéearExchange Act of 1934 and that informationtadmed in this Form 10-K fairly presents
in all material respects the financial conditior aasults of operations of Align Technology, Inc.

By: /sl KENNETH B. AROLA

Date: February 27, 20( Name Kenneth B. Arole
Title:  Chief Financial Officer and Vice President, Finar
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